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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in doubt as to the course of action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant or other professional advisers immediately.

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad takes no responsibility for the contents of this Circular, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this Circular.

NYK GROUP COMPANY

TASCO BERHAD
(Company No. 20218-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CIRCULAR TO SHAREHOLDERS IN RELATION TO THE

U] PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY TASCO BERHAD (“TASCO” OR THE “COMPANY”) OF
2,000,000 ORDINARY SHARES IN GOLD COLD TRANSPORT SDN BHD (“GCT”),
REPRESENTING THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN GCT FROM CHANG KOK FAI AND
CHAN SUN CHEONG, FOR A CASH CONSIDERATION OF RM185,616,671; AND

(n PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS BY TASCO FROM SWIFT INTEGRATED LOGISTICS SDN BHD
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MISC INTEGRATED LOGISTICS SDN BHD) (“SILS”) OF THE
FOLLOWING:-

(A) 6 PARCELS OF LEASEHOLD LANDS ALL LOCATED IN PULAU INDAH MEASURING
APPROXIMATELY 159,935 SQUARE METERS (APPROXIMATELY 39.52 ACRES) IN
TOTAL, TOGETHER WITH THE FURNITURE, FIXTURES, FITTINGS AND
BUILDING(S) ERECTED THEREON (SAVE FOR THE FIXTURES, FITTINGS AND
BUILDING ERECTED ON PT 128574) AND BEARING POSTAL ADDRESS AT LOT 36,
JALAN PERIGI NENAS 7/2, TAMAN PERINDUSTRIAN PULAU INDAH, 42920
PELABUHAN KLANG, SELANGOR FOR A CASH CONSIDERATION OF
RM113,827,400; AND

(B) 3,000,000 ORDINARY SHARES AND 2,800,000 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES IN MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN BHD (“MCCL”),
REPRESENTING THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN MCCL FOR A CASH
CONSIDERATION OF RM9,925,100 AS WELL AS THE ASSUMPTION OF LOANS
RECEIVED BY MCCL FROM SILS WITH AN OUTSTANDING BALANCE OF
RM20,000,000 FOR A TOTAL CASH CONSIDERATION OF RM29,925,100

AND
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Principal Adviser

RHB®InvestmentBank

RHB Investment Bank Berhad
(Company No. 19663-P)
(A Participating Organisation of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)

The Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting (‘EGM”) of our Company, to be held at TASCO Berhad, Lot No.1A, Persiaran
Jubli Perak, Jalan 22/1, Seksyen 22, 40300 Shah Alam, Selangor on Thursday, 29 June 2017 at 3.00 p.m., or any adjournment
thereof, together with the accompanying Form of Proxy are enclosed herein.

As a shareholder of our Company, you are entitled to attend, speak and vote at the EGM or appoint a proxy or proxies to attend
and to vote on your behalf. In such event, the Form of Proxy must be lodged at the registered office of our Company at 802, gh
Floor, Block C, Kelana Square, 17 Jalan SS7/26, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor not less than 48 hours before the time for
holding the EGM as indicated below. The lodging of the Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person
at the EGM should you subsequently wish to do so.

Last date and time for lodging the Form of Proxy ............cccccceeunnnee. :  Tuesday, 27 June 2017 at 3.00 p.m.
Date and time of the EGM ..., : Thursday, 29 June 2017 at 3.00 p.m.

This Circular is dated 7 June 2017




DEFINITIONS

Except where the context

Circular:-

uACtn

“Board”
“Bursa Securities”

“Circular”

“Director(s)”

“EBITDA”
“EGM”

BV

“FYE”

“GCT”

“GCT Group”

“GCT Purchase
Consideration”

“GCT Sale Share(s)”

“GCT Share(s)”

“GCT SPA”

“GCT Valuation Report”

“GCT Vendor(s)”
“LAT”

“LBT”

“Listing Requirements”

“LPD”

nMCCLH

otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply throughout this

The Companies Act, 2016 as amended from time to time and any re-
enactment thereof

The Board of Directors of TASCO
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Company No. 635998-W)

This Circular dated 7 June 2017

The director(s) of TASCO and shall have the meaning given in Section
2(1) of the Capital Markets and Services Act 2007 and Section 2(1) of
the Act

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation
Extraordinary general meeting

Enterprise value

Financial year ended

Gold Cold Transport Sdn Bhd (Company No. 464664-M)

Collectively, GCT and its subsidiary

The final adjusted cash consideration of RM185,616,671 for the
Proposed GCT Acquisition

2,000,000 GCT Shares, representing the entire issued share capital of
GCT for the GCT Purchase Consideration

Ordinary shares in GCT
Sale and purchase agreement dated 9 January 2017 entered into
between the GCT Vendors and TASCO for the Proposed GCT

Acquisition

The valuation report issued by VPC dated 9 January 2017 on Subject
Property 1

Collectively, Chang Kok Fai and Chan Sun Cheong
Loss after tax

Loss before tax

Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

19 May 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the despatch of
this Circular

MILS Cold Chain Logistics Sdn Bhd (Company No. 736730-M)



DEFINITIONS (Cont’d)

“MCCL Purchase
Consideration”

“MCCL Sale Share(s)”

“MCCL Share(s)”

“MCCL SPA”

“NA?
“NTA”
“PAT”
“PBR”
“PBT”

“Plant & Machinery”

“Plant & Machinery
Valuation Report”

“Proposals”

“Proposed GCT
Acquisition”

“Proposed MCCL
Acquisition”

“Proposed Pulau Indah

Acquisition”

“Proposed Westport
Acquisition”

“PT 128574”

“Pulau Indah Purchase

Consideration”

“Pulau Indah SPA”

The total cash consideration of RM29,925,100 for the Proposed
MCCL Acquisition, comprising the MCCL Sale Shares consideration
and the Shareholders’ Loan

3,000,000 MCCL Shares and 2,800,000 RCPS, representing the
entire issued share capital of MCCL for RM9,925,100

Ordinary shares in MCCL

Sale and purchase agreement dated 23 January 2017 entered into
between SILS and TASCO for the Proposed MCCL Acquisition

Net asset

Net tangible asset
Profit after tax
Price-to-book ratio
Profit before tax

The plant and machinery assets located at Lot PT No. 128574, Jalan
Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920
Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor and as appraised by VPC pursuant to the
Proposed MCCL Acquisition as set out in Appendix IX of this Circular

The valuation report issued by VPC dated 19 January 2017 on the
Plant & Machinery

Collectively, the Proposed GCT Acquisition and Proposed Westport
Acquisition

Proposed acquisition by TASCO of the GCT Sale Shares,
representing 100% equity interest in GCT from the GCT Vendors for
the GCT Purchase Consideration

Proposed acquisition by TASCO of the MCCL Sale Shares,
representing 100% equity interest in MCCL from SILS as well as the
assumption of the Shareholder’s Loan, for the MCCL Purchase
Consideration

Proposed acquisition by TASCO of Subject Property 2 from SILS for a
cash consideration of RM113,827,400

Collectively, the Proposed MCCL Acquisition and Proposed Pulau
Indah Acquisition

A piece of land measuring approximately 20,149 square metres,
located at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian Pulau
Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor, which forms part of the 6
parcels of freehold lands in Pulau Indah and is currently tenanted to
MCCL

The purchase consideration of RM113,827,400 for the Proposed
Pulau Indah Acquisition

Sale and purchase agreement dated 23 January 2017 entered into
between SILS and TASCO for the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition



DEFINITIONS (Cont’d)

“Pulau Indah Valuation
Report”
“RCPS”

“RHB Investment Bank” or
“Principal Adviser”

“Shareholder’s Loan”

“SlLS”

“Subject Property 1”

“Subject Property 2”

“TASCO” or the
“Company”

“TASCO Group” or the
KEG roup”

“TASCO Share(s)”

“Tenancy Agreement”

“Westport Valuation
Report(s)”

“VPC” or the “Independent
Valuer”

“Yusen”

CURRENCIES
“Baht”
“JPY”
“RM” and “sen”

“Rupee”

The valuation report issued by VPC dated 19 January 2017 on
Subject Property 2 (including the fixtures, fittings and buildings
erected on PT 128574)

Redeemable convertible preference shares of MCCL

RHB Investment Bank Berhad (Company No. 19663-P)

RM20,000,000, being the inter-company balances owing by MCCL to
SILS as at the date of the MCCL SPA

Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd (formerly known as MISC
Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd) (Company No. 112036-P)

2 parcels of freehold lands owned by GCT measuring approximately
31,079 square meters (approximately 7.68 acres) in total, together
with the buildings erected thereon located at No.1, Jalan Sungai Kayu
Ara 32/37, No. 3, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, No. 4, Jalan Sungai
Kayu Ara 32/39 and No. 5, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, Berjaya
Industrial Park, Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam, Selangor

6 parcels of leasehold lands owned by SILS all located in Pulau Indah
measuring approximately 159,935 square meters (approximately
39.52 acres) in total, together with the furniture, fixtures, fittings and
building(s) erected thereon (save for the fixtures, fittings and building
erected on PT 128574) located at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2,
Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor

TASCO Berhad (Company No. 20218-T)

Collectively, TASCO and its subsidiaries

Ordinary shares in TASCO

The tenancy agreement dated 10 January 2017 between SILS and MCCL
in respect of PT 128574

Collectively, the Pulau Indah Valuation Report and the Plant &
Machinery Valuation Report

VPC Alliance (KL) Sdn Bhd (Company No. 192837-V)
Yusen Logistics Co. Ltd.,, the holding company of TASCO

incorporated in Japan and is currently listed on the First Section of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange

Thailand baht
Japanese yen
Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively

Indian rupee



DEFINITIONS (Cont’d)

All references to “our Company” and “TASCO” in this Circular are to TASCO Berhad and references to “our
Group” or “TASCO Group” are to our Company and our subsidiary companies. All references to “we”, “us”,
“our” and “ourselves” are to our Company, and where the context requires, our Group or any of our

subsidiary companies. All references to “you” or “your” in this Circular are to the shareholders of TASCO.

Words denoting the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa. Words denoting
the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa.
Reference to persons shall include a corporation, unless otherwise specified.

Any reference in this Circular to any enactment or guidelines is a reference to that enactment or
guidelines as for the time being amended or re-enacted. Any reference to a time of day in this Circular
shall be a reference to Malaysian time, unless otherwise specified.

For ease of reading, certain figures in this Circular have been rounded. Any discrepancy in the figures
included in this Circular between the amounts stated and the totals thereof are due to rounding.

Certain statements in this Circular may be forward-looking in nature, which are subject to uncertainties
and contingencies. Forward-looking statements may contain estimates and assumptions made by our
Board after due enquiry, which are nevertheless subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially
from the anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed or implied in such forward-
looking statements. In light of these and other uncertainties, the inclusion of a forward-looking
statement in this Circular should not be regarded as a representation or warranty that our plans and
objectives will be achieved.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




TABLE OF CONTENTS

LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSALS

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

INTRODUCTION

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED GCT ACQUISITION
DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED WESTPORT ACQUISITION
BACKGROUND INFORMATION OF THE PARTIES
RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSALS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSALS

RISK FACTORS

APPROVALS REQUIRED

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND/OR PERSONS
CONNECTED TO THEM

CORPORATE EXERCISES ANNOUNCED BUT PENDING COMPLETION
DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

ESTIMATED TIMEFRAME FOR COMPLETION

EGM

FURTHER INFORMATION

APPENDICES

VI

VII.

VIII.

SALIENT TERMS OF THE GCT SPA

SALIENT TERMS OF THE PULAU INDAH SPA
SALIENT TERMS OF THE MCCL SPA
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON GCT
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON MCCL

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GCT FOR THE FYE 30 NOVEMBER
2016 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MCCL FOR THE FYE 31 DECEMBER
2016 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON GCT

CONSOLIDATED VALUATION CERTIFICATE

PAGE

14

22

24

25

29

31

32

33

33

33

33

34

34

35

39

41

44

48

52

88

137

138



TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont’d)

X. FURTHER INFORMATION 159
NOTICE OF EGM ENCLOSED
FORM OF PROXY ENCLOSED

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

vi



TAsod
NYK GROUP COMPANY
TASCO BERHAD

(Company No. 20218-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registered Office

802, 8" Floor

Block C, Kelana Square
17 Jalan SS7/26

47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor

7 June 2017

Board of Directors

Lee Check Poh (Executive Chairman)

Lim Jew Kiat (Managing Director)

Tan Kim Yong (Deputy Managing Director)

Masaki Ogane (Executive Director)

Yasushi Ooka (Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Lee Wan Kai (Executive Director)

Kwong Hoi Meng (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Raymond Cha Kar Siang (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Raippan s/o Yagappan @ Raiappan Peter (Independent Non-Executive Director)

To: The shareholders of TASCO Berhad

Dear Sir/ Madam,
) PROPOSED GCT ACQUISITION; AND

(U] PROPOSED WESTPORT ACQUISITION

1. INTRODUCTION

On 10 January 2017, we had announced that our Company had, on 9 January 2017, entered into
the GCT SPA with the GCT Vendors for the acquisition of the GCT Sale Shares, representing the
entire equity interest in GCT, for an indicative cash consideration of RM186,086,428, subject to
adjustments of up to a maximum purchase consideration of RM188,000,000 as set out in the GCT
SPA.

Subsequently on 24 January 2017, we had announced that our Company had, on 23 January 2017,
entered into the following:-

() the Pulau Indah SPA with SILS for the acquisition of Subject Property 2 for a cash
consideration of RM113,827,400; and

(ii) the MCCL SPA with SILS for the acquisition of the MCCL Sale Shares, representing the
entire equity interest in MCCL for a cash consideration of RM9,925,100 as well as the
assumption of the Shareholder’s Loan, for a total cash consideration of RM29,925,100.



21
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On 10 March 2017, we had announced that RHB Investment Bank has been appointed as the
principal adviser for the Proposals and that our Company had submitted an application to Bursa
Securities to seek an extension of time up to 9 May 2017 to comply with paragraph 9.33(1)(a) of the
Listing Requirements to submit the draft circular to Bursa Securities in relation to the Proposals.

On 15 March 2017, RHB Investment Bank had, on behalf of our Board, announced that Bursa
Securities had on even date, resolved to grant our Company an extension of time until 9 May 2017
to comply with paragraph 9.33(1)(a) of the Listing Requirements.

On 30 March 2017, RHB Investment Bank had, on behalf of our Board, announced that our
Company had on 27 March 2017 completed the financial and legal due diligence exercise on GCT
Group and had issued a written notice in accordance with the GCT SPA to the GCT Vendors,
confirming that the results of the due diligence exercise is satisfactory.

Pursuant to the above, our Company had on 30 March 2017 made payment for the amount of
RM14,886,915, being the balance deposit of 8% of the indicative purchase consideration for the
Proposed GCT Acquisition of RM186,086,428.

On 9 May 2017, RHB Investment Bank had, on behalf of our Board, announced that the
parties to the GCT SPA had agreed and confirmed that the final GCT Purchase Consideration,
after the adjustments pursuant to Section 2.1.4(b) of this Circular, shall be RM185,616,671.

On 6 June 2017, RHB Investment Bank had, on behalf of our Board, announced that the parties to
the GCT SPA had, vide a letter dated 6 June 2017, mutually agreed to an extension of time for a
further period of 2 months from 8 June 2017 to 8 August 2017 for the fulfilment of the conditions
precedent to the GCT SPA.

Further details of the Proposals are set out in Sections 2 and 3 of this Circular.

THE PURPOSE OF THIS CIRCULAR IS TO PROVIDE YOU WITH THE RELEVANT
INFORMATION ON THE PROPOSALS AS WELL AS TO SEEK YOUR APPROVAL FOR
THE RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSALS TO BE TABLED AT OUR
FORTHCOMING EGM. THE NOTICE OF OUR FORTHCOMING EGM AND THE FORM OF
PROXY ARE ENCLOSED TOGETHER WITH THIS CIRCULAR.

BEFORE VOTING ON THE RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSALS TO BE
TABLED AT OUR FORTHCOMING EGM, YOU ARE ADVISED TO READ AND

CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE CONTENTS OF THIS CIRCULAR TOGETHER WITH THE
APPENDICES CONTAINED HEREIN.

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED GCT ACQUISITION

The Proposed GCT Acquisition entails the acquisition of the GCT Sale Shares by our Company at
the GCT Purchase Consideration to be satisfied fully via cash in accordance with the GCT SPA.

Upon completion of the Proposed GCT Acquisition, GCT will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company.

Salient terms of the GCT SPA

The salient terms of the GCT SPA are, amongst others, set out as follows:-

Conditions precedent

(a) The Proposed GCT Acquisition and its completion are conditional upon the fulfilment

of the following conditions precedent within 5 months from the date of the GCT SPA
or such other period as may be mutually agreed by the parties (“CP Period”):



()

(i) TASCO being satisfied with the results of its due diligence on the financial,
legal, contractual, business and tax position of the GCT Group;

(ii) TASCO having procured the relevant approvals from its shareholders at a
general meeting for the following:

(A) the acquisition of the GCT Sale Shares; and

(B) authorising its directors to take all steps necessary to complete the
Proposed GCT Acquisition in accordance with the GCT SPA,;

(iii) such consents or approvals of the GCT Group’s banks and financial
institutions which have granted banking or other credit facilities to GCT for
any change in the shareholding or control of GCT or management or the
board of directors of GCT (if any), provided always that the GCT Vendors
shall apply to GCT Group’s banks and financial institutions for such consent
or approvals within 10 business days from the date of the GCT SPA and
where such consents or approvals are subject to conditions, then conditions
must be mutually acceptable to both parties; and

(iv) receipt of the conditional approval from GCT Group’s banks for the corporate
guarantee(s) of TASCO to replace the personal guarantees by the GCT
Vendors and the corporate guarantees by Gold Cold Trading Sdn Bhd issued
in favour of the GCT Group’s banks, subject always to the terms as set out in
the GCT SPA;

If any of the conditions precedent of the GCT SPA is not fulfilled within the CP Period,
the GCT SPA shall cease and terminate and both parties shall be released from all
obligations in the manner as set out in the GCT SPA; and

If any party becomes aware that any of the conditions precedent of the GCT SPA is
incapable of being satisfied, it shall notify the other parties in writing within 3 business
days after it becomes aware of such circumstances.

As at the LPD, save for item 2.1.1(a)(i) above, all the conditions precedent of the GCT SPA
have not been obtained/fulfilled by the respective parties.

On 6 June 2017, RHB Investment Bank, on behalf of our Board, announced that the parties to
the GCT SPA had, vide a letter dated 6 June 2017, mutually agreed to an extension of time for
a further period of 2 months from 8 June 2017 to 8 August 2017 for the fulfilment of the
conditions precedent to the GCT SPA.

Covenants prior to the completion

(@)

The parties to the GCT SPA agree that the audited consolidated EBITDA of GCT
Group for the FYE 30 November 2016 stated in the letter to be issued by the auditors
shall not be less than RM19,760,000 (being 95% of the unaudited consolidated
EBITDA of RM20,800,000 for the FYE 30 November 2016) and such determination
shall be final and binding on the parties.

(i) If the audited consolidated EBITDA is less than RM19,760,000 but not less
than RM17,680,000, the GCT Vendors shall pay the difference between
RM19,760,000 and such actual lower audited consolidated EBITDA to GCT
on a RM for RM basis; or

(ii) If the audited consolidated EBITDA is less than RM17,680,000, TASCO shall
be entitled to either:

(A) terminate the GCT SPA; or



()

(@)

(B) proceed with the transaction contemplated by the GCT SPA and the
GCT Vendors shall pay the difference between RM19,760,000 and
such actual lower audited consolidated EBITDA to GCT on a RM for
RM basis.

For information purposes, the audited consolidated EBITDA of GCT Group for the
FYE 30 November 2016 is RM20,968,684. As such, there is no payment to be made
between the parties of GCT SPA.

The GCT Vendors shall prior to or on completion cause, or procure to cause the
transfer of the ownership of the lorries™ at no consideration from Gold Cold Logistics
Sdn Bhd (of which the GCT Vendors have shareholdings in) and/or Gold Cold
Enterprise (of which one of the GCT Vendor, Chang Kok Fai is a sole proprietor) to
GCT and to provide TASCO with the evidence of the transfer; and

Note:-

(1) As at the LPD, the details of the lorries that have been transferred to GCT from Gold Cold
Logistics Sdn Bhd and Gold Cold Enterprise are as follows:-

Company Number Age Capacity Remarks

of lorries
Gold Cold 42 Averaging 8 | Averaging 5 3 lorries were written off due to
Logistics Sdn years tonnes accidents and are pending for
Bhd insurance claims. In the event

the insurance claims are
successful, the claims shall be
payable to GCT.

Gold Cold | 4 Averaging Averaging 6
Enterprise 12 years tonnes

The GCT Vendors shall prior to or on completion cause, or procure to cause the
directors of GCT Group to settle all net outstanding balances owing by GCT Group to
the said directors and/or the related parties or vice versa (“Outstanding Balances”).
As at the LPD, the Outstanding Balances is RM169,368.

Sale and purchase of GCT Shares

The GCT purchase consideration shall be RM186,086,428 and is subject to
adjustments as set out in Section 2.1.4(b) of this Circular. However, the GCT
Purchase Consideration shall not be more than RM188,000,000 after the adjustments.

The GCT Vendors confirm that each of the minority shareholders has authorised the
payment by TASCO to the GCT Vendors of his or her portion of the GCT Purchase
Consideration. Such payment by TASCO to the GCT Vendors shall constitute and be
treated as if it were payment to that minority shareholder.

The GCT Purchase Consideration shall be satisfied wholly in cash in the following
manner:

(i) TASCO shall pay the sum of RM3,721,730 to each of the GCT Vendor in
equal proportions upon the execution of the GCT SPA;

(ii) TASCO shall pay the sum of RM14,886,915 to each of the GCT Vendor in
equal proportions within 3 business days upon satisfaction of the conditions
precedent; and

(iii) TASCO shall pay the balance sum of RM167,477,783 to each of the GCT
Vendor in equal proportions on the completion date of GCT SPA, subject to
the adjustments as set out in Section 2.1.4(b) below.
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Adjustments to the GCT Purchase Consideration

(a) Upon execution of the GCT SPA, the GCT Vendors shall procure the GCT Group’s
accounts for FYE 30 November 2016 to be audited (“Audited FYE 30 November
2016”). The auditors shall determine the cash and indebtedness based on the Audited
FYE 30 November 2016 which shall be delivered to TASCO on or before 28 February
2017.

(b) The following adjustments shall be made to the GCT Purchase Consideration:
(i) Indebtedness

In the event the indebtedness provided for in the Audited FYE 30 November
2016 is less than RM53,547,602, TASCO shall, on the completion date of GCT
SPA, pay to the GCT Vendors the shortfall in addition to the balance GCT
Purchase Consideration.

In the event the indebtedness provided for in the Audited FYE 30 November
2016 is greater than RM53,547,602, TASCO shall, on the completion date of
GCT SPA, deduct the difference from the balance GCT Purchase
Consideration.

In the event the indebtedness is the same as RM53,547,602, there will be no
adjustment to the balance GCT Purchase Consideration.

(ii) Cash

In the event the cash provided for in the Audited FYE 30 November 2016 is
greater than RM9,634,030, TASCO shall, on the completion date of GCT SPA,
pay to the GCT Vendors the difference in addition to the balance GCT
Purchase Consideration.

In the event the cash is lesser than RM9,634,030, TASCO shall, on the
completion date of GCT SPA, deduct the shortfall from the balance GCT
Purchase Consideration.

In the event the cash is the same as RM9,634,030, there will be no adjustment
to the balance GCT Purchase Consideration.

On 9 May 2017, RHB Investment Bank had, on behalf of our Board, announced that the
parties to the GCT SPA had agreed and confirmed that the final GCT Purchase Consideration,
after the adjustments pursuant to Section 2.1.4(b) above, shall be RM185,616,671.

Rights to purchase in respect of cold chain business in Sabah

The GCT Vendors agree to grant and procure the shareholders of Hypercold Logistics Sdn Bhd
(Company No. 748984-V) (“HLSB”) and Platinium Coldchain Sdn Bhd (Company No. 924266-K)
(“PCSB”) to grant TASCO a right, exercisable within 1 year from the completion date of GCT
SPA, to purchase all the share capital of HLSB and PCSB held by the GCT Vendors and the
shareholders'”, free from all encumbrances and together with all rights, benefits and entitements
now or thereafter attaching thereto. For avoidance of doubt, TASCO and the shareholders of
HLSB and PCSB will enter into good faith negotiations to agree on the exercise price within 1
year from the completion of GCT SPA. In the event TASCO intends to exercise the right to
purchase, TASCO will seek for its shareholders’ approval, if required prior to exercising such
right to purchase in accordance with the Listing Requirements and will make the necessary
announcement on the exercise of such right to purchase.
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Further details on the GCT SPA is set out under Appendix I of this Circular.

Note:-
(1) As at the LPD, the shareholders and the breakdown of their shareholdings in HLSB and PCSB are as follows:-
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholdings (%)
HLSB PCSB HLSB PCSB
Chang Kok Fai 1,235,000 20,000 48.05 20.00
Chan Sun Cheong 1,235,000 - 48.05 -
Ong Toh Beng Leong 100,000 10,000 3.90 10.00
Ramlee Bin Kasli - 70,000 - 70.00
Total 2,570,000 100,000 100.00 100.00

Basis and justification of arriving at the GCT Purchase Consideration

The GCT Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a willing-buyer willing-seller basis after

taking into consideration, inter-alia the following:

(i) The EBITDA of GCT Group for the FYE 30 November 2016, as warranted by the GCT
Vendors, shall be approximately RM20.8 million in the manner as set out in the GCT
SPA. For the avoidance of doubt, the consolidated EBITDA of the GCT Group shall

include the following:

(a) the consolidated EBITDA of GCT Group for the FYE 30 November 2016; and

(b) the EBITDA arising from a logistics contract for the period from 1 December 2015
until 31 March 2016 which was recorded in a related company of Chang Kok Fai.

The logistics contract was novated to GCT effective on 1 April 2016;

For information purposes, the audited consolidated EBITDA of GCT Group for the

FYE 30 November 2016 is RM20,968,684.

(ii) the revalued NA of GCT Group of RM71.44 million based on the audited consolidated
NA of GCT Group as at 30 November 2015, as well as taking into account the fair
market valuation of Subject Property 1 held by GCT Group as appraised by VPC via
the GCT Valuation Report. Further details on Subject Property 1 are set out in

Section 2.3 of this Circular.

The computation of the revalued NA is as follows:-

RM’000
NA of the GCT Group as at 30 November 2015 41,474
Add:
Revaluation surplus from Subject Property 1 32,911
Less:
Deferred tax impact (2,943)
Revalued NA of GCT Group 71,442




Notes:-

(1) The revaluation surplus from Subject Property 1 is computed as follows:-
RM’000

Fair market value ® 111,060
Less:
Carrying amount based on the audited financial statements as (78,149)
at 30 November 2015
Revaluation surplus 32,911

2 As appraised by VPC vide its GCT Valuation Report.

(iii) the future earnings potential and prospects of GCT Group arising from the positive

outlook of the cold chain logistics and warehousing industry.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Information on Subject Property 1

The Subject Property 1 is located within the established industrial area of Berjaya Industrial Park
in Section 32, Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, about 10 kilometres due south west of the
Shah Alam City Centre and about 30 kilometres due south west of the Kuala Lumpur City

Centre.

Subject Property 1 is accessible by road from Kuala Lumpur City Centre via the Shah Alam
Expressway (KESAS). The surrounding developments located within the vicinity of Subject Property
1 include amongst others, Nouvelle Kemuning Industrial Park, Bukit Naga Industrial Park, Bukit

Kemuning Elektroplanting Plant, Bukit Rimau Township and Bukit Kemuning Golf & Country Club.

Further details of Subject Property 1 are as follows:-

Land title No.

HS(D) 152663

HS(D) 57952

Land Lot No.

PT 145872

PT 57360

Registered owner

GCT

Land area

23,561 square metres

7,518 square metres

Category of land
use

Industrial

Land tenure

Freehold

Postal address

No.1, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/37, Berjaya Industrial Park,
Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam,
Selangor

No. 3, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/40, Berjaya Industrial Park,
Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam,
Selangor

No. 4, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/39, Berjaya Industrial Park,
Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam,
Selangor

No. 5, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/40, Berjaya Industrial Park,
Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam,
Selangor

Existing buildings
and approximate
age of buildings

No. 1, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara

No. 5, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara

32/37

2 storey cold storage warehouse
annexed with 3 storey office
building with 2 guardhouses, a
locker room and 3 common
toilet/wecs. Age of building is
approximately 2 years.

(Certificate of completion : 17
December 2014)

Total built-up area:
113,731 square feet

No. 3, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/40

1 storey cold storage warehouse
annexed with a 2 storey office
building together with 1 Sub-
station. Age of building is
approximately 13 years.

(Certificate of fitness : 24
December 2003)

32/40

2 storey cold storage warehouse
annexed with 2 storey office
building with 1 basement level
together with 1 guardhouse, a
waiting area, a locker room and 3
common toilettwcs. Age of
building is approximately 7 years.

(Certificate of completion : 30
November 2009)

Total built-up area:
112,345 square feet
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Total built-up area:
54,640 square feet
No. 4, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara
32/39
1 storey cold storage warehouse
annexed with 3 storey office
building together with 1 guard
house, a canteen, a locker room
and 2 common toilet/wcs. Age of
building is approximately 10
years.
(Certificate of fitness : 7
September 2006)
Total built-up area:
53,268 square feet
Current market Land & building - RM111,060,000
value
Audited book Land & building - RM74,961,604
value as at 30
November 2016
Occupancy Majority of the buildings are owner occupied®
Encumbrances Charged to Public Bank Berhad | 1. Charged to Alliance Bank
(“PBB”) — to secure the bank Malaysia Berhad (“ABMB”) — to
borrowings to fund the secure the bank borrowings to
construction of buildings and for fund the construction of buildings
working capital purposes. and for working capital purposes.
Private caveats were entered by | 2. Private caveats were entered by
PBB pending the registration of ABMB pending the registration of
the abovementioned charges the abovementioned charges
created over this property. created over this property.
As at the LPD, GCT has been
granted with a new facility by
Maybank Islamic Berhad (“MIB”) to
refinance the facility granted by
ABMB. MIB is in the midst of entering
a new private caveat and registering
a new charge over this property. The
private caveat entered into and
charge created over this property by
ABMB will be withdrawn and
discharged upon the registration of
the charges over this property by MIB.
Notes:-
(1) The fair market value as appraised by VPC via its GCT Valuation Report. The market valuation of the Subject

Property 1 was arrived based on cost method of valuation which entails determining the value of land as an
improved site, and value of building as the depreciated replacement cost of the building and other
improvements to arrive at the market value of Subject Property 1.
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2.6

The value of the land is determined by the comparison method which entails analysing recent transactions
and general values of vacant industrial lands within Shah Alam and Klang for comparison purposes and
adjustments made for location, land area, shape, time, tenure and improvements to the lands. The market
valuation of the buildings was arrived at based on the depreciated replacement cost method which entails
taking the value of buildings to be equal to the cost of replacing the buildings with similar construction and
finishes and depreciating for its age and condition.

VPC is unable to adopt the comparison method to derive the market value of Subject Property 1 as the
subject buildings are specialised and purpose built warehouses for cold room facilities and there are no
warehouses with cold room facilities in the vicinity to compare with Subject Property 1. In addition, investment
method is also not possible as the majority of the buildings are owner occupied. Hence, there are lack of rental
evidences to adopt to derive the total market rental of the properties.

2) Owner occupied except for the 1 storey cold storage warehouse (excluding the ice cream room which is
owner occupied) with the annexed 3 storey office building and other ancillary area and ancillary building
located at No. 4, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/39, Berjaya Industrial Park, Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul Ehsan (“Property No. 4”).

For information purposes, Property No.4 (save for the ice cream room) is presently rented to Martin-Brower
Malaysia Co. Sdn Bhd (‘“Martin-Brower’) at a monthly rental of approximately RM315,500. The current
agreement between GCT and Martin-Brower expires on 31 May 2019 and TASCO has no immediate plans to
extend the rental period for this agreement as at this juncture.

Mode of settlement of the GCT Purchase Consideration

The GCT Purchase Consideration will be satisfied in the following manner:-

% of GCT
Purchase
Payment Timing RM’000 | Consideration
Initial deposit Paid on 9 January 2017 3,722 2%
Balance deposit Upon completion of the financial and legal due 14,887 8%
diligence exercise and issuance of the written
notice by TASCO to the GCT Vendors,
confirming that the due diligence is satisfactory,
which was paid on 30 March 2017
Balance purchase | Upon completion of the Proposed GCT 167,008 90%
consideration for GCT, | Acquisition
after adjustments as set
out in the GCT SPA
185,617 100%
Note:-
(1) The balance GCT Purchase Consideration will be paid by TASCO to the GCT Vendors in the manner as set

out in the GCT SPA.
Liabilities to be assumed by TASCO

Save for the obligations and liabilities arising from or in connection with the GCT SPA, there are no
other liabilities, contingent liabilities and/or guarantees to be assumed by our Company pursuant to
the Proposed GCT Acquisition.

Source of funding

The initial deposit amounting to approximately RM3.72 million of the GCT Purchase Consideration
was paid on 9 January 2017 via internally generated funds of our Company. The balance deposit
of 8% amounting to approximately RM14.89 million was paid on 30 March 2017 via internally
generated fund of RM0.89 million and bank borrowing of RM14.0 million respectively. The balance
of the GCT Purchase Consideration is expected to be fully funded via bank borrowings.
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3.1

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

Estimated additional financial commitments

Save for the borrowings to be secured for the Proposed GCT Acquisition, we do not expect to incur
additional financial commitments to put the business of GCT Group on-stream.

DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED WESTPORT ACQUISITION

The Proposed Westport Acquisition comprises the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and the
Proposed MCCL Acquisition.

Upon completion of the Proposed MCCL Acquisition, MCCL will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company.

Details of the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition

The Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition entails the acquisition of Subject Property 2 by our Company
from SILS, free from all encumbrances, with vacant possession, with the furniture, fixtures, fittings
and building(s) erected thereon at the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration to be settled fully via
cash in accordance with the Pulau Indah SPA.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition shall include the plot of land for
PT 128574 on as is where is basis, free from all encumbrances with legal possession but exclude
MCCL's rights, title and interest in and to the furniture, fixtures, fittings and building(s) erected
thereon as contained in the Tenancy Agreement.

Salient terms of the Pulau Indah SPA

The salient terms of the Pulau Indah SPA are, amongst others, set out as follows:-
Purchase price

The Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration shall be paid in the following manner:-

(@) upon execution of the Pulau Indah SPA, TASCO shall pay the deposit sum of
RM11,382,740, being 10% of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration to SILS;

(b) the balance of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration amounting to RM102,444,660
shall be paid by TASCO to SILS’ solicitors as stakeholders within 3 months from the date
of the Pulau Indah SPA becomes unconditional; and

(c) in the event that TASCO fails to pay the balance of the Pulau Indah Purchase
Consideration within the completion date of the Pulau Indah SPA, TASCO shall be entitled
to an extension of time of 1 month from the expiry of the completion date of the Pulau
Indah SPA to settle the balance of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration in the manner
as set out in the Pulau Indah SPA.

Any payment made by TASCO to SILS’ solicitors as stakeholders pursuant to the terms of the
Pulau Indah SPA shall be deemed payment made towards the balance of the Pulau Indah
Purchase Consideration.

Conditions precedent

The Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition is conditional upon the fulfiment of the following
conditions precedent by the parties within 6 months from the date of the Pulau Indah SPA or
such longer period as the parties may mutually agree in writing:-

(a) SILS procuring the consent of the relevant state authority for the sale and transfer of
Subject Property 2 to TASCO;
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3.3

3.4

(b) TASCO procuring the approval of its shareholders for acquisition of Subject Property 2
from SILS upon the terms and conditions contained in the Pulau Indah SPA; and

(c) all the conditions precedent contained in the MCCL SPA have been fulfilled and having
become unconditional in accordance with the provisions of the MCCL SPA.

As at the LPD, the conditions precedent of the Pulau Indah SPA have not been fulfilled.
Further details on the Pulau Indah SPA is set out in Appendix Il of this Circular.
Basis and justification of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration

The Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a willing buyer-willing seller basis and
after taking into consideration, amongst others, the following:-

(i) The market value of Subject Property 2 of RM123,890,000, as appraised by VPC via its
Pulau Indah Valuation Report. The Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration represents a
discount of RM10.06 million or 8.1% compared to the market value of Subject Property 2
of RM123,890,000. Further details on the market valuation of Subject Property 2 are set
out under Section 3.4 and Appendix IX of this Circular.

For avoidance of doubt, only the market value for the lot of land on PT 128574 has been
included as a basis for the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration as the buildings, fixtures
and fittings erected on PT 128574 are owned by MCCL pursuant to the Tenancy
Agreement.

(ii) The rationale of the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and prospects of Subject Property 2
as set out in Section 5.2 and Section 6.3.2 of this Circular.

Information on Subject Property 2

Subject Property 2 consist of 6 parcels of leasehold lands owned by SILS all located in Pulau
Indah measuring approximately 39.52 acres in total, are situated within the free commercial
zone. Subject Property 2 is located within the Mukim and District of Klang and bearing postal
address at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan
Klang, Selangor, which is about 20 kilometres southwest of the town of Klang and 70 kilometres
southwest of Kuala Lumpur City Centre.

Subject Property 2 is accessible by road from Kuala Lumpur City Centre via the Shah Alam
Expressway (KESAS) and alternatively via the Federal Highway or North South Highway.
Located to the immediate south west of Subject Property 2 is Port Klang Free Zone (“PKFZ”).
PKFZ is an integrated free commercial and industrial zone, with an estimated land area of 1,000
acres, which comprises of terrace factories, vacant industrial lands as well as exhibition centres.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Further details of Subject Property 2 are as follows:-

Land title No. HS(D) HS(D) HS(D) HS(D) HS(D) HS(D)
134803 134804 134805 134806 134807 134808
Land Lot No. PT 128571 PT 128572 PT 128573 PT 128574 PT 128575 PT 128576
Land area 54,807 35,838 17,481 20,149 13,038 18,622
(square metres)
Postal address Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang,
Selangor
Existing 4 storey Nil Nil 1 storey cold 2 storey Nil
buildings and office, 1 storage security
approximate storey warehouse control
age of buildings warehouse building. Age | building. Age
building and of building is of building is
ancillary approximately | approximately
buildings. Age 9 years. 10 years.
of building is
approximately (Certificate of (Certificate of
10 years. completion: fitness: 19
22 September April 2007)
(Certificate of 2008)
Rtnﬁszsa (; ;9 Built-up area
pr ) Built-up area | 5,723 square
72,879 feet
Built-up area square feet
332,683
square feet
Encumbrances Nil Nil Nil Charged to Nil Nil
Bank
Muamalat
Malaysia
Berhad —to
secure the
bank
borrowings to
fund the
construction
of cold chain
logistics hub
facility
Category of land Industrial

use

Restriction of
Interest

Tanah yang diberi milik ini tidak boleh dipindah milik, dipajak atau digadai melainkan dengan

kebenaran Pihak Berkuasa Negeri

Land tenure Leasehold land of 99 years expiring on 24 February 2097
Registered MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd (now known as SILS)
owner
Occupancy Owner occupied as SILS’ logistics hub, save for the lands located at PT 128572, PT 128573 and
PT 128576 which are currently vacant!”
Audited net book RM97,405,7387
value as at 31
December 2016
Current market
value @ Description Market Value (RM)
6 lots of land 68,700,000
Buildings with site improvement on Lot PT 128571 and 55,190,000
PT 128575
Total 123,890,000
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3.5

3.6

Notes:

(1)

@

3

PT 128574 is currently tenanted to MCCL for a tenure up to 31 October 2019, at a rental rate of RM0.13
million per annum and subject to other terms and conditions of the Tenancy Agreement. In addition, the
buildings, fixtures and fittings thereon erected on PT 128574 are owned by MCCL.

Comprises net book values as at 31 December 2016 of:

(a) land and buildings recorded in the audited financial statements of SILS amounting to
RM72,285,810; and

(b) cold storage warehouse annexed with 1 storey office on PT 128574 recorded in the audited
financial statements of MCCL amounting to RM25,119,928.

The fair market value as appraised by VPC via its Pulau Indah Valuation Report. The market valuation of
Subject Property 2 was arrived based on cost method of valuation which entails determining the value of land
and building separately with the value of the land as an improved site is added to the depreciated replacement
cost of buildings and other improvements to arrive at the market value of Subject Property 2.

The value of the land is determined by the comparison method which entails analysing recent transactions of
vacant industrial lands in Pulau Indah Industrial Area, Port Klang for comparison purposes and adjustments
made for location, land area and improvements to the land.

The value of the building is determined by the depreciated replacement cost method where the buildings are
taken to be equal the cost of replacing the buildings with similar construction and finishes and depreciating for
its age and condition. VPC was unable to adopt the comparison method of valuation for the buildings as one
of the subject building is a specialised property, i.e. purpose built warehouse for cold room facilities and there
are no cold room facilities in the vicinity to compare with. In addition, investment method of valuation was not
adopted as the majority of the buildings are owner occupied. Hence, there is lack of rental evidences to adopt
to derive the total market rental of the property.

Mode of settlement of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration

The Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration shall be settled in cash in the following manner:-

% of Pulau Indah

Purchase

Date of settlement (RM’000) Consideration

Deposit Paid on 23 January 2017 11,383 10%

Balance payment On completion date of 102,445 90%
Pulau Indah SPA

Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration 113,828 100%

Details of the Proposed MCCL Acquisition

The Proposed MCCL Acquisition entails the acquisition of the entire equity interest in MCCL for a
cash consideration of RM9,925,100 from SILS, free from all encumbrances, as well as the
assumption of the Shareholder's Loan, for a total cash consideration of RM29,925,100 in
accordance with the MCCL SPA.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Proposed MCCL Acquisition shall include the building(s) erected on
PT 128574 together with all the furniture, fixtures and fittings therein, in which MCCL is the legal and
beneficial owner.

Upon completion of the Proposed MCCL Acquisition, MCCL will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company.
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3.7.1

Salient terms of the MCCL SPA

The salient terms of the MCCL SPA are, amongst others, set out as follows:-

Conditions precedent

(@)

(0)

©

(d)

The sale and purchase of the MCCL Sale Shares and completion thereof are conditional
upon the fulfilment of the following conditions precedent within 6 months from the date of
the MCCL SPA or such other period as may be mutually agreed by the parties to the
MCCL SPA (“Conditional Period”):

(i) all conditions precedent contained in the Pulau Indah SPA on the Proposed Pulau
Indah Acquisition have been fulffilled;

(ii) the Deed of Novation cum Assignment of Tenancy in respect of the Tenancy
Agreement (for the purpose of novating and assigning the Tenancy Agreement
from SILS to TASCO), which has been duly executed by SILS and deposited with
the SILS’ solicitors as stakeholder under the Pulau Indah SPA;

(iii) SILS causing or having procured MCCL to discharge all charges of MCCL created
in favour of Bank Muamalat Malaysia Berhad as at 23 January 2017, the details of
which are as follows:-

Charge Total of Date of Date of Rationale for the
No. Charge (RM) | Creation of | Registration of Charges
Charge Charge
001 123,400,000 9 May 2008 23 May 2008 To secure the bank
002 123.400,000 9 May 2008 23 May 2008 borrowings to fund the
003 213,400,000 | 9 May 2008 | 23 May 2008 construction  of  cold
chain  logistics  hub
facility
(iv) SILS having procured the relevant approval from its shareholders at general

meeting for the transaction provided for in the MCCL SPA in accordance with the
Act, if applicable;

(v) TASCO having procured the relevant approval from its shareholders at general
meeting for the following:

(A) the acquisition of the MCCL Sale Shares from SILS; and

(B) authorising the directors of TASCO to take all steps necessary to
complete the sale and purchase of the MCCL Sale Shares.

As at the LPD, save for items (i) and (iv) above, all other conditions precedent of the
MCCL SPA have not been fulfilled.

The date when the last of all the conditions precedent is fulfiled or waived by TASCO
under Section 3.7.1(h) below, within the Conditional Period shall be the “Unconditional
Date”.

TASCOQ’s solicitors shall remit the 3% retention sum for the real property gains tax (‘RPGT
Retention Sum”) pursuant to the Real Property Gains Tax Act 1976 to the Director
General of Inland Revenue Department.

If any of the conditions precedent of the MCCL SPA is not fulfiled and not waived by

TASCO upon the expiry of the Conditional Period, the MCCL SPA shall cease and
terminate in the manner as set out in the MCCL SPA.
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(h)

In the event the MCCL SPA is terminated pursuant to Section 3.7.1(d) above:

(i) TASCO’s solicitors shall refund the 3% RPGT Retention Sum to TASCO free of
interest within 14 days from such termination provided always that the 3% RPGT
Retention Sum has not been remitted to the Director General of Inland Revenue
Department in accordance with Section 3.7.1(c) above;

(ii) SILS shall refund the Vendor Sum (as defined below) to TASCO free of interest
within 14 days from such termination;

(iii) in the event that TASCO’s solicitors has remitted the 3% RPGT Retention Sum to
Director General of Inland Revenue and the MCCL SPA has been terminated
thereafter, TASCO’s solicitors shall notify Director General of Inland Revenue
Department on the termination of the MCCL SPA and to provide the written
evidence of the termination of MCCL SPA for the refund of 3% RPGT Retention
Sum from Inland Revenue Department. TASCO’s solicitors shall refund the 3%
RPGT Retention Sum to TASCO upon receipt of the same from Inland Revenue
Department; and

(iv) all documents deposited by the party with the other party and/or the other party's
solicitors shall be returned and/or cause to be returned to the party with its interest
therein remains intact.

SILS and TASCO shall use their best endeavours to procure the fulfilment of all the
conditions precedent of the MCCL SPA, and in particular shall furnish such information,
supply such documents, and do all such acts and things as may be required to enable all
the conditions precedent of the MCCL SPA to be fulfilled within the Conditional Period.

If any party becomes aware that any of the conditions precedent of the MCCL SPA is
incapable of being satisfied, it shall as soon as reasonably practicable after it becomes
aware of such circumstance forthwith notify the other party of the same.

To the extent permitted by law, TASCO reserves the right to waive any of the conditions
precedent of the MCCL SPA in accordance with the MCCL SPA.

MCCL Purchase Consideration

(@)

(b)

©

The MCCL Purchase Consideration payable for the MCCL Sale Shares shall be
RM9,925,100 only;

TASCO shall pay to SILS a sum of RM992,510 (which is equivalent to 10% of the MCCL
Sale Shares consideration) in the following manner upon the execution of the MCCL SPA
as the deposit and, in the event of completion, part payment towards satisfaction of the
MCCL Sale Shares consideration by way of banker's cheque:

(i) RM297,753, being 3% of the MCCL Sale Shares consideration to be deposited
with TASCO’s solicitors as stakeholder as the 3% RPGT Retention Sum, which
shall be dealt with by TASCQ’s solicitors in accordance with the MCCL SPA, as
the case may be; and

(ii) RM694,757, being 7% of the MCCL Sale Shares consideration (“Vendor Sum”)
to SILS.

TASCO shall on the completion date of the MCCL SPA, pay to SILS a sum of
RM8,932,590 (which is equivalent to the balance 90% MCCL Sale Shares consideration)
and fully settle the Shareholder's Loan on behalf of MCCL pursuant to the MCCL SPA.

The parties expressly agree and confirm that the completion of the MCCL SPA is
conditional upon the following:
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(@) the simultaneous completion of the Pulau Indah SPA in accordance with the
provisions of the Pulau Indah SPA; and

(ii) TASCO pay to SILS the MCCL Sale Shares consideration and fully settle the
Shareholder's Loan on behalf of MCCL pursuant to the MCCL SPA on the
completion date of MCCL SPA by way of banker's cheque.

(e) The parties covenant and undertake with each other to complete the sale and purchase of
Subject Property 2 in accordance with the Pulau Indah SPA. The failure of any party to
complete the sale and purchase of Subject Property 2 in accordance with the provisions of
the Pulau Indah SPA for any reason whatsoever shall be deemed a default by that party
under the MCCL SPA, in which event, the other party shall be entitled to the remedy in the
manner as set out in the MCCL SPA.

Further details on the MCCL SPA is set out in Appendix lll of this Circular.
Basis and justification of the MCCL Purchase Consideration

The MCCL Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a willing buyer-willing seller basis and after
taking into consideration, amongst others, the following:-

(i) the revalued NTA of MCCL of RM9.92 million based on its unaudited management
accounts as at 30 November 2016, as well as taking into account the market valuation of
the building erected on PT 128574 (together with the Plant & Machinery), as appraised by
VPC via its Pulau Indah Valuation Report and Plant & Machinery Valuation Report.

The computation of the revalued NTA is as follows:

RM’000
Unaudited NTA of MCCL as at 30 November 2016 15,281
Less:
Revaluation deficit from building with site improvement on PT 128574 (5,356)
Revalued NTA of MCCL 9,925
Note:-
(1) The deficit arising from revaluation is computed as follows:-
RM’000
Market value
- Building with site improvement on PT 128574 16,500
- Plant and machinery located on PT 128574 ® 10,153
Less:
Carrying amount based on the unaudited financial statements of MCCL as
at 30 November 2016
- Building with site improvement on PT 128574 (25,170)
- Plant and machinery located on PT 128574 (6,838)
Revaluation deficit (5,356)
Notes:-
@) Based on the market valuation as appraised by VPC in the Pulau Indah Valuation Report.
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(b) Based on the market valuation as appraised by VPC in the Plant & Machinery Valuation
Report, the fair market valuation of the Plant & Machinery located on PT 128574 was arrived
at on the basis of market value in continued use, which is defined as the estimated amount
at which the Plant & Machinery in their continued use might be expected to be sold and
purchased between a willing seller and a willing buyer, neither being under compulsion,
each having a reasonable knowledge of all relevant facts and with equity to both, and
contemplating the retention of the assets in their present existing use and location for the
purpose they were designed, built and installed as part of an ongoing business, but without
specific reference to earnings, and is expressed as subject to adequate potential profitability
of the undertaking.

Details of the Plant & Machinery are as follows:-

Subject property valued Fixed assets comprising the identified machinery and
equipment which includes amongst others, electrical
distribution items, refrigerated chillers, evaporative
coolers, pallet racking system located in the cold storage
facilities of SILS (as attached under the Appendix IX)

Land title No. HS(D) 134806

Land Lot No. PT 128574

Postal address Lot PT No. 128574, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman
Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang,
Selangor

Owner of the Plant & | SILS

Machinery

Current market value RM10,153,000

Audited net book value | RM6,676,365
as at 31 December 2016

Encumbrances Nil

In assessing the market value (in continued use), VPC had primarily adopted the cost
approach as most of the Plant & Machinery are rarely transacted and no close market
comparable were found. VPC had sourced the costs of replacing the Plant & Machinery
based on the prices published on various online websites and the Plant & Machinery Assets
Cost Data published by the American Society of Appraisers.

This approach entails determining the cost of replacement, new or the cost to reproduce or
replace the Plant & Machinery in brand new condition, with the same or of equivalent utility,
considering current prices for materials, labor, manufactured machinery & equipment,
freight, installation (if any), and other attendant costs & related charges, as at the date of the
valuation.

(ii) rationale and prospects of the Proposed MCCL Acquisition as set out in Section 5.2 and
Section 6.3.2 of this Circular, respectively.

No other valuation matrices were adopted in arriving at the MCCL Purchase Consideration because
MCCL does not own the land on lot PT 128574 where the business and operations of MCCL is
currently situated.

Please refer to Appendix IX of this Circular for further details of the Plant & Machinery.
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Mode of settlement of the MCCL Purchase Consideration

The MCCL Purchase Consideration comprises the MCCL Sale Shares consideration of
RM9,925,100 and the assumption of the Shareholder’s Loan. The MCCL Purchase Consideration
shall be satisfied in cash in the following manner:-

Date of Settlement (RM)
Deposit (being 10% of the MCCL Sale Shares | Paid on 23 January 2017 992,510
consideration)
Balance payment (being 90% of the MCCL Sale Shares On completion date of 8,932,590
consideration) MCCL SPA
Settlement of the Shareholder’s Loan On completion date of 20,000,000
MCCL SPA
Total cash consideration 29,925,100

Liabilities to be assumed by TASCO

Save for the Shareholder’s Loan, the obligations and liabilities arising from or in connection with the
Pulau Indah SPA and MCCL SPA, there are no other liabilities, contingent liabilities and/or
guarantees to be assumed by our Company pursuant to the Proposed Westport Acquisition.

Source of funding

The deposits for the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration and MCCL Purchase Consideration were
funded via our internally-generated funds. The balance payment of the Pulau Indah Purchase
Consideration and MCCL Purchase Consideration are expected to be fully funded via bank
borrowings.

Estimated financial commitments

Save for the borrowings to be secured for the Proposed Westport Acquisition, we do not expect to
incur additional financial commitments to put Subject Property 2 and the business of MCCL on-
stream.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION OF THE PARTIES
GCT

GCT was incorporated in Malaysia on 25 June 1998 and having its registered address at No. 3,
Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, Seksyen 32, Taman Berjaya Park, 40460 Shah Alam, Selangor.

GCT is principally involved in the business of transportation, cold room storage facilities,
repackaging and value added facilites. GCT Group currently owns 192 reefer trucks and
operates from its warehousing facilities, comprising of 4 cold storage warehouse buildings
located in Shah Alam with a total storage capacity of approximately 27,128 pallets. GCT Group
has developed into a full-fledged chilled and frozen food transporter and is one of the largest cold
chain logistics players in Malaysia in terms of storage capacity.

At present, GCT’s clientele includes companies from fast-moving consumer goods, food and
pharmaceutical industry. The range of products under GCT’s storage include amongst others,
frozen foods, dairy and confectionary products and pharmaceutical items.

As at the LPD, the issued share capital of GCT is RM2,000,000 comprising 2,000,000 GCT Shares
(excluding any credit in share premium and capital reserve).

As at the LPD, the directors of GCT are Chang Kok Fai and Chan Sun Cheong.
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4.3

As at the LPD, the shareholders of GCT are as follows:-

. . Direct shareholdings Indirect shareholdings

Shareholders of GCT Nationality No. of shares % | No. of shares %
Chang Kok Fai Malaysian 999,998 | *50.0 M #
Chan Sun Cheong Malaysian 999,998 *50.0 @ #
Minority Shareholders:
Chang Lai Wah Malaysian 1 # -
Chang Lai Mun Malaysian 1 # -
Chan Teng Fung Malaysian 1 # - -
Lum Yuet Quey Malaysian 1 # - -

Notes:-

* Rounded up.

# Negligible.

(1) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and sister in GCT.

) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and child in GCT.

Further details on GCT is set out in Appendix IV of this Circular.
GCT Vendors

Chang Kok Fai, age 50, Malaysian, is a co-founder of GCT. He was appointed to the board of
directors of GCT since the incorporation of GCT on 25 June 1998. Presently, Chang Kok Fai owns
approximately 50% equity interest in GCT.

Chan Sun Cheong, age 56, Malaysian, is a co-founder of GCT. He was appointed to the board of
directors of GCT on 15 May 1999. Presently, Chan Sun Cheong owns approximately 50% equity
interest in GCT.

MCCL

MCCL was incorporated in Malaysia on 7 June 2006 under the name MILS-Seafrigo Sdn Bhd. It
changed its name from MILS-Seafrigo Sdn Bhd to its current name on 24 July 2013. The
principal place of business is located at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian
Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor and having its registered address at Unit 206,
on Floor, Wisma Methodist, Lorong Hang Jebat, 50150 Kuala Lumpur.

MCCL commenced its business operation on 1 July 2011 and is principally involved in the
business of cold and chill storage services, cold chain logistics solutions and related services to
customers. MCCL currently owns 3 reefer containers and operates in 1 warehouse building
located on PT 128574 with a capacity of 10,643 pallet space in the multiple temperature-
controlled storage facility.

At present, MCCL'’s clientele includes companies from the fast-moving consumer goods and fast
food industry. The range of products under MCCL’s storage include amongst others, frozen
foods, fruits and dairy products.

As at the LPD, the directors of MCCL are Loo Yong Hui and Kee Chung Ching.

As at the LPD, SILS is the sole shareholder of MCCL, holding all 3,000,000 MCCL Shares and
2,800,000 RCPS in MCCL.

Further details on MCCL is set out in Appendix V of this Circular.
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SILS

SILS was incorporated in Malaysia on 24 December 1983 under the name Magat Dua Sdn Bhd.
It adopted its current name on 11 November 2016. SILS is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Swift
Haulage Sdn Bhd. The principal activities of SILS include investment holding and provision of
integrated logistics services, which include freight forwarding, warehousing, transportation and
repair and storage of containers and other value-added activities.

Swift Haulage Sdn Bhd is the sole shareholder of SILS. As at the LPD, the issued share capital
of SILS is as follows:

Issued share capital of SILS No. of shares RM
Ordinary shares 20,000,000 20,000,000
Redeemable convertible preference shares 332,849,000 332,849,000

As at the LPD, the directors of SILS are Dato’ Haji Md. Yusoff @ Mohd. Yusoff bin Jaafar, Loo
Yong Hui and Mohd Faishal bin Kassim.

RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSALS
Proposed GCT Acquisition

The Proposed GCT Acquisition provides a good opportunity for us to venture into the cold chain
logistics business. Our Board is of the view that our venture into the cold chain logistics market is
deem to be a suitable progression to further enhance our value chain in the provision of logistic
solutions given our track-record and vast experience in the fast-moving consumer goods and retail
industries and also our existing involvement in ambient warehousing, which primarily involve storing
products at room temperature such as electronics and electrical items, automotive parts, medical
devices and plastic resin.

GCT Group is one of the prominent cold chain logistics providers in Malaysia with an operational
track record of more than 20 years. GCT currently owns a sizeable fleet of 192 reefer trucks and
operates cold room warehouses in Shah Alam with a storage capacity of approximately 27,128
pallets. GCT’s customers are mostly large multinational corporations in the food industry.

The Proposed GCT Acquisition will enable us to venture into the cold chain logistics business with
the ready capabilities of GCT Group, the experience of its management team in terms of operating
in the cold chain logistics sector as well as the existing network and established clientele of GCT
Group.

Further, our Board is of the view that Proposed GCT Acquisition represents an expedient and
efficient platform for us to enter into the said niche market as opposed to setting up our own cold
chain logistics operations, which may require high capital and resources as well as effort for the
business to come on-stream.

Proposed Westport Acquisition

As disclosed in Section 3 of this Circular, the Proposed Westport Acquisition comprises the
Proposed MCCL Acquisition and the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition.

Similar to the Proposed GCT Acquisition, the Proposed MCCL Acquisition will provide us with
opportunity to venture into the cold chain logistics business. MCCL currently owns 3 reefer
containers and operates in 1 warehouse building located on PT 128574. The Proposed MCCL
Acquisition will enable us to have access to MCCL'’s existing business operations and its cold room
storage facility with a capacity of approximately 10,643 pallet space in Westport. In addition, the
warehouse building erected on PT 128571 will provide additional warehouse capacity to our
ambient warehousing segment and will cater to our Group’s intention to expand our ambient
warehousing segment. Meanwhile, the security control building erected on PT 128575 will continue
to function as the security control center for the premise.
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The Proposed MCCL Acquisition will enable us to efficiently scale up our cold chain logistics
capabilities after the completion of the Proposed GCT Acquisition. It is pertinent to note that we will
have a total cold room storage capacity of approximately 37,771 pallet space upon completion of
the Proposed GCT Acquisition and the Proposed MCCL Acquisition.

The Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition allows us to secure a sizeable landbank together with the
office building and warehouses erected thereon with close proximity to Port Klang (which has the
highest container throughput and handling in Malaysia) and is strategically located within the free
commercial zone in Westport, where we currently do not have presence in. Presently, Lot No. PT
128572, PT 128573 and PT 128576, totalling approximately 17.78 acres of the Subject Property 2
are still vacant and may be utilised to build additional warehouse facilities and/or provide ancillary
services should the need arise in the future. However, our Board has no immediate plans to build
additional warehouse facilities on the vacant lands as at this juncture as we intend to focus on the
cold chain logistics business.

Our Board is of the view that upon completion of the Proposed Westport Acquisition, we would be
able to enhance our warehousing services tailored to the needs of multinational corporations for
transshipment and for import and export.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
Overview and outlook of the global and Malaysian economy

In the first quarter of 2017, global economic activity expanded further with growth becoming more
synchronised across countries. Indicators such as the manufacturing purchasing managers’ index
(“PMI’) and trade growth showed a significant pick-up in economic activity. In particular, the
manufacturing PMI recorded the fastest rate of expansion in six years. Manufacturing activity was
supported by better performance across the consumer, intermediate and investment goods
sectors, suggesting a broad-based expansion in demand from consumers and businesses. Trade
for the Asian economies, including Korea, Chinese Taipei and Singapore, recorded double-digit
growth for the first time since 2011, supported mainly by the electrical & electronics and
commodities sectors.

The Malaysian economy recorded a higher growth of 5.6% in the first quarter of 2017 (4Q 2016:
4.5%). Private sector activity was higher and remained as the main driver of growth. Growth was
further lifted by higher exports, as increased demand for manufactured products led to a strong
growth in real exports (9.8%; 4Q 2016: 2.2%). Real imports also increased at a faster rate of 12.9%
(4Q 2016: 1.6%) on account of higher growth of capital and intermediate goods. On a quarter-on-
quarter seasonally-adjusted basis, the economy recorded a growth of 1.8% (4Q 2016: 1.3%).

Domestic demand growth increased to 7.7% in the first quarter of the year (4Q 2016: 3.2%),
supported by continued expansion in private sector expenditure (8.2%; 4Q 2016: 5.9%) and the
turnaround in public sector expenditure. Private consumption grew by 6.6% (4Q 2016: 6.1%).
Household spending remained supported by continued expansion in employment and wage
growth. The implementation of selected government measures, including the higher amount of
Bantuan Rakyat 1Malaysia cash transfers, also provided additional impetus to household spending.
Public consumption recorded a stronger growth of 7.5% (4Q 2016: -4.2%) attributed to higher
spending on both emoluments and supplies and services.
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On the supply side, most economic sectors expanded at a faster pace. The improvement in the
overall growth was contributed primarily by the turnaround in the agriculture sector and higher
growth in the manufacturing and services sectors. Growth in the agriculture sector rebounded as
crude palm oil yields recovered from the negative impact of El Nifio. The performance of the sector
was also supported by a double-digit expansion in rubber production. In the manufacturing sector,
growth was driven mainly by the electronics and electrical segment, in line with the continued
favourable global demand for semiconductors. The domestic-oriented industries were supported by
the continued demand for food-related products and a rebound in the motor vehicle production.
The services sector expanded at a faster pace in the first quarter. Growth in the wholesale and retail
sub-sector improved in line with higher household spending. The finance and insurance sub-sector
also registered higher growth, supported by improvements in loan growth and capital market activity
amid higher issuance of initial public offerings. Growth in the construction sector was stronger,
supported by civil engineering activity in the petrochemical, power plant and transportation
segments. In the mining sector, growth moderated on lower crude oil production, particularly in
Sarawak and Peninsular Malaysia, as part of the global initiative to reduce oil production.

Looking ahead, leading indicators such as the Department of Statistics Malaysia’s composite
leading index, Malaysian Institute of Economic Research’s (“MIER”) Business Conditions Index and
MIER Consumer Sentiments Index, point to continued expansion of the domestic economy. Private
consumption will be sustained by continued wage and employment growth, with additional lift
coming from various policy measures to raise disposable income. Investment activity is projected to
expand, driven mainly by the implementation of new and ongoing projects in the manufacturing and
services sectors. The stabilisation of commodity prices is also expected to lend support to
investment activity in the mining sector. On the external front, exports are expected to benefit from
the improvement in global growth, especially among Malaysia’s key trading partners. Overall, the
economy remains on track to expand as projected in 2017.

(Source: Economic and Financial Developments in the Malaysian Economy in the First Quarter of 2017, Quarterly
Bulletin, Bank Negara Malaysia)

The Malaysian economy is expected to expand between 4% and 5% in 2017 (2016: 4% - 4.5%)
with nominal Gross National Income per capita increasing 5% to RM39,699 (2016: 4.8%;
RM37,812). Economic growth will be underpinned by strong domestic demand, especially private
sector expenditure. Private sector activity will be supported by pro-growth fiscal and accommodative
monetary policies in an environment of stable inflation, which is projected to range between 2% and
3% (2016: 2%- 2.5%). Meanwhile, public sector expenditure will be driven mainly by higher capital
investment by public corporations.

(Source: Economic Report 2016/17, Ministry of Finance Malaysia)
Overview and outlook of the logistics sector

The transport and storage subsector increased 6.1% (Q1 2016: 5.9%) supported by high
freight activities as well as increase in highway operations. The land transport segment rose
6.8% (Q1 2016: 7.4%) driven by high trade-related activities. This was reflected by the
performance of Keretapi Tanah Melayu Berhad (“KTMB”) cargo tonnage which rebounded
3.4% to 1.53 million tonnes (Q1 2016: -2.9%; 1.48 million) following higher shipment of
maritime containers as well as cement and clinker. Traffic volume on tolled highways
rebounded 11.3% to 436.5 million vehicles (Q1 2016: -7.6%; 392.3 million) attributed to higher
usage during festivities. Meanwhile, the Electric Train Services ridership recorded a sustained
double-digit growth of 33.2% to 0.9 million passengers (Q1 2016: 94.9%; 0.7 million). The
KTMB intercity train services increased marginally by 0.7% to 687,800 passengers (Q1 2016:
71%; 683,121) following east coast intercity train service disruption due to floods and
landslides in Dabong, Kelantan.

The air transport segment grew 3.3% (Q1 2016: 2.3%) with total air cargo handled rebounding
5.3% to 217,714 tonnes (Q1 2016: -16.3%; 206,760 tonnes) with cargo to international
markets improving by 11.7% to 175,134 tonnes (Q1 2016: -20.5%; 156,851 tonnes) on
account of higher exports. Meanwhile, total air passenger traffic nationwide continued to
expand 11.2% to 24.3 million passengers (Q1 2016: 3.9%; 21.8 million).
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6.3.1

The water transport segment continued to record a moderate growth at 1.7% (Q1 2016:
1.5%). During the quarter, the total volume of containers handled at seven major ports
declined 1.7% to 5.9 million twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”) (Q1 2016: 6.4%; 6.1 million).
The slower performance was due to a decline in volume handled at Port of Tanjung Pelepas
by 7.5% to 2 million TEUs (Q1 2016: 3.1%; 2.2 million). However, the volume of containers
handled at Port Klang increased slightly by 0.9% to 3.23 million TEUs (Q1 2016: 8.6%; 3.19
million).

(Source: Quarterly Update on the Malaysian Economy — First Quarter 2017, Ministry of Finance Malaysia)

In the Eleventh Malaysia Plan (2016-2020) (“Plan”), logistics infrastructure will be developed by
focusing on the following key areas, namely, improving last-mile connectivity to Port Klang,
upgrading Padang Besar terminal, promoting modal shift from road to rail, improving cargo facilities
at airports and provision of parking facilities.

The last mile-connectivity to Port Klang by road and rail will be enhanced to cope with the increase
in container volume. Accessibility to ports will be improved to cater for bigger vessels by
undertaking channel deepening works. In addition, various port operators will undertake capacity
expansion works, which include building additional berths and wharfs as well as land reclamation.
These improvements will attract more international liners and mega vessels with capacities of
18,000 TEUs to call at the major ports.

Information and communications technology will be leveraged to provide seamless movement of
goods services to enhance logistics and trade facilitation as well as to facilitate e-commerce. Efforts
will be channeled towards providing timely traffic information to truck drivers, promoting virtual
selling platforms, develop fulfilment centres and encourage urban logistics.

In line with the aspiration to become an advanced economy and inclusive nation, the target is to
increase the contribution of the transport and storage subsector to Malaysia’s gross domestic
product from 3.6% to 4% by end of the Plan period. This entails the need for the subsector to grow
8.5% annually in order to achieve a contribution of RM55.8 billion. In terms of employment, the
transport and storage subsector is expected to generate an additional 146,000 jobs, which are
mainly high-skilled, by the end of 2020.

(Source: Eleventh Malaysia Plan, 2016-2020 — Economic Planning Unit)
Prospects of GCT Group, Subject Property 2, MCCL and our Group
GCT Group

The Proposed GCT Acquisition is a concerted effort by our Company to enter the cold chain
logistics business with its ready capabilities to cater its multinational customers’ needs and
also to serve a wide base of industries namely the food, pharmaceuticals and chemicals
segments. We believe that we can leverage on the established reputation and operational
track record of GCT Group of more than 20 years in the cold chain industry and its established
business relationship with its customers.

The Proposed GCT Acquisition is also earnings accretive as the GCT Group had been
profitable in the last 3 financial years and had recorded revenue of approximately RM77.2 million
and a PAT of approximately RM8.6 million for FYE 30 November 2016.

Premised on the above, our Board believes that the GCT Group will contribute positively to the
financial performance and profitability of our Group in near future and would complement the
aspirations of our Company to become one of the largest cold-chain logistics provider in Malaysia.

(Source: Management of TASCO)

27



6.3.2

6.3.3

MCCL and Subject Property 2

Leveraging on Yusen’s extensive network and the strategic location of Subject Property 2, our
Board is optimistic that MCCL will be able to attract more customers, both domestically and
internationally and will contribute positively to the financial and operational growth of our Group.

The Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition further provides our Group with access to
approximately 17.78 acres of landbank (“Unoccupied Land”), which could be utilised to build
additional warehouse facilities and/or provide ancillary services in future. However, our Board has
no immediate plans to build additional warehouse facilities on the Unoccupied Land as at this
juncture as we intend to focus on the cold chain logistics business.

Capitalising on the strategic location and accessibility of Subject Property 2, our Board believes that
we will be able to attract more customers, particularly multinational corporations for shipment of
goods. Our Board is confident that MCCL will contribute positively to our financial and operational
growth moving forward.

(Source: Management of TASCO)
Prospects of our Group

The Proposed GCT Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition will enable us to venture into the
cold chain logistics sector with ready capabilities and existing established clientele, network and
expertise in the cold chain logistics sector without having to incur additional capital to put both
businesses on-stream. Combining the existing capacity of GCT Group and MCCL, we will have a
cold room storage capacity of approximately 37,771 pallet space. Upon successful completion of
the Proposals, our Group expects to emerge as one of the largest cold chain logistics provider in
Malaysia in the coming years.

Our Board envisages that our Group will be well positioned to become a full-fledged logistics
solutions provider through the integration of the expertise and capabilities of GCT Group and MCCL
in the cold chain industry together with Yusen’s expertise and global network, particularly in the
international freight forwarding by air or ocean, contract logistics and transportation. Moving
forward, we believe that we can attract and secure more multinational corporations as our
customers and enhance our industry competitiveness by leveraging on the added capabilities in the
cold chain logistics through GCT Group and MCCL.

After the completion of the Proposals, our future plan is to integrate the businesses of our Group
with GCT Group and MCCL. The integration process will include amongst others, assimilating the
staff force of GCT Group and MCCL with our Group’s organizational and working structure and
retaining the key management of GCT Group and MCCL as their experience and know-how in the
cold chain logistics sector will ensure stability and continuity in our future cold chain logistics
business. Barring any delays on the completion of the Proposals, we expect that the integration
process will be completed within a year and we do not foresee any material financial resources to
be incurred arising from such integration. In addition, we believe that the successful implementation
of the integration process will expedite the synergistic benefits to be derived from the Proposals.

Premised on the above and the outlook of the logistics sector as set out in Section 6.2 of this
Circular, our Board believes that the Proposals are in line with our Company’s intention to
strengthen our current position as one of the leading logistics companies in Malaysia.

(Source: Management of TASCO)
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7.2

EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSALS

Share capital and substantial shareholders’ shareholdings

The Proposals will not have any effect on our issued share capital and the shareholdings of our
substantial shareholders as the Proposals do not involve any issuance of new shares in our
Company.

Earnings and EPS

The Proposals are expected to contribute positively to the future earnings of our Group for the
ensuing financial years arising from, amongst others, the earnings contributions and also potential
synergistic benefits from GCT Group and MCCL.

For illustrative purposes only, based on the latest audited consolidated financial statements of our
Group for the FYE 31 March 2017 and on the assumption that the Proposals had been effected on
1 April 2016 (being the date at the beginning of FYE 31 March 2017), the proforma effect of the
Proposals on the earnings and EPS of our Group is as follows:-

Proforma | Proforma Il
After Proforma | and
Audited as at 31 After the Proposed the Proposed
March 2017 GCT Acquisition Westport Acquisition
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
PAT attributable to shareholders
of TASCO 30,669 (28 129 ©17,769
Number of TASCO Shares as at
the LPD (‘000) 200,000 200,000 200,000
EPS (Sen) 15.33 14.06 8.88
Notes:-

(1)

After taking into consideration the following:-

PAT of approximately RM8.56 million based on the audited consolidated financial statements of GCT

The estimated interest cost of RM8.1 million, calculated based on the average borrowing rates of our
Company of approximately 4.50% per annum on the borrowings to be secured by TASCO amounting
to approximately RM180.0 million to fund the GCT Purchase Consideration; and

The estimated expenses pursuant to the Proposed GCT Acquisition of RM3.0 million.

LAT of approximately RMO0.06 million based on the audited financial statements of MCCL for the FYE

The estimated interest cost of RM6.3 million, calculated based on the average borrowing rates of our
Company of approximately 4.50% per annum on the borrowings to be secured by TASCO amounting
to approximately RM140.0 million to fund the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration and MCCL

0}
Group for the FYE 30 November 2016;
(ii)
(iii)
2 After taking into consideration the following:-
(0
31 December 2016;
(i)
Purchase Consideration; and
(iii)

The estimated expenses pursuant to the Proposed Westport Acquisition of RM4.0 million.
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NA and gearing

Based on the audited consolidated statement of financial position of our Group for the FYE 31
March 2017, the pro forma effects of the Proposals, which are provided for illustrative purposes only
assuming that the Proposals had been completed on that date, on the NA and gearing of our Group

are set out below:-

Proforma | Proformalll Proforma lll
After Proforma Il
After Proforma | and the
and the Proposed
Audited as at Proposed GCT Westport
31 March 2017 | Adjustments Acquisition Acquisition
(RM’000) (RM’000) (RM’000) (RM’000)
Share capital 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Share premium 801 801 801 801
Revaluation reserve 1,401 1,401 1,401 1,401
Hedge reserve (847) (847) (847) (847)
Exchange translation (766) (766) (766) (766)
reserve
Retained eamings 240,077 235,077 @232 ,077 ®loog 077
Shareholders’ funds/NA 340,666 335,666 332,666 328,666
Minority Interest 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059
Total Equity 341,724 336,725 333,725 329,725
Number of ordinary shares 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
('000)
NA per share (RM) 1.70 1.68 1.66 1.64
Cash or cash equivalents
(RM'000) 81,699 176,699 @®g3,329 ©1Gg0,289
Total debt 48,407 48,407 “280,797 420,797
Gearing (times) 0.14 0.14 0.84 1.28
Net borrowings (83,292) (28,292) 197,468 340,508
Net gearing (times)® (0.10) (0.08) 0.59 1.04
Notes:-
(1) After adjusting for single-tier final dividend of 2.5 sen, amounting to RM5,000,000 to be paid on 7 July 2017.
) For illustration purposes, assuming the estimated expenses pursuant to the Proposed GCT Acquisition
amounts to RM3.0 million.
3) After adjusting for total cash and cash equivalents in GCT amounting to RM9.63 million as at FYE 30
November 2016.
4) After taking into account of the following.-
(i) Total debt of GCT amounting to RM52.39 million as at FYE 30 November 2016; and
(ii) Assuming borrowings amounting to RM180.0 million was secured by our Company to fund the
Proposed GCT Acquisition.
(5) For illustration purposes, assuming the estimated expenses pursuant to the Proposed Westport Acquisition
amounts to RMA4.0 million.
(6) After adjusting for the total cash and cash equivalents in MCCL amounting to RMO0.96 million as at FYE 31
December 2016.
(7) Assuming debt financing of approximately RM140.0 million to fund the balance payment of the Pulau Indah
Purchase Consideration, MCCL Sale Shares consideration and settlement of Shareholder’s Loan.
8) Calculated based on the net borrowings divided by the shareholders’ fund/NA.
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8.1

8.2

8.3

RISK FACTORS
Non-completion risks of the Proposals

It is pertinent to note that the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition
are inter-conditional upon each other. As such, the non-completion of either one of the said
corporate exercises will result in the non-completion of the other and will consequently result in the
abortion of the Proposed Westport Acquisition. We take cognisance of the said risk and will
endeavour to take all the necessary steps to ensure both the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and
Proposed MCCL Acquisition are duly completed. For the avoidance of doubt, the Proposed GCT
Acquisition is not conditional upon the Proposed Westport Acquisition.

Nevertheless, it is pertinent to note that the completion of the Proposals are subject to the terms
and conditions set out in the GCT SPA, Pulau Indah SPA and MCCL SPA, some of which may be
beyond our control as they are dependent on the approval/consent by the relevant authorities and
our shareholders. There can be no assurance that such conditions will be obtained/fulfilled and/or
waived (as the case may be) by the relevant cut-off dates as stipulated in the respective
agreements. Hence, any delay in fuffilling these conditions may materially affect the Proposals from
being completed within the stipulated timeframe set out in the respective agreements.

Further, any delay in the completion of the Proposals will potentially delay or preclude us from
deriving any revenue or benefits from the Proposals. To mitigate such risks, our Board will
constantly monitor the fulfilment of these conditions as well as ensure that all the other relevant
terms and conditions of the respective agreements, which are within our Group’s control, are
obtained/fuffilled within the prescribed timeframe.

Business risks

In addition to the risk affecting ambient logistics business, the business of GCT Group and MCCL is
subject to additional risks inherent in the temperature-controlled logistics business, inter-alia,
electricity outage, cold chain equipment failure and mishandling by employees, which would result
in contamination or total write-off of cargo/ inventory due to the perishable nature of the cargo/
inventory.

Leveraging on the expertise of Yusen and our experience in the logistics industry, we will put in
place backup storage plans and stringent quality control and monitoring procedures, whether
manually or electronically, such as scheduled maintenance of the cold room equipment/ reefer
containers, installation of backup refrigeration system, real-time temperature and location reporting,
temperature logging, accurate labelling and packaging as well as employee training. We will also
ensure that our insurance coverage is adequate by conducting regular review on our assets and
insurance policies on a continuous basis.

Regulations and government policy risks

The Proposals are subject to a number of risks, including, without limitation, changes in regulations
or government policies such as licenses issued by Land Public Transportation Commission
Malaysia (SPAD), food safety regulations, and occupational safety and health requirements.
Changes in these regulations and/or government policies may further increase GCT Group’s and
MCCL'’s operating cost and expenses, such as increase in electricity costs, repair expenses to
modify the cold rooms and/or reefer trucks, increase in labour costs and increase in insurance
premium.

Nevertheless, we have adopted a proactive approach in keeping abreast with the changes in

regulations and government policies and will continue to implement necessary strategies in order to
minimise such risk.
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8.4

8.5

8.6

Financing risk

It is the intention of our Board to fund the balance of the GCT Purchase Consideration, Pulau Indah
Purchase Consideration and MCCL Purchase Consideration via bank borrowings.

For illustration purpose, taking into consideration the fundings of the GCT Purchase Consideration,
Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration and MCCL Purchase Consideration, our Group’s borrowings
will increase from approximately RM47.1 million as at the LPD to RM420.8 million upon completion
of the Proposals as set out in Section 7.3 of this Circular. Correspondingly, the gearing level of our
Group will also increase from 0.14 times to 1.28 times.

In view that the interest charged on bank borrowings is dependent on prevailing interest rates,
future fluctuation of interest rates could have an effect on our Group’s cash flows and profitability.
Nevertheless, our Board believes that with the additional cash flow generated from the GCT Group
and MCCL'’s operations, our Group would be able to manage its cash flow position and funding
requirements prudently to address the above risks.

Impairment of goodwill

Our Company will recognise goodwill from the Proposals, the amount of which will depend on the
fair value of GCT and MCCL post completion of the Proposals. According to Financial Reporting
Standards 136: Impairment of Assets, goodwill is required to be assessed for impairment annually if
events or circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the recoverable amount of a
cash generating unit (“CGU”) is less than its carrying amount. In the event the goodwill is not
supported by the projected cashflows of the CGU, there could be an impairment to the carrying
amounts of goodwill allocated to GCT and/or MCCL, which would result in an impairment expense
in the financial statements of our Group.

After the completion of the Proposals, our Board shall continuously monitor the future cashflows of
the GCT Group and MCCL to ensure that the goodwill is supported by its projected cashflows of the
CGU.

Investment risks

Our Board is of the view that the Proposals are expected to contribute positively to our future
financial performance. However, there is no assurance that the anticipated benefits of the
Proposals will be realised or that the Proposals will generate similar rate of returns as our existing
businesses.

We anticipate that we can mitigate such investment risks by undertaking thorough post-merger
integration on the operations of the new assets into our Group and to leverage on our strong
management expertise and track record to properly manage the operations of the entities to be
acquired, namely, GCT Group and MCCL.

APPROVALS REQUIRED

The Proposals are conditional upon approvals being obtained from the following:-

(a) the approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming EGM,;

(b) the approval from the relevant state authority for the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition;

(c) the approval from the Economic Planning Unit for the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition;
and

(d) any other relevant authorities/parties, if required.

The Proposed GCT Acquisition and the Proposed Westport Acquisition are not inter-conditional.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

The Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition are inter-conditional.

Save for the above, the Proposals are not conditional or inter-conditional upon any other corporate
exercises being or proposed to be undertaken by our Company.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND/OR PERSONS CONNECTED
TO THEM

None of the Directors, major shareholders of our Company and/or persons connected to them have
any interest, whether direct or indirect, in the Proposals.

CORPORATE EXERCISES ANNOUNCED BUT PENDING COMPLETION

Save for the Proposals (which are the subject matters of this Circular), our Board confirms
that there are no other outstanding corporate proposals announced by our Company but yet to
be completed as at the LPD.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

After taking into consideration all aspects of the Proposals (including but not limited to the
basis of deriving the GCT Purchase Consideration, Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration and
MCCL Purchase Consideration, the market value of properties as appraised by VPC, the
rationale for the Proposals, the prospects of GCT Group, Subject Property 2 and MCCL and
the financial effects of the Proposals), our Board is of the opinion that the Proposals are:-

(i) in the best interest of our Company;
(i) fair, reasonable and on normal commercial terms; and
(iii) not detrimental to the interest of the minority shareholders of our Company.

Accordingly, our Board recommends you, as a shareholder of TASCO, to vote in favour of the
resolutions pertaining to the Proposals to be tabled at our forthcoming EGM.
ESTIMATED TIMEFRAME FOR COMPLETION

Barring any unforeseen circumstances and subject to all requisite approvals being obtained, our
Board expects the Proposals to be completed by the end of 2017.

The tentative timetable for the implementation of the Proposals is set out below:-

Month Event
29 June 2017 * EGM
Mid July 2017 *  Fulfilment of all conditions precedent in relation to the GCT SPA

*  Payment for the balance of the GCT Purchase Consideration
*  Completion of the Proposed GCT Acquisition
End November 2017

Fulfilment of all conditions precedent in relation to the Pulau Indah SPA
and MCCL SPA

* Payment for the balance of the Pulau Indah Purchase Consideration
and MCCL Purchase Consideration

*  Completion of the Proposed Westport Acquisition
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14. EGM

The EGM will be held at TASCO Berhad, Lot No.1A, Persiaran Jubli Perak, Jalan 22/1,
Seksyen 22, 40300 Shah Alam, Selangor on Thursday, 29 June 2017 at 3.00 p.m., or at any
adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing with or without
modification, the resolutions to give effect to the Proposals.

If you are unable to attend and vote in person at the EGM, you are requested to complete,
sign and return the enclosed Form of Proxy in accordance with the instructions contained
therein, to be deposited at the registered office of our Company at 802, ghn Floor, Block C,
Kelana Square, 17 Jalan SS7/26, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor not less than 48 hours
before the time and date stipulated for holding the EGM or at any adjournment thereof. The
Form of Proxy should be completed strictly in accordance with the instruction contained
therein. The lodging of the Form of Proxy shall not preclude you from attending and voting in
person at the EGM should you subsequently wish to do so.

15. FURTHER INFORMATION

You are advised to refer to the appendices set out in this Circular for further information.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of our Board
TASCO BERHAD

LIM JEW KIAT
Managing Director
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APPENDIX |

SALIENT TERMS OF THE GCT SPA

The salient terms of the GCT SPA are, amongst others, set out below:-

1.

NTA Undertaking

(@)

(b)

The GCT Vendors undertake to TASCO that the consolidated NTA of the GCT Group
in the audited consolidated balance sheet of the GCT Group as at 31 March 2017
(“Period Management Accounts”) shall increase by not less than RM2,500,000
compared to the consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the Audited FYE 30
November 2016 of RM46.72 million.

The parties to the GCT SPA acknowledge that the computation of the consolidated NTA
shall be prepared and reviewed by the independent auditors jointly appointed by the
GCT Vendors and TASCO. The independent auditors shall then issue a letter
addressed to the parties of GCT SPA confirming the consolidated NTA of the GCT
Group as at 31 March 2017 (“Independent Auditors’ Confirmation”).

In the event the increase in consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the Period
Management Accounts (“Actual NTA”) is an amount which is less than RM2,500,000
and provided that the consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the Period Management
Accounts has not decreased compared to the consolidated NTA in the Audited FYE 30
November 2016, the GCT Vendors shall within 5 business days of the date of receipt of
the Independent Auditors’ Confirmation pay to GCT an amount equal to the difference
between RM2,500,000 and the Actual NTA, subject to a maximum of RM2,500,000.

In the event the consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the Period Management
Accounts has decreased compared to the consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the
Audited FYE 30 November 2016 (“NTA Reduction”), the parties to GCT SPA shall
enter into good faith negotiations to decide, within 10 business days or such longer
period as the parties to GCT SPA may agree (“NTA Reduction Discussion Period”),
on how to resolve the NTA Reduction by mutual agreement of both parties. In the event
both parties are unable to agree on how to resolve the NTA Reduction, TASCO shall be
entitled (but not obliged) to terminate the GCT SPA by giving written notice to the GCT
Vendors within 5 business days from the expiry of the NTA Reduction Discussion Period.

In the event TASCO elects to terminate the GCT SPA pursuant to Section 1(d) above,
the GCT Vendors shall refund the deposit free of interest, to TASCO and the GCT SPA
shall automatically terminate in the manner as set out in the GCT SPA.

In the event the increase in consolidated NTA of the GCT Group in the Period
Management Accounts is an amount which is more than RM2,500,000, the amount in
excess of RM2,500,000 shall be utilised to set off against any claims against the GCT
Vendors arising from breaches of the warranties as set out in the GCT SPA.

Termination / Specific Performance

(@)

TASCO shall be entitled to issue a notice of termination to the GCT Vendors if, at any
time prior to the completion date of GCT SPA:

(i) the GCT Vendors commit any continuing or material breach of any of their
obligations under the GCT SPA which either:

(A) is incapable of remedy; or

(B) if capable of remedy, is not remedied within 30 days of being given
notice to do so; or

35



APPENDIX |

SALIENT TERMS OF THE GCT SPA (Cont’d)

(ii) any of the vendors’ warranties given by the GCT Vendors when given or will or
would on the date of the GCT SPA and/or on completion date of GCT SPA be
untrue in any material and adverse respect.

The GCT Vendors shall be entitled to issue a notice of termination to TASCO if, at any
time prior to the completion date of GCT SPA:

(i) TASCO commits any continuing or material breach of any of its obligations
under the SPA which either:

(A) is incapable of remedy; or

(B) if capable of remedy, is not remedied within 30 days of being given
notice to do so; or

(i) any of the warranties given by TASCO was when given or will or would on the
date of the GCT SPA and/or on completion date of GCT SPA be untrue in any
material and adverse respect.

For the avoidance of doubt, in the event the GCT SPA is terminated by the GCT
Vendors in accordance with Section 2(b) of this Appendix, the GCT Vendors shall be
entitled absolutely and shall retain the initial deposit free of interest, as agreed liquidated
damages.

In the event any party refuses to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA before the completion date of GCT SPA (otherwise than by reason of termination in
accordance with other provisions of the GCT SPA), the following shall apply:

(i) Vendors’ refusal to complete:

(A) In the event the GCT Vendors give written notice to TASCO of their
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA before the payment by TASCO of the balance deposit, the GCT
Vendors shall, within 5 business days from the date of their written
notice, refund the initial deposit free of interest, to TASCO and pay to
TASCO an amount equal to the initial deposit as agreed liquidated
damages; or

(B) In the event the GCT Vendors give written notice to TASCO of their
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA after the payment by TASCO of the balance deposit but before
all the conditions precedent of GCT SPA are fulfilled (other than the
condition precedent as set out in Section 2.1.1(a)(i) of this Circular),,
the GCT Vendors shall, within 5 Business Days from the date of their
written notice, refund the deposit free of interest, to TASCO and pay
TASCO an amount equal to 50% of the deposit as agreed liquidated
damages; or

©) In the event the GCT Vendors give written notice to TASCO of their
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA after the fulfiiment of all the conditions precedent of GCT SPA
but before completion, the GCT Vendors shall, within 5 business days
from the date of their written notice, refund the deposit free of interest,
to TASCO and pay to TASCO an amount equal to the deposit as
agreed liquidated damages,

and thereafter, the GCT SPA shall terminate in accordance to the GCT SPA.
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SALIENT TERMS OF THE GCT SPA (Cont’d)

(ii) Purchaser’s refusal to complete:

(A) In the event TASCO gives written notice to the GCT Vendors of its
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA before the payment by TASCO of the balance deposit, the GCT
Vendors shall be entitled absolutely and shall retain the initial deposit
free of interest, as agreed liquidated damages; or

(B) In the event TASCO gives written notice to the GCT Vendors of its
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA after the payment by TASCO of the balance deposit but before
all the conditions precedent of GCT SPA are fulfilled (other than the
condition precedent as set out in Section 2.1.1(a)(i) of this Circular),
the GCT Vendors shall within 5 business days from the date of
TASCO’s written notice, deduct from the deposit an amount equal to
50% of the deposit and retain the same as agreed liquidated
damages and refund the remainder of the deposit free of interest, to
TASCO; or

©) In the event TASCO gives written notice to the GCT Vendors of its
refusal to proceed with the transaction contemplated under the GCT
SPA after the fulfilment of all the conditions precedent of GCT SPA
but before completion, the GCT Vendors shall be entitled to retain the
deposit free of interest, as agreed liquidated damages,

and thereafter, the GCT SPA shall terminate in accordance to the GCT SPA.

Subject to the provisions of the GCT SPA, the parties shall be at liberty to take such
action in law as may be necessary to compel the defaulting party by way of specific
performance to complete the transaction contemplated under the GCT SPA or to
claim damages for the breach of the defaulting party.

3. Warranties

(@)

The GCT Vendors warrant to TASCO that each of the vendors’ warranties contained
in Schedule 2 of the GCT SPA are and will be true and correct on the date of the GCT
SPA and shall continue to be true and correct on completion date of GCT SPA.

TASCO acknowledges and agrees that the GCT Vendors give no warranty,
representation or undertaking in relation to:

(i) any of the forecasts, estimates, projections, statements of intent or
statements of opinion provided to TASCO or any of its advisers or agents
save for Section 2.1.2(a) of this Circular and Section 1 of Appendix 1 to this
Circular; and

(ii) the ability of GCT to continue to enjoy any tax benefits and exemptions after
completion pursuant to the Pioneer Status awarded to GCT by the Malaysian
Investment Development Authority.

Each of the warranties given by TASCO as set out in the GCT SPA is separate and
shall be construed independently of the others and shall not be limited by reference to
any of the others or by any of the provisions contained in the GCT SPA. TASCO shall
write to notify GCT Vendors as soon as reasonably practicable in the event TASCO
becomes aware of any event which may result in any of such warranties being
unfulfilled, untrue, misleading or incorrect in any material respect.
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SALIENT TERMS OF THE GCT SPA (Cont’d)

(d)

Each of the warranties given by the GCT Vendors as set out in the GCT SPA is
separate and shall be construed independently of the others and shall not be limited
by reference to any of the others or by any of the provisions contained in the GCT
SPA. The GCT Vendors shall write to notify TASCO as soon as reasonably
practicable in the event the GCT Vendors becomes aware of any event which may
result in any of such warranties being unfulfilled, untrue, misleading or incorrect in any
material respect.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX Il

SALIENT TERMS OF THE PULAU INDAH SPA

The salient terms of the Pulau Indah SPA are, amongst others, set out below:-

1.

No Termination during the Conditional Period

The parties hereby undertake with each other that neither party shall without the consent of
the party, at any time during the conditional period terminate the Pulau Indah SPA save and
except as provided under the Pulau Indah SPA.

Default by the Vendor

In the event SILS fails to complete the sale of the Subject Property 2 in any way or in the event
of any breach by SILS of any of the material terms of the Pulau Indah SPA, TASCO shall be
entitled to:-

(a) seek the remedy of specific performance of the Pulau Indah SPA against SILS to
compel SILS to complete the sale of Subject Property 2 to TASCO in accordance with
the provisions of the Pulau Indah SPA;

(b) alternatively, at TASCQO's option, terminate the Pulau Indah SPA by written notice to
SILS in which event SILS shall, within seven (7) days from its receipt of the notice,
refund to TASCO all sums paid by and on behalf of TASCO towards the purchase
price under the Pulau Indah SPA and further pay to TASCO a sum equivalent to 10%
of the purchase price as agreed liquidated damages free of interest, failing which
SILS shall pay TASCO interest at the rate of 8% per annum on daily basis on all of the
aforesaid unpaid monies or such part thereof outstanding from the expiry of the
aforementioned period to the receipt of the aforementioned sum by TASCO.

Default by the Purchaser

In the event TASCO fails to pay the balance purchase price in accordance with the provisions
of the Pulau Indah SPA or in the event of any breach by TASCO of any of the terms of the
Pulau Indah SPA, SILS shall be entitled to the remedy of specific performance against
TASCO to compel TASCO to complete the purchase of the Subject Property 2 from SILS in
accordance with the provisions of the Pulau Indah SPA.

Vacant Possession

(a) The legal possession for PT 128574 (subject to the existing Tenancy Agreement) shall be
deemed delivered by SILS to TASCO on the day failing upon expiry of 7 days from the
date of full payment of the balance purchase price to SILS’ solicitors as stakeholder
together with any late payment interest (if any) (“VP Date”) and TASCO shall be entitled to
collect the monthly rental from the MCCL, being the tenant commencing from the VP Date;
and

(b) the vacant possession of PT 128571, PT 128572, PT 128573, PT 128575 and PT 128576
on "as is where is" basis together with the furniture, fixtures, fittings and building(s) erected
thereon (fair wear and tear excepted) shall be delivered to TASCO on the VP Date, failing
which SILS shall pay late delivery interest at the rate of 8.0% per annum on the purchase
price calculated on a daily basis from the VP Date until the date of actual delivery of vacant
possession of Subject Property 2 together with the furniture, fixtures, fittings and building(s)
erected thereon (fair wear and tear excepted) to TASCO.
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5. Representations and Warranties

(@)

(b)

SILS hereby represents and warrants to TASCO the warranties as set out in the
Pulau Indah SPA.

TASCO hereby represents and warrants to SILS that:-

() TASCO has full power and capacity to sell, execute, deliver and perform the
terms of the Pulau Indah SPA; and

(ii) TASCO has not been wound up nor subject to any winding up petition.

If any such representation and warranties be found to have been untrue, incorrect or
inaccurate in any material respect and was made by any party knowingly and/or
willingly, the other party shall have the right to terminate the Pulau Indah SPA in the
manner as set out in the Pulau Indah SPA.
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The salient terms of the MCCL SPA are, amongst others, set out below:-

1.

1.1

1.2

Completion and post completion obligation

Completion

(@)

©

Completion shall take place at TASCO’s office on any date falling within the completion
period or any extended completion period, subject to the fulfiiment (or waiver) of the
conditions precedent of MCCL SPA.

In the event TASCO fail to pay the balance MCCL Sale Shares consideration or fully settle
the Shareholder’s Loan within the completion period, TASCO shall be granted an extended
period to pay the balance MCCL Sale Shares consideration and the Shareholder’s Loan,
together with accrued interest calculated in the manner as set out in the MCCL SPA.

SILS’ solicitors shall deliver and release all documents as set out in the MCCL SPA to
TASCO on the completion date of MCCL SPA.

Post completion obligation

(@)

()

Notwithstanding the completion, SILS undertakes with TASCO that it shall not during a
period of 1 year commencing on completion, directly, indirectly employ, solicit or encourage
any person who is for the past 12 months from the date of the MCCL SPA been a senior
management of MCCL to leave his or her current employment or consultancy.

Notwithstanding the completion, TASCO undertakes with SILS that it shall procure MCCL
to continue to employ all of its employees, in employment (permanent or on contract) as at
the date of the MCCL SPA, on terms and conditions that are no less favourable than the
existing terms and conditions, including but not limited to employment benefits and with no
loss of seniority in respect of such employee’s respective tenures with MCCL for a period
until 24 October 2017.

Termination / Specific Performance

(@)

(b)

The parties agree that in the event any party materially breaches any of such party’s
obligations under the MCCL SPA, the non-defaulting party shall serve a written notice to
the defaulting party specifying the breach and requiring the defaulting party to remedy such
breach within 30 days from the date of such notice or such other period as may be
mutually agreed between the parties in writing.

TASCO shall be entitled to issue a notice of termination to SILS if, at any time prior to the
completion date of MCCL SPA:

(i) SILS and/or MCCL commits any continuing or material breach of any of its
obligations under the MCCL SPA which either:

(A) is incapable of remedy; or
(B) if capable of remedy, is not remedied within 30 days of being given notice
to do so; or
(if) any of the warranties and/or disclosures given by SILS and/or MCCL is found at

any time to be materially untrue.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the MCCL SPA, TASCO shall be at liberty to compel

SILS by way of specific performance to complete the transaction contemplated in the
MCCL SPA or to claim damages for the breach of SILS.
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(d)

(€)

(@)

()

c)

(h)

In the event TASCO fails to pay the balance MCCL Sale Shares consideration or the
Shareholder's Loan or in the event of any breach by TASCO of any of the terms of the
MCCL SPA, SILS shall be entitled to compel TASCO by way of specific performance to
complete the transaction contemplated in the MCCL SPA.

The parties agree that in the event the MCCL SPA is terminated:

(i) TASCO’s solicitors shall refund the 3% RPGT Retention Sum to TASCO in the
manner as set out in the MCCL SPA;

(ii) SILS shall refund the sum of RM694,757, being 7% of the MCCL Sale Shares
consideration to TASCO free of interest within 14 days from such termination; and

(iii) all documents deposited by the party with the other party and/or the other party's
solicitors shall be returned and/or cause to be returned to the party with its interest
therein remains intact.

Limitation on Warranties

TASCO shall not be entitled to make a claim in respect of any breach of any of the
warranties if the fact, matter, event or circumstance giving rise to such breach was
disclosed in the audited accounts of MCCL as at 31 December 2015 or management
accounts of MCCL as at 30 November 2016;

TASCO shall not be entitled to make a claim in respect of any breach of any of the
warranties if the fact, matter, event or circumstance giving rise to such breach was made
aware during the course or in relation to the due diligence exercise conducted in respect of
MCCL by or on behalf of TASCO;

TASCO shall not be entitled to make a claim in respect of any breach of any of the
warranties in relation to any fact, where that fact has been disclosed in writing or in any
written document which has been provided by SILS to TASCO prior to the date of the
MCCL SPA;

TASCO shall not be entitled to make a claim in respect of any document which has been
filed by or on behalf of the MCCL with any governmental or quasi-governmental authority
such that the said document is available for inspection by the pubilic;

no claim may be made in respect of any one matter arising under the warranties by
TASCO on more than one account or for any loss arising from breaches of warranties in
the MCCL SPA to the extent that any such loss is or will be recovered or recoverable under
a policy of insurance in force at the date of such loss;

no claim shall be made against SILS in respect of any of the warranties, covenants or
undertakings arising out of or in connection with the MCCL SPA except where such
warranties, covenants or undertakings are expressly contained or incorporated in the
MCCL SPA;

SILS shall be under no liability whatsoever under the warranties in respect of any and all
matters resulting from a change in accounting or taxation policy or practice of MCCL,
including the method of submission of taxation returns, introduced since or having effect
after the completion date of MCCL SPA;

SILS shall not be liable under the warranties to the extent that any breach thereof or liability
thereunder occurs as a result of change of law or administrative practice which takes effect
retrospectively or occurs as a result of any increase in the rates of taxation in force at the
date of the MCCL SPA;
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(i)

SILS shall not be liable in respect of any claim by TASCO based upon a liability which is
contingent only, unless and until such contingent liability becomes an actual liability and is
adjudged to be due and payable;

SILS shall not be liable to the extent as sellers of the MCCL Sale Shares in respect of any
matter, act or circumstance that arises from an act or event occurring after completion;

SILS shall have no liability for any claim for breach of warranties unless TASCO has given
SILS written notice of such claim on or before:

(i) 23 October 2017; or

(ii) the expiry date of the period (or any agreed extended period thereof) of which
Swift Haulage Sdn Bhd (Company No. 533234-V) (hereinafter called “SHSB”) is
entitled to make a claim for breach of similar warranties against MISC Berhad
(Company No. 8178-H) (hereinafter called “MISCB”) under the Agreement for
Sale and Purchase of Shares dated 9 May 2016 entered into between MISCB and
SHSB.

whichever is later.

the maximum aggregate amount which TASCO may recover from SILS in respect of all
claims against SILS for any breach of any of the warranties, including (without limitation) in
respect of all contingent liabilities, taxes, duties, fines, penalties, and dues to Malaysian and
non-Malaysian regulatory authorities in relation to any cause of action arising prior to the
completion is RM500,000 only (any claim in excess of which TASCO waives).
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON GCT

1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS

GCT was incorporated in Malaysia on 25 June 1998 and having its registered address at No. 3,
Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, Seksyen 32, Taman Berjaya Park, 40460 Shah Alam, Selangor.

GCT is principally involved in the business of transportation, cold room storage facilities,
repackaging and value added facilities. GCT Group currently owns 189 reefer trucks and
operates in its warehousing facilities, comprising of 4 cold storage warehouse buildings located
in Shah Alam, with a total storage capacity of approximately 27,128 pallets. GCT Group has
developed into a full-fledged chilled and frozen food transporter and is one of the largest cold
chain logistics players in Malaysia in terms of storage capacity size.

At present, GCT’s clientele includes companies from fast-moving consumer goods, food and

pharmaceutical industry. The range of products under GCT’s storage include amongst others,
frozen foods, dairy and confectionary products and pharmaceutical items.

2. SHARE CAPITAL
As at the LPD, the issued share capital of GCT is RM2,000,000 comprising 2,000,000 GCT Shares
(excluding any credit in share premium and capital reserve).

3. SHAREHOLDERS

As at the LPD, the shareholders of GCT are as follows:-

. . Direct shareholdings Indirect shareholdings

Shareholders of GCT Nationality No. of shares % | No. of shares %
Chang Kok Fai Malaysian 999,998 *50.0 ('1)2 #
Chan Sun Cheong Malaysian 999,998 *50.0 @2 #
Minority Shareholders:
Chang Lai Wah Malaysian 1 # -
Chang Lai Mun Malaysian 1 # -
Chan Teng Fung Malaysian 1 # - -
Lum Yuet Quey Malaysian 1 # - -

Notes:-

* Rounded up.

# Negligible.

(1) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and sister in GCT.

) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and child in GCT.

4, DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S SHAREHOLDINGS

As at the LPD, the details of the directors of GCT and their respective shareholdings in GCT
are as follows:-

Direct shareholdings Indirect shareholdings
Directors Nationality No. of shares % | No. of shares %
Chang Kok Fai Malaysian 999,998 *50.0 o #
Chan Sun Cheong Malaysian 999,998 *50.0 @ #
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Notes:-

* Rounded up.

(1) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and sister in GCT.
) Deemed interested by virtue of the direct interest held by his spouse and child in GCT.
# Negligible.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As at the LPD, GCT has 1 subsidiary company, details of which are set out below:-

Date / Place of Issued share Equity
Company incorporation capital interest | Principal activities
GC Logistics Sdn 12 July 2001 / RM250,000 100% Rendering of
Bhd Malaysia comprising transportation, cold room
(Company No. 250,000 ordinary storage facilities,
553099-H) shares repackaging and value
added facilities

As at the LPD, GCT does not have any associate companies.

6. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

As at the LPD, GCT has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered
into in the ordinary course of business) within the 2 years immediately preceding the LPD.

7. MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, the directors of GCT are not aware of any material commitments incurred or
known to be incurred, which upon becoming enforceable may have a material impact on the
financial results/position of GCT Group.

As at the LPD, the directors of GCT are not aware of any contingent liabilities incurred or
known to be incurred, which upon becoming enforceable may have a material impact on the
financial results/position of GCT Group.

8. MATERIAL LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND ARBITRATION

As at the LPD, GCT Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration,
either as a plaintiff or defendant, and the directors of GCT are not aware of and do not have
any knowledge of any proceedings pending or threatened against GCT Group, or of any facts
likely to give rise to any proceedings, which might materially or adversely affect the financial
position or business of GCT Group.
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9.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF GCT GROUP

The summary of the financial information of GCT Group for the past three (3) financial years up to

the FYE 30 November 2016:-

< Audited >
FYE 30 November

2014 2015 2016

(RM) (RM) (RM)
Revenue 57,400,928 67,024,254 77,151,828
PBT 6,068,956 9,569,983 10,946,709
PAT 4,520,565 6,835,829 8,555,650
Issued share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Gross EPS (RM) 6.22 9.13 9.71
Net EPS (sen) 2.26 3.42 4.28
Shareholders’ equity / NA 36,638,085 41,473,914 46,716,064
NA per share (RM) 18.32 20.74 23.36
Current ratio (times) 1.01 1.08 1.12
Total interest-bearing borrowings 57,693,690 54,740,145 52,391,418
Gearing (times) 1.57 1.32 1.12

GCT Group has not adopted any accounting policies which are peculiar to its operation and
have any significant effect on the financial performance or position of GCT Group for the past 3
years up to FYE 30 November 2016. There were no audit qualifications reported and
exceptional or extraordinary item recorded for the audited financial years under review.

(Source: Audited consolidated financial statements of GCT Group)

Commentaries on past financial performance:-

FYE 30 November 2014 as compared to FYE 30 November 2013

GCT Group recorded a decrease in revenue of RM3.26 million, or approximately 5.4% to
RM57.40 million for the FYE 30 November 2014 as compared to RM60.66 million for the FYE 30
November 2013. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to discontinuation of business with
one customer for transportation business. Similarly, GCT Group recorded a PBT of RM6.07
million for the FYE 30 November 2014 as compared to PBT of RM6.58 million for the FYE 30
November 2013, representing a decrease of approximately 7.8% or RM0.51 million. The
decrease in PBT was mainly attributable to higher pre-operating expenses incurred for a new
warehouse at No.1, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/37, Berjaya Industrial Park (“Phase 4”).

FYE 30 November 2015 as compared to FYE 30 November 2014

GCT Group recorded an increase in revenue of RM9.62 million, or approximately 16.8% to
RM67.02 million for the FYE 30 November 2015 as compared to RM57.40 million for the FYE 30
November 2014. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the operation of an additional new
warehouse (Phase 4) completed during the year. GCT Group recorded a PBT of RM9.57 million
for the FYE 30 November 2015 as compared to PBT of RM6.07 million for the FYE 30
November 2014, representing an increase of approximately 57.7% or RM3.50 million. The
improvement in PBT was mainly attributed to higher contribution derived from the additional
pallet space in the new warehouse (Phase 4) which has resulted in better absorption of overall
fixed overhead costs.
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FYE 30 November 2016 as compared to FYE 30 November 2015

GCT Group recorded an increase in revenue of RM10.13 million, or approximately 15.1% to
RM77.15 million for the FYE 30 November 2016 as compared to RM67.02 million for the FYE 30
November 2015. The revenue from the transportation business improved as GCT Group
secured more business from its customers and had a favourable pricing revision with certain
customers during the financial year. Similarly, GCT Group recorded a PBT of RM10.95 million for
the FYE 30 November 2016 as compared to PBT of RM9.57 million for the FYE 30 November
2015, representing an increase of approximately 14.4% or RM1.38 million. The increase in PBT
was mainly attributable to higher contribution from the higher revenue.

(Source: Management of GCT)
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1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS

MCCL was incorporated in Malaysia on 7 June 2006 under the name MILS-Seafrigo Sdn Bhd. It
changed its name from MILS-Seafrigo Sdn Bhd to its current name on 24 July 2013. The
principal place of business is located at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian
Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor and having its registered address at Unit 206,
ond Floor, Wisma Methodist, Lorong Hang Jebat, 50150 Kuala Lumpur.

MCCL commenced its business operation on 1 July 2011 and is principally involved in the
business of cold and chill storage services, cold chain logistics solutions and related services to
customers. MCCL currently owns 3 reefer containers and operates in 1 warehouse building
located on PT 128574 with a capacity of 10,643 pallet space in the multiple temperature-
controlled storage facility.

At present, MCCL'’s clientele includes companies from the fast-moving consumer goods and fast
food industry. The range of products under MCCL’s storage include amongst others, frozen
foods, fruits and dairy products.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the LPD, the issued share capital of MCCL are as follows:-

Share capital of MCCL No. of shares @RM
Ordinary shares 3,000,000 3,000,000
RcPs' 2,800,000 280,000
Notes:-
(1) The salient terms of the RCPS are as follows:-
Dividend : Non-cumulative at net 5% per annum. The dividend payment will be at the option of
the issuer
Redemption Redeemable at the option of the issuer at the nominal value of RMO0.10 and premium
of RM9.90 each at any time
Redemption  : One (1) month notice in writing shall be given by MCCL of its intention to redeem the
Notice RCPS and fixing the time and place for the redemption and surrender the RCPS to
be redeemed
Conversion One (1) month notice in writing shall be given to MCCL to convert the RCPS into
ordinary shares

Subject to the passing of the relevant ordinary resolution of MCCL and without prejudice to any special
rights previously conferred on the existing MCCL’s shareholder(s) and RCPS holder(s), the rights of the
RCPS holder(s) with respect to repayment of capital, participation in surplus assets and profits, voting and
priority of payment of capital and dividend will be determined by the board of MCCL.

For information purposes, the conversion rate and period of the RCPS will also be determined by the board of
MCCL and the tenure of the RCPS is perpetual.

@ Excluding any credit in share premium and capital reserve.

3. SHAREHOLDERS

As at the LPD, SILS is the sole shareholder of MCCL, holding all 3,000,000 MCCL Shares and
2,800,000 RCPS in MCCL.
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4. DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S SHAREHOLDINGS

As at the LPD, the details of the directors of MCCL and their respective shareholdings in
MCCL are as follows:-

Direct Indirect
No. of MCCL No. of MCCL
Name Nationality Shares (%) Shares (%)
Loo Yong Hui Malaysian - - 420,000 14
Kee Chung Ching Malaysian - - - -
Note:-
(1) Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in SILS pursuant to Section 8 of the Act.
5. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As at the LPD, MCCL does not have any subsidiaries or associate companies.

6. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

As at the LPD, MCCL has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered
into in the ordinary course of business) within the 2 years immediately preceding the LPD.

7. MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, the directors of MCCL are not aware of any material commitments incurred or
known to be incurred, which upon becoming enforceable may have a material impact on the
financial results/position of MCCL.

As at the LPD, the directors of MCCL are not aware of any contingent liabilities incurred or
known to be incurred, which upon becoming enforceable may have a material impact on the
financial results/position of MCCL.

8. MATERIAL LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND ARBITRATION

As at the LPD, MCCL is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration, either as a
plaintiff or defendant, and the directors MCCL are not aware of and do not have any
knowledge of any proceedings pending or threatened against MCCL, or of any facts likely to
give rise to any proceedings, which might materially or adversely affect the financial position or
business of MCCL.
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9.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF MCCL

The summary of the financial information of MCCL for the past 3 financial years up to the FYE 31
December 2016 is as follows:-

< Audited >
FYE 31 December

2014 2015 2016

(RM) (RM) (RM)
Revenue 12,566,374 12,640,271 9,170,366
PBT/(LBT) 1,111,781 1,585,313 (36,074)
PAT/(LAT) 1,111,781 1,603,312 (59,826)
Issued share capital 3,280,000 3,280,000 3,280,000
Gross EPS (RM) 1.12 1.39 0.70
Net EPS (RM) 0.37 0.53 (0.02)
Shareholders’ equity /NA 13,738,626 15,341,937 15,282,111
NA per share (RM) 4.58 5.11 5.09
Current ratio (times) 1.36 0.98 0.69
Total interest-bearing borrowings 23,999,907 23,999,907 19,999,907
Gearing (times) 175 156 131

MCCL has not adopted any accounting policies which are peculiar to its operation and have
any significant effect on the financial performance or position of MCCL for the past 3 years up
to FYE 31 December 2016. There were no audit qualifications reported and exceptional or
extraordinary item recorded for the audited financial years under review.

(Source: Audited financial statements of MCCL)
Commentaries on past financial performance:-

FYE 31 December 2014 as compared to FYE 31 December 2013

MCCL recorded an increase in revenue of RM4.08 million, or approximately 48.1% to RM12.57
million for the FYE 31 December 2014 as compared to RM8.48 miillion for the FYE 31 December
2013. The increase in revenue was mainly due to revision in storage price in conjunction with
increase in electricity tariff and additional storage volume from their primary clients as well as
higher activity in forwarding and haulage. Similarly, MCCL recorded a PBT of RM1.11 million for
the FYE 31 December 2014 as compared to LBT of RM3.1 million for the FYE 31 December
2013, representing an increase of approximately 135.8% or RM4.22 million. The increase in PBT
was mainly attributable to higher revenue and lower interest expense after conversion of inter-
company loan (with outstanding principal of RM28 million) into RCPS which took effect in
January 2014.

FYE 31 December 2015 as compared to FYE 31 December 2014

MCCL recorded an increase in revenue of RM0.07 million, or approximately 0.6% to RM12.64
million for the FYE 31 December 2015 as compared to RM12.57 million for the FYE 31
December 2014. The increase in revenue was mainly due to additional storage volume from
their primary clients and higher activity in forwarding and haulage. MCCL recorded a PBT of
RM1.59 million for the FYE 31 December 2015 as compared to PBT of RM1.11 million for the
FYE 31 December 2014, representing an increase of approximately 42.6% or RM0.47 million.
The improvement in PBT was mainly due to lower operating cost by RM0.74 million but is offset
by increase in forex losses.
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FYE 31 December 2016 as compared to FYE 31 December 2015

MCCL recorded a revenue of RM9.17 million for the FYE 31 December 2016, as compared to
the revenue of RM12.64 million recorded for the FYE 31 December 2015, representing a
decrease in revenue by RM3.47 million or approximately 27.5%. This is mainly due to effects of
lower inventory level from their primary clients in the first half of 2016. The shrinking stock level
was to counter measure against the fluctuation of exchange rate against the United States
Dollar. Similarly, MCCL recorded a PBT of RM0.04 million for the FYE 31 December 2016,
translating into a decrease of approximately 102.3% as compared to PBT of RM1.59 million for
the FYE 31 December 2015, mainly as a result of lower revenue from storage and forwarding
activities. The decrease in PBT was also attributable to the insufficient revenue generated to
offset the overall fixed overhead costs.

(Source: Management of MCCL)
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BIRECTORS® REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the audited financial stalements of the Company for the year ended 30
November 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITTES

The Company is principally involved in transportation, provision of cold raom facilities, import and
export of geods and a distributor of all kinds of fruits and as a real property company, etc, fts
substciary s principally engaged in rendering of transportation. cold room storage facilities,
repackaging and value added facilities.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the vear.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group Company
R Rl

Net profit for the vear 8.555.650 3,838,466

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the vear,

fn the opinion of the Directors. the resuits of the operations of the Group and of the Company during
the tinancial year have not been substantially affected by any item. transaction or event of a matarial
and unusual nature.

DIVIDEND

The Company deelared an interim single tier dividend of 100% per share amounting to a total of
RM2.000.000 (2015 final single tier dividend of 100% per share amounting to a total of
RM2.000.000) in respect of the current financial year,

1SSULE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not isste any shares or debentures during the financial year.

DIRECTORS

1he names of the Directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date
of this report are -

CHANG KOK FAI
CHAN SUN CHEONG

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that ycar, did there subsist any
arrangements, to which the Company is a party. whereby Directors might acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares In. or debentures of, the Company ar any other bady corporate.
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The following Directors who held oftice at the end of the financial year had according to the register
required to be kept under Section 134 of the Companies Act 1965, an interest in shares of the
Company, as stated below:-

Ordinary shares of RMI.00 each

as at  bought sold  as al

1/12/2015 duripg the year 30/11/2016

CHANG KOK FAl 999,963 - - 999.998
CHAN SUN CHEONG 049,998 - - 999,998

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become cntitled to receive
any benefits (ather than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received oF due
and reccivable by the Directors shown in the financial statements o the lixed salary of a full-time
employee of the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with any Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the
Director has a substantial financial interest.

Retirement and re-election of Directors at the Annval General Meeting will be in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a} Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and of the Company were made
out, the Directors took reasonable steps -

1} to ascertain that proper action has been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debis and
the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad
debls had been wrillen off and that adequate allowance had heen made for doubttul debts,
and

i) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the
aceounting records in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an amount
which they might be expected so to realise,

by At the date of this report. the Directors are not aware of circumstances which would render (-

i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance tfor doubtful debts in
the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent;

i) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading,.

c) At the date of this reporl, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group
and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

d} At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt

with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render
any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
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e) At the date of this report, there does not exist :-

1)  any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of
the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

i) any contingent Habilities in respect of the Group and of the Company which has arisen
since the end of the financial year.

f) Inthe opinion of the Directors :-

i} no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months afier the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the abilitv of the Group and of the Company to meet its obligations when
they fall due;

ii} no item, fransaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantiaily the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year in which this report is made

AUBITORS

The auditors, Messrs. L H LEE & CO., have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board
1 accordance with a resolution
of the Directors

P L : i

- ‘L
. /'__-——- mmmmmm J‘TN‘"M. ! ‘771\
CHANG KOK FAI CHAN‘S!L&:H' HEONG

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Dated: = ¢ +3 §oOy
LA - 4 wht b
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

We the undersigned being two of the Directors of the Group and of the Company state that in the
opinion of the Directors the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 35 are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Private Entity Reporting Standards in
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at
30 November 2016 and of the results of the operations and cash flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution
of the Directors

CHANG KOK FAI

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Dated M o ’ T s 3 7
B Vat HE ]

STATUTORY DECEARATION

| the undersigned being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of the
Company and of the Company do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out
on pages 7 to 35 are in my opinion cofrect and I make this solemn declaration conscientiousty
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declaration Act,1960.

Subscribed and sclemnly declared at

Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
this dayof 7 g AN 71T H\""'“t{ —

P " ;
'ijl‘_-b. [ K\ \____..{;
o CHANG KOK FAI
Betore me = ﬂ/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Cold Cold Transport Sdn Bhd, which comprise the
balance sheets as at 30 November 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the income
statements, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statements of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and a summaty of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out ov pages 7 to 35,

Directors  responsibifity for the Financiol Staements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give
a true and fair view in accordance with Private Entity Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to ebtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the fnancial statements, The procedures setected depend on our judgment. including the
assessiment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. {n making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’'s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design’ audit
procecures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial staterments,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opimion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS®

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Private
Entity Reporting Standards and the Companics Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 30 November 2016 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Report on Qther Legal and Regulalory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
foltowing:-

a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept
by the Company and its subsidiary have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions ot
the Act,

b)Y  We have satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiary that have been consolidated with the
Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes
of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satistactory
information and explanations reguired by us for those purposes,

¢y The audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary did not contain any qualification or any
atlverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174
of the Companies Act 1963 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume re‘;ponslbrhty tor
any other person for the content of this report.

-
_,./’/W - ’ T - T ] T
T e ‘-/_’____

- T D —— ]
LULEE&CO a = LEE LAM HUAT
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PARTNER
AF: 0076 800/04/18 (J/PH)

Kuala Lumpur, Maiaysia

e A A IT
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2016

2016 2015
NOTE RM RM
ASSETS
Nom-current assets
Property. plant & equipment 4 88A27.007 87,257,824
Curreni assets
Trade & other receivables 6 23.200.177 30.173.331
Amount owing by divector 7 - 320,000
Deposits placed with licensed banks 4553939 30,000
Cash & bank balances 5080843 1,669,178
14,804 859 33.562.300
TOTAL ASSETS 23,321,966 122820333
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liuity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 8 2.000,000 2,008,000
Revaluation reserve 9 7.073.000 B.000.000
Retained protits 37.641.064 31473914
Total equity 46,716,064 41473914
Non-curre nd liabilitie s
Defetred tax labilities 10 2096382 1.753.341
Term loans 11 40728110 44,7 918
Hire purehase & finonce lease pavables 12 2.555,106 2053.884
43,380,098 48,514,143
Current liabilities
Trade & other payables 13 18.758.588 22.775.092
Hire purchase & finance lease pavables 12 2697382 [.570.523
Amounl cwing to diveclor 7 2,504,784 F.795.376
Term loans 11 5410820 6,410,820
Taxation 763.830 280263
31,225.804 32832276
Totul liabilities 76,605,902 81,3649
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 123,321,966 §22.820.333

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2016

NOTE
REVENUE I&
DIRECT COSTS
GROSS PROFTT FROM OPERATIONS
Orther operating incoms 16
Dstribution ¢osts
Adiministrative expensas
Other operating cxpenses
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Finance costs 17

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

After charging/{crediting) -

Allowance for donbtinl debis
Auditors' rerauneration
- current
- {over)under provision
- olher
Bad debts written off - rade
« on trade
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 4
Directors' rermungration
- EPF
- salary & bonus
Hire of equipment
Hire ol paliets
Loss on foreign exchange - realised
Plant & equipment written off
Rental of torklift & reach truck
Sraff costs
- EPF
- salaries, allowance, bonus & wages
- Soeso

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 18

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2016
RM RM
77.151.828
(57,732,080)
19419 748
1 938,513
(35273)
(4,659.219)
(3.902,647)
12,761,122
(,814413)
10,946,709
109,940
84.000
(3.302)
8,042
220,000
214.830
55344 007
121318
HRO.00G
417,402
191,722
1259
181,505
2,150,658
| 452,988
1201 1.566
152,193

8555650

RM

138,753

55.000
2.300

4.876,605

67,080
554000
850,465
181,842

3,926,030

1.120,179
10,645.365
132727

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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R

67.024.254
(43,761.878)
18262376
3019407
(41.058)
(4,524,105)
(5.889.376)
10.826.434
(1256451
9,569,983

(2.734.154)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TIIE

YEAR ENDID 30 NOVEMBER 2016

2006 2015
RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 10,946,709 9569983
Adjustments for -
Allowance for doubtful debts 109,940 138,753
Depreciation of property. plant & equipment 5.344,007 4.876.605
Gain on disposai of property, plant & ecquipment (485,052) (108.073)
Inferest expenses 1,814,413 7,837.97]
linderest income (163,295) (47061
Plant & equipment written off 181,583 -
OPERATING PROYIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES 17,748,317 17,268.170
Decrease in trade and other receivables 15,543,942 1,762.378
Decrease in trade and other payables {1:4.971,6061) (2.324.920)
CASH GENERATED FROM QPERATIONS 18,320,598 16,703.634
Interest pakl (1814413} (2.837.971)
Interest received 163.205 47,061
Tax paid {2.818.824) (2,143.332)
Tax refund 457,372 030.871
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITEES 14,308,028 12.402,263
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of praperty, plant & equipment 727,662 113,000
Purchase ol property. plant & equipment (note 20) (3,141,934) (2.412.502)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2414270 (2,299,902

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED J0 NOVEMBER 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance from/repayiment to} directors

Dividend paid

Praceeds from term loans

Repayment of hire purchase payvables
Repayment of tlerm joans

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVETIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CCash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents al end of year

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

C'ash & bank balances
Deposits placed with licensed banks

The annexed notes fornt an integral part of these tinancial statements.
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2016
RM

018,168
(2.000.000)

(2.269.512)

2045
RM

(EO99.130)

1.012.680
{3.662.188)

(3.976808) _ (3.740.037)
(7328,052) _ {7.488.684)
4.565,604 2.613.677
5.069,178 2455501
9,634,782 5.060.178
5.080.843 1.669.178
4.553.939 3300000
0,634,782 5,069,178
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balkance at 1.12.2014

Dhwvidend paid

Net proft for the year

Balance at 30.11.2015

Prior vear adjstment

Decrease during the year

Dividend paid

Net profi (or the vear

Balance a1 30.11.2016

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2016

Share  Revaluation Retained
capital reserve profits Total
Rl RM RM R
2.000.000 £.000.000 26,638,085 36,638.0835
- - (2.000,000) {2.0001000)
- - 6,835,829 6.835.829
2.000,000 8.000,000 31473914 41473914
- - (388,500} (388,500)
- (925,000 - (923,000
- - (2,000.000) {2.000,000)
- - 8.333.630 8,555,630
2,000,000 7,075,000 37,641,064 40,716,064
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3¢ NOVEMBER 2016

ASSETS
Nop-current assels

Property, plant & equipment
Investment in subsidiary

Current assets
Trade & olher receivables
Cash & bank balances

Deposit placed with licensed banks
Tax recoverable

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equily attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital

Revaluation reserve

Retmned profis

Total eqguity

Nor-current liabililies

Dederred ax fabilities

Term loans
Hire purchase & finance lease payabies

Current Liabilities

Trade & other payables

Hire purchase & finance lease payables
Term loans

Amount owing to divector

Taxation

Total liabililics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes fortn an integral part of these Hinancial statements.
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NOTE

10
I
12

2016 2045
RM R
3948069 83.214.183
250.000 250,000
24,198.069 83464 183
23,185,995 14.333.608
4,456,965 372204
1.014,130 -
- 514,337
28.657001 15.220.240
112,855,160 UR.684.423
2,000,000 2,000,000
7075.000 8000000
22862438 190412472
31037438 20412472
2233637 1,702,733
40,728,110 44704918
2275302 DR 422
43,237,069 47303003
24257500 13.307.399
1.551,767 384543
6410820 6410820
2,594,784 L376.006
863,782 .
33,680653 21878838
80917722 69271 931
112 855,160 98684 423
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

I NOVEMBER 2616
2016 2013
NMOTE RM RM RM RM
REVENUE 15 38434922 6434931
DIRECT COSTS _(45.835.155) (3,005.588)
GROSS PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 12.599.767 3,359,343
(ther eperating income 16 1,556,918 2,781,768
Administrative expenses {2.937.827) {724,000y
Other operating expenses (1,798,220 {760.313)
PROTFIT FROM OPERATIONS 042,638 4.050.598
Finance costs 17 (1.692,772) _AL151379
PRCFIT BEFORE TAX 7727866 3505219
After charging -
Allowance for doubttul debts 5,040 73369
Auditors' remune ration
- currant 24.000 13,300
- other 5482 -
Bad debts written off - irade 220000 -
- non trade 214,830 -
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 4 3399974 3,549,664
Ditectors' remuneration
- EFF 33420 44,880
- salary & bonus 224.000 374,000
Hire of paliers 131955 -
Loss on foreign exchange - realised 1259 -
Plant & equipment writen ofT 181,595 -
Rental of forklift & reach truck 537.980 -
Staff costs
- EPF 825.171 17646
- salaries. wanes & bonus 1381614 169.063
- Socso 93,000 1.704
INCOME TAX EXPENSE |8 (1.880.400) (1,045.843)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 58384606 2459576

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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CASH FLOW SFATEMENT FOR THE YEAR FNDED

30 NOVEMBER 2016

2016 2015

R R
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 7.727.866 3503219
Adjustments lor -
Allowance for doubtful debts 5049 73.369
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 3399974 3.349 064
Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment (483051} {108,073}
lnterest income {48,327 (2,535)
Interest expenses 1.692,772 2.732.80%
Mant & equipment written off 181,595 -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES 12473878 9,750,541
{lncrease decrease i trade and other receivables {9.072.266) 2,080 807
bicrease/{decrease) in trade and other payvables 10.930.102 (3,047,470
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 14351714 9,683,878
Interest pawd {1L692.772) (2.732.89%)
bterest received 48,327 2.535
Tax refund 457372 -
Tax paid (1.231.250) (833.332)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,933,391 6,120,182
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant & equipment 727.662 [13.000
Purchase of property, plant & eqguipment {note 20) {1,326,734) (1.890.861)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (599.072) (1,777.861)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED

J0 NOVEMBER 2086

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acdvance fromAto) d irector

Cividend paid

PI'OCBC(IS from term loans

Repayment of hire purchase payables

Repayment of term loans

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

ANALYSIS OF CASIT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Deposit placed with Ticensed bank
Cash and bank balances

The annexed notes torm an integral part of these financial slatements.
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2016 2015
RM RM
1018.688 (311.019)
{2.000.000) -
- 1.042.680
(1.277.398)  (2.272,730)
(3.976.308) (3,740,037
6.235318)  (5311.106)
5.008.801 (968,785)
372,294 1341079
5471003 372,294
1014130
4,456 965 372.29%4
5.471.095 37229
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES iN EQUITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2416

Share Revaluation Retamed
capital reserve protits Total
Rivi RM Rivt RM
Balance at 1.12.2014 2.000,000 3,000,000 [8.953.006 28.953.006
Prividend - paid - - (2.000.000) {2.000.000;
Net profit for the year - - 2459376 2459376
Bakince at 30.11.2015 2,600,000 £.000.000 19412472 29412.472
Decrease during the year - {925,000 - (925.000)
Prior vear adjustment - - (388,500} (388.500)
Driviclend paid - - {2.000.000) (2,000,000}
Net profil for the yvear - - 5838406 5.838.460
Balance at 30.11.2016 2,000,000 7.075.000 22.862.438 31.937.438

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Campany is a private limited liability company. incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The registered office address and the principal place of business of the Company is located at 3,
Jalan Sungai Kayn Ara 32/40, Seksyen 32, 40469 Shah Alam, Selangor,

The total number of employees of the Group and of the Company at the end of the financial year
were 367 (2015: 308) and 327 (2013: 4) respectively.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Company’s functional
currency.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by (e Board of Directors in accordance with

a resolution of the Directors on - Y EETAY:
L4 GAA 7T

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally involved in transportation, provision of cold room facilities, import
and export of goods and a distributor of alt kinds of fruits and as a real property company, etc.
tts subsidrary is principally engaged in rendering of transportation, cold room storage facilities,
repackaging and value added facilities,

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and in
accordance with the applicable Private Entity Reporting Standards in Malaysia.

b) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assets, as appropriate.
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and to the Company and the item can be measured reliably. All repairs and
marntenance are charged o the income statement during the financial period in which they
are tncurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated af cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Depreciation of property. plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write
oft the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the foilowing
annual rates:

Motor lorries 20%

Cold room, cabin, plant & machinery 5% - 20%,
Frecheld butlding 2%
Racking. furmniture & office equipment 10% - 50%
Lease assels 3333%

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

The residual values. usefu! lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end 1o ensure that the amount. method and period of depreciation are consistent with
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
gconomic benefit is expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceed. if any. and the net carrving amount is recognised in income statement and
the unutilised portion of the revaluation surplus on that item is taken directly to retained
Sarnings.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
fives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
eluipment.

Surplus arising on revaluation are credited to revaluation reserve. Any deficit arising from
revaluation will be charged against the revaluation reserve 1o the extent of a surplus held in
the revaluation reserve for the same assel. In all other cases. a decrease in carrying amount is
charged to income statement. On usage of revalued assets, amounts in revaluation reserve
relating to those assets will be transferred to retained profits.

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated tinancial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiary as at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiary are
prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such cantrof ceases. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements, inbragroup balances. wansactions and
uncealised gains or losses are efiminated in full. Uniform accounting policies are adopred in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in  similar
circumstances.

The purchase method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the acquisition to the fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent Habilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the
dale of exchange. of the assets given, liabilities ieurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued, plus any costs divectly attributable 1o the acquisition.
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Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value ot the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent lizbilities represents goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabitities over the cost of acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or Joss.

d} Subsidiary

3

Subsidiary i5 entity over which the Group has the ability to control the financial and
operating policics so as to obtain benefits from their activities, The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently cxercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group has such power over ancther entity.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investment in subsidiary Is stated at cost less
impairment losses. On disposal of such investment, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets, other than
inventories and financial assets, to determine whether there is any indication of impairmeat.
If any such indication exists, impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the
assets with their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of net selling price
and value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted futuve cash flows.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the income statement immediately, unless
the assets is carried at revalued amount. Any knpairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as
revaluation decrease to the extent of unutilised previously recognised revaluation surptus for
the same asset. Reversal of impairment [osses recognised in prior years is recorded when
impairment losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased,

Finanecial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, deposits,
other investments, receivables, payables and borrowings. Financial instruments are
recognised in the balance sheets when the Group and the Company have become party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement. [nterest, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial
instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of tinancial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity. Financial
instruments are offset when the Group and the Company have legally enforceable right to
offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The particular recognition method adopted for financial instruments recognised on the

balance sheet is disclosed in the individual accounting policy statements associated with each
ttem,
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)

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in
equity in the year in which they are declared.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual
right to receive eash or ancther financial asset from another entity is established.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are stated at cost less aliowance for
doubtful debts. Doubtful debts are provided based on specific review of the receivables.
Bad debts are written off when identified.

iii) Trade and other payables

Trade and other pavables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether billed or unbilled.

iv) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of
transaction costs.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

o) Foreign corrency

Foreign currency fransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Ringgit Malaysia ("RM”) at rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to RM at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies,
which are stafed at historical cost, are translated to RM the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the datc of the transactions. Exchange gains or losses are dealt in the income statement,

h) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is
the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and
is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

72



APPENDIX VI

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GCT FOR THE FYE 30 NOVEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

k)

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax iabilitics are recognised for all taxable
temporacy differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for afl deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
fax lusses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognised as income or an
expense and included in the income statement for the period, except when it arises from a
transaction which is recognised direcily in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bark bafances and deposits placed with licensed
banks which are rcadily convertible to cash and which arc subject 1o insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Hire purchase and finance lease

Hire purchase and leases of property, plant and equipment, which are classified as finance
lease, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the assets,
but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the Company.

Assets under hire purchase and finance lease are depreciated on a straight-fine basis over the
shorter of the hire and lease terms or their useful lives. Hire purchase and lease interest is
recognised as an expense in income statement over the lease period so as to give a constant
periodic rate of interest n the outstanding liabitity at the end of cach accounting pericd.

All other leases are classified as operating lease and the lease rentals are recognised as an
expense in income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenuc is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably, The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised;

(i) Services rendered

Revenue is recognised in the income statement based on invoiced value when the
services are performed.
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(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised in the income statement based on invoiced value of goods sold
and customer® acceptance.

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

1) Expenses
(i} Financing costs

All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as
incurred.

m} Employce benefits

iy Short term benefits

Salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense i the
year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group and of
the Company. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave
are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to
future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave are recognised when the absences ocour.

i1) Defined contribution plan

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the Employees
Provident Fund. Such contributions are recognised as an expense in the income statement
as incurred. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Company have no
further payment obligations.

n) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contrel the other party
exercise significant influence over the other party, to the extent that it prevents the other
party from fully pursuing its own separate interest, in making financial and operating
decisions.
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1,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
Lold room. equipment,

Group Freehokl land cabin, plant &  furnitere, fittings Motor Lease

& building machinery & computer vehicles assets Total
COsT Rl R Rivt R R RiM
At L2303 78,346,126 8214745 1,634,827 31378018 119573710
At valuation 2.000.000 - - - - 8,000,000
Additions 35093 dedd 24 934,288 2.638.033 33256990 7320670
Disposal - - - (3,965827) - (3965827
Reclessification 2.390.807 (2,459.053) 69,146 - -
A3 1.2016 88.792.028 6,200,034 2638,261 30050244 3256990 130,937.55¢
ACCUMULATED DEPRECEATION
At 1122013 7734020 0.747.761 1271.249  24.502.802 40,315,892
Prior vear adjustment 318000 - - - 318,600
Al valuation 74,000 - - - - 4000
Charge for the vear L 272046 467,293 95055 3307645 17966 32700407
DHspusal . - - {3.667 347} [3.667.347)
Raclassitication 4.232 358 (4.270,94%) 33.391 - -
AC30LL2006 13,830,424 2944107 FA04,895 24213160 117666 423105352
CARRYING AMOUNT
A0 201 74.991.604 3253979 1233366 5.837.084  3.139024 884427 ,007
ALZD 2015 TRO12, 106 1.406.984 303,578 6,813,136 §7.257.824
Depreciation charge for the
vear ended 30.4,2013 1.261.598 60,794 317380 37236824 - 4,876,605

Included in property. plant and equipment are assets acquired under hire purchase arrangements
{note 12} with carrying amount totalling RM5.,837,084 (2015:RM6.815.156).

The freehold land and building of the Group with a carrving amount of RM74,961.604 (2015:
RM78.612.106) is pledged as security by way of a fixed charge for certain bank horrowings

fnote 11) granted o the Group.
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Office
Cold room, equipment,

Company freehold land cabm, plant & furninre, fittings Motor Lease

& buikding  machinery & compurer vehicles assets Total
COST R M RM RM RM kM
At F32.2015 78,346,126 7.585,596 360210 22,153,802 - 108645824
At valuation 8,000.000 - - - - $.000.000
Additions 55,095 903,268 679117 3256990 4,894,470
Disposal - - - (3.200,884) - {3.201,884)
Reclassification 2,390,807 {2.450.953) 69,146 - - -
At 30.11.2016 #8,792,028 5,125,643 1532624 19431125 3256990 118,338410
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AET 122015 7,734,020 6,269,197 Jrato 18911014 - 33430641
Frior year adjustment 318,000 - - - - 518,000
At valuation T4 000 - - - - 74,001
Charge for the year 1272046 348483 37,044 1,550,435 117.966 3325974
Disposal - - - {2939274) - {(2.959274)
Reclassification 4232358 (4,270,949 38,591 - - -
At 30.11.2016 13,830,424 2,346,731 593,045 17,502,173 117966 3439034/
CARRYING AMQUNT
Ar30.11,2016 74,961,604 2778912 939,579 2,128,950  3.139.024 83,948,069
AP 30.11.2015 78,612,106 1316.309 42,800 3242878 - 83214185
Drepreciation charge for the
vear ended 30.11.2015 1,261,308 261,672 25,082 2,001,312 - 3,54%.604

The freehold land and building of the Company with careying amount of RM74,961,604 (2015:
RM78,612,106) is pledged as sccunty by way of a fixed charge for certain bank borrowings
(note 11} granted to the Company.

Included in property, plant and equipment are assets acquired under hire purchase arrangements

(note 12) with carrying amount totalling RM2,128,950 {2015.RM3,242,878),

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

2016 2015
Company RM RM
Unquoted shares - at cost 250,000 230,000
The subsidiary of the Company, incorporated in Malaysia, is as follows :-
Name of company Principal activities Percentage of sharsholdings
2016 2015
GC Logistics Sdn Bhd Rendering of transportation, cold
room storage facilities, repackaging
and value added facilities 100% 100%
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group 2016 20103
RM RM RM RM

Trade receivables

Related company - 3,195,138
Third parties 21,340,194 21.190.942
21,540,194 24,386.080
Less:allowance for doubttul delbts
At 1 December 230,176 91.423
Increase in aliowance 109,940 138753
A1 30 November _ (340,116) (230.170)
Trade recewables, net 21,200,078 24,135,904
Other receivables
Neposits 198,759 321813
GST claimable 24,469 -
Prepayvments 416,991 970,795
Others - 683,734
Staft loans/advances 71376 .
Reiated company 2429286 2,402,936
Third parties 919.218 [.038,149
4,360,009 6.0{7.427
Total 25,260,177 30,173,331
Company
Trade receivables
Third parties 19.596.930 1.301.933
Subsidiary company - 10.955.828
Related company - 674,096
19,896,930 (2,931,859
Less:allowance for doubtiui debts
At | Decernber 73,369 -
increase during the vear 3.04% 73,369
At 30 November (78.418) (73.369)
19818512 12858490
Other receivables
Deposits 142,503 128397
OST claimable 21469 -
Prepavments 155,555 648,968
Staff loans/advances 37 -
Related company 2429286 327148
Third parties 344 293 370,606
3.367.484 1 475,119
Total 23,185,996 14.333.609

77



APPENDIX VI

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GCT FOR THE FYE 30 NOVEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

10.

Amounts owing by related companies and subsidiary are unsecured. interest free and repayable

on demand.

AMOUNT OWING BY/(10) DIRECTORS

Group and Company

These amounts are unsecured aad repayable on demand.

SHARE CAPITAL

2010 2015
Group and Company RM RM
Authorised : 5.000.000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each 3,000,000 5.000.000
Issued and
fully paid @ 2.000,000 ordinary shares of RM .00 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE - NON DISTRIBUTABLE
2016 2015
Group and Company RM RM™
The property was revalied based on:
Open market value by an independent professional valuer
Balance at t December 8.000,000 8.000.000
Less: decrease during the vear due to deferred tax effect {925,000} -
Balance at 30 November 7075000 2.000,000
DEFERRED TAX
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Coroup and Company RM R RM Rivl
Ai | December [.755.341 1,391 801 1,702,753 1426254
Ctiect on opening deterred tax due o
reduction iy ax vate (noe 18) (70,213 - {68.11 1)
Prior year adjustment 793,500 - 795,500
Recognised (L0) from income
statement (note 18) {383.744) 363,340 (196,483) 270499
AL 30 November 2.096.882 1,755.341 2.233.657 1,702.753
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11,

Presented after appropriate off-sctting as follows:-

Group Company
2016 2013 2016 2013
R RM RM RM
Deterred tax assets (1,848.494) (392491 (1,291,729 (39249103
Deferred tax liabilitie s 3945370 2,147,832 3,525,386 2,095,244
2.096.882 1,755,541 2.233.657 1.702.753

This is in respect of estimated deferred tax liabilities arising trom temporary differences as
foliows:-

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM RM RM RM
Deferred tax fiabitiy
- capital allowances i excess
of depreciation 2,096,382 1,755,341 2.233.637 1,702,753
TERM LOANS - SECURED
2016 2013
Group and Company RM RM
Secured
Non-current portion:
- repavable between one and two years 12,821,640 (2,821,640
- repayable between two and five vears 19.232.460 19,232 460
- repayable more than 5 years 8.674,010 12,650,818
Total non-cuirrent portion 40,728,110 44, 704918
Current portion:
- repayable within one year 6410820 6,410,820

47,138,930 51.115,738
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Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

Number Date of
of monthly  Monthly commencement 2016 2015
Term loan  insiakments  instalment of repayment RM R
I 180 RM?24.64] July 2008 1,457,151 1,673,484
2 180 RM 06,301 June 2009 7,546,178 8417701
3 180 RM23,510 June 2009 1,667,439 1.860.282
4 180 RM163,284 April 2010 17,690,007 19.281.335
5 180 Rivis4 593 December 204! 3810516 5,689,176
6 180 RMY7 342 May 2014 12,640,003 11,771,681
7 180 RMI 1,522 July 2014 1,332,667 1,404,553
8 252 RM1.082 Dacember 2013 166,875 171,697
9 252 RMI(.056 December 2015 162,774 167477
10 252 RM1.060 December 2015 163,360 168,080
| 232 RM|,063 December 2015 163,946 168,683
12 252 RMI1.075 December 2015 165,704 170492
13 252 RMI.077 December 2015 166,290 171,095

47,138,930 51,115,738

The term loan facilities are secured against the followings :-

i) [.egal charge over the freehold land, building and warehouse of the Company,

ii) Jointly and severally guaranteed by all the Directors of the Company,

i1} Asset purchase and asset sales agreement,

iv} Letter and negative pledge. (bank term loan interest ranging from BLR -1.75% to BLR

-2.00% per annum. (BLR ranging from 6.60% to 6.72% at 30 November 2016)).

12. HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

2016 2045
Group R RM
Commitients for hire purchase and finance lease payables
are as follows:-
Not later than I year 2,844,723 2,329,545
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 2,660,647 1,486,136

3,511,370 3,815,681

Future finance charges (258,882) {191.274)

5,252,488 3,624,407
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13.

2016 2015
RM RM
Repayabic as follows:-
Non-current portion:
Later than | year and not kiter than 5 vears 2.555.100 2.053.884
Cureent portion:
Not later than | year 2.697.382 1,570,523
5252488 3.624.407
Company 2016 2013
RM RM
Commitmnents for hire purchase and finance lease pavabies
are as follows:-
Not later than | yvear 1,665,976 1,262,637
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2.368.8%4 375480
4.034.870 1638,117
Future finance charges {207.801) (68,152)
3.827.069 1.569,965
Repavable as tollows:-
Non-current portion:
Later than | year and not later than 35 years 2.275302 983422
Current portion;
Not later than | year 1,551,767 384,543
3.827.069 1.569.963

Hire purchase and finance {zase interest rates charged ranging from 2.95% 10 3.20% (2015:
3.20%) per aitnum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABRLES

Group 2016 2015
R RM
Trade payables
Third parties 9.421.788 7.531.093
Related companies 838716 T41.724
10,260,504 8202816
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2006 2005
RM RM
Other payables
Accroals 1.918.131 2211812
Qther
- related comparies 1,968,499 10422393
- third parties 78.772 0094235
Alipwance for stock foss, damage. demurrage & diesel price 21094306 647.146
Deposit received 164.300 191.300
Dividend payabie 2.000.060 .
GST payable 229,326 -
8.498,484 14.482276
Total 18,758,988 23.775.092

Amounts owing 1o related companies are unsecured. interest free and repayable on demand.

Company 2016 205
RM RM
Trade pavables
Third partics 7I17.104 1,549,824
Related compan 824,679 -
Subsidiary company 6306542 -
14,248,325 [.549 824
Other payables
Accroals 1.466.767 407701
Deposit received 3000 -
Dividend payable 2.000.000 -
Related companics 1.968.499 10,422 593
Subsidiary company 3000723 -
Third parties 3468 927281
Allowance tor stock foss. damage. denwrage & diese! price 1,476,718 -

10.009.175 1757575

Total 24.257.500 13,307,309

Amounts owing to related companies and subsidiary are unsecured. interest free and repayable
on demaind,
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14. NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

2016 2015
Company RM RM
Current assets 28,657,091 15,220,240
Less: current labilities (35,680,653  (21,878.358)
Net current flabilities (7.023.562) {6,658.618)

15, REVENUE

2016 2015
Group RM |
Invoiced value of scrvices rendered 77,151,828 67,024,254
Company
Invoiced value of services rendered 58434022 6,454 03 |

16, OTHER INCOME

2016 2015
Group RM RM
Administration fees 18,000 18,000
Consultancy fee 32,900 -
Gain on disposal of plant & equipment 485,052 108,075
Insurance - refund - 53.000
Interest income - fixed deposit 84.680 -
Interest mcome - current account 78615 47061
Maragement fee 54,854 41,581
Others - 134,120
Rental of hostel 4,900 -
Rental income - net 208,641 -
Rental of lorries - 163,860
Sales of scrap _ 89,471 -
Sub-remtal received 841,400 2451,800

1,038,513 3,010,497
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17,

18.

Company

Administration fees

Consulancy fee

Cian on disposal of plant & equipment
Insurance - retund

Interest income - tixed deposic

Interest income - current account
Management fee

Rental income - net

{Gross: RM2.460,600, (2013 RMa.000.000))
Sales of scrap

FENANCE COSTS

Group

Interest

- hire purchase
- lease

- erm loans

[nterest - term loans related to rental received

Compauny

Interest

- hire purchase
- lease

- term foans

literest - term loans related w rental received

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Group

Current year provision

Overprovision in prior year

Deferred tax (note 1Y

EfMect on opening deterred tax due (o
reduction in (ax rate (note 10)

84

2016 2015
RM RM
12,000 -
32,900 -
485,051 108.075
- 53.000
14,131 -
34,196 2,335
94,854 41581
879,300 2576.577
4477 -
1,556.918 2,781,768
2016 2015
RM RM
199,175 244,123
3,763 -
1611475 1012328
1,814,413 (256451
822,536 1.581.520
77534 139.051
3.763 -
1.611.475 1.012328
1692.772 1,151.379
822,536 1,581,520
2016 2015
RM RM
2.865.044 2377.646
(20.026) (7.032)
(383.744) 363,540
(70215) -
2391059 2.734.154
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A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income
tax raie to the income tax expense at the elfective income tax rate of the Group is as follows:-

2086 2013
RM RM
Profit before tax 10,046,709 9,569,983
Taxation at Malaysian income tax rate of
- First RM300.000 at 1956 (2015: 20%) 95.000 100,000
- balance at 24% (2015: 25%) 1,799,628 2.2067.490
Effect on opening deferred tax due to
reduction in tax rate (note 10) (70.213) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 703,084 400,705
Nan-taxable ncome (116.412) (27.01%)
Overprovision in prior year (20.020) {7.032)
2.361.059 2,734,154
Company
Current year provision 2153996 776376
Overprovision in prior year - (7.032)
Deferied tax {note 10} (196.483) 276,499
Effect on opening deferred tax due o
reduction in w@ax rate {note 14) {68,111) -
1.889,400 1,045,843

A reconciliztion of income tax expenses applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income
fax rate to the income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Company is as Follows:-

2016 2013
RM Rivl
Profit beTore tax 7.727.866 3,505.219
Taxation at Malaysian income axy rate of
- frst RMS00,000 at 19% (2015:20%) 43,000 100.000
- reraming ¢xceeding RMSO0,000 ar 24% (201 5:25%) 1.734,688 751,303
Etfect on opening deferred tax due to
reduction in tax rai¢ (note 10) {o8.111) -
Expenscs not deductible tor tax purpose 244,235 228.589
Non-taxabie income {110412) (27019
Overprovision in prior vear - (7032
1,889 400 1.045.843
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9.

20,

DIVIDEND

Group

Inierim single tier dividend ot 100% (2015: final single tier
dividend of 100%) per share

Company

Interim single tier dividend of 100% (2015: final single tier
dividend of 100%) per share

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2016 2015

RM R
2,000,000 2.000.000
2,000,000 2,000,000

During the tinancial year. the Group and the Company made the following cash payvments to

purchase propeity. plant and equipment :-

Group

Purchase of property, plant & eguipment (inote 4)
Financed by hire purchase arrangements

Cash payment on purchase of property, plant & equipment
Company

Purchase of property. plant & cquipment (note 4)
Financed by hire purchase arrangements

Cash payment on purchase of property, plant & equipment

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Rental charged to subsidiary company *
Transportation charged by subsidiary company *
Rentalof lorries charged by subsidiary company ¥
Rencal of lorries charged by related company *
Rental ol forries charged 1o related company *
Rental ot lorries charged to subsidiary company *

Transpartation charged by related company *
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2016 2015
RM RM
7,329,670 5.898.902
{4.187.736) (3,486,C00)
3.141.934 2412802
4.894.470 2,820,861
(3,567.736) (930.000)
1,326,734 1,890.861
2016 2013
Riv RM
2,000,066 6.000.000
83,863 330948
5.388.645 -
1.175.387
36,000 8.000
1,320,106 4,852,986
58375

* Made according to the market price and conditions offered to unreiated parties
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21, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

23.

2016 2013
RM RM
Unsecured
Guarantee given in respect of?
Bank facilities utitised by a related company 39,100,000 59,100,000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b

"

d)

e}

Financial visk management objcctives and policies

The Group’s financial risk management policy sechs to ensure adequaie (inancial resources
are available for the development of the Group's operations whilst managiny its interest rate.
lquidity and credit risks. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in speculative transactions.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest
bearing assets and liabilities.

thie Group monitors the interest rate on borrowings closely to ensure that the borrowings are
maintained at favourable rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk. or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlied by the application of credit
approvals, limits and moniloring procedures. The Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single debtor.

Liquidity risk

The Group ensures that there are adequate funds to moet all their obligations in a timely and
cost effective manner.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
balance sheet approximate their respective net fair values.

Currency exchange risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk as a result of the foreign currency transactions in
currencies other than their functional currency. The Group primarily operates in the domestic

sectors and Is mnimally exposed to foreign currencies to limit their exposure on foreign
currency receivables and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company arc to provide cold and chill storage services, cold chain
logistics solutions and related services to customers. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of these activitics during the financial year,

RESULTS

RM
Loss for the financial year 59,826
DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed by the Company since the end of the previous
financial year. The Mrectors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from rescrves or provisions during the financial year.

ISSUE OF STIARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any new sharcs or debentures during the financial vear.

OPTTONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial
year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held for office since the date of the last report are:

Loo Yong Hui {Appointed on 29 December 2016)
Kce Chung Ching (Appointed on 9 March 2017)

Abd Aziz bin Miskon (Resigned on 30 Scptember 2016)
Norazmi bin Abdul Latif (Resigned on 30 December 2016)
Mohd Aznan bin Aziz {Resigned on 10 March 2017)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The Directors holding office at the end of the financial vear and their beneficial interests in the ordinary
shares of the Company and of its related corporations durng (he financial year ended 31 December 2016
as recorded in the Register of Directors® Shareholdings kept by the Company under Scction 134 of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malavsia were as follows:

-~- Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 cach ---

Balance
Date of as at
Appointment Bought Sold 31.12.20146
Shares in the Company
Indirect interest:
Loo Yong Hui 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Shares in the ultimate holding
company
Swift tiaulage Sdn. Bhd.
Indircct interest;
I.oo Yong Hul 29,803,296 - - 29,803,296

By virtue of Loo Yong Hui’s interests in the ordinary shares of the ultimate holding company, he is also
deemed to be interested in the ordinary shares of the Company to the extent that the ultimate holding
company has an intcrest.

The other Director holding office atl the end of the financial year did not hold any beneficial interest in
the ordinary shares of the Company or ordinary shares and debentures of its rclated corporations during
the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous linancial year, none of the Directors have received or become entitled to
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by thc Company or a rclated corporation with the
Director or with a firm of which the Director 1s a member, or with a company in which the Director has
a substantial financial interest other than the following:

{1) remuneration received or due and reccivable by the Directors from certain related corporations
in their capacity as Directors or exccutives of the related corporations; and

(i1} deemed benefits arising (rom related party transactions as disclosed i Note 18 to the financial
statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, to which the Company is a

party, which had the object of enabling the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corperate.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE COMPANY

I} AS AT TIIE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a)

(b)

Belors the statement of profil or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of
financiat position of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

(1)

(if)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation o the writing off of bad
dchts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and have satisfied themselves
that there are no known bad debts and that adequate provision had been made for
doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets other than dcbts, which were unlikely to realisc
their book valucs in the ordinary course of business had been written down to their

cstimated recalisablc values,

In the opinion of the Direciors, the resulls of the operations of the Company during the
(Inancial year have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a
material and-unusual nature.

(II) FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO TIIE DATE OF THIS REPORT

(c)

(d)

The Directors are nol aware of any circumstances:

(1}

i)

Gii)

which would nccessitate the writing off of had debts or render the amount of the
provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Company inadequate
to any matcrial cxtent; and

which would render the wvalues attributed to current assets in the financial
statements of the Company misleading; and

which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of
valuation of asscts or liabilitics of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

In the opinion of the Directors:

(i)

(i)

there has not arisen any ilem, transaclion or event of 4 material and unusual naturc
likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made; and

no contingent or other lability has become enforceable, or is likcly to become
enforceable, within the period of twelve (12) months after the end of the financial
year which would or may affcct the ability of the Company to meet its obligations
as and when they fall due.

(1I1) A8 AT THE DATE OF TH1S REFORT

(e)

()

()

There are no charges on the assets of the Company which have arisen since the end of the
linancial year to secure the liabilities of any other person.

There are no contingent labilities of the Company which have arisen since the cnd of the
financial year.

The Directors are not aware of any circumslances not otherwise dealt with in this report
or -the financial stalements which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Company mislcading.
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HOLDING COMPANIES

The Directors regard Swift Haulage Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia as the ultimate
holding company, while the immediate holding company is Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.
{formerly known as MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.), a company incorporated in Malaysia.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO TIIE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 January 2017, the immediate holding company, Swift Intcgrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd. (formerly
known as MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.) had committed to dispose off its entire equity interest
comprising 3,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and 2,800,000 redeemable convertible
preference shares of RMO,10 ¢ach in the Company 1o a ihird party for a total cash consideration of
RM©3,925100, The abovementioned disposal of the Company is not completed as at the date of this
report.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, BDQO, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed by the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors

Loo Yong H
Director

Kuala Lumpur
30 May 2017
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements sct out on pages 11 -47 have been drawn up in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, [nternational Financtal Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financiat position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of the financial performance and cash
flows of the Company for the financial year then ended.

By the Board,

Loo Yong Hu Kee Chung Ching

Director Director

Kuala Lumpur
30 May 2017

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Loo Yong Hui, being the Director prirnarily responsible for the financial management of MTLS Cold
Chain Logistics Sdn. Bhd., do selemnly and sincercly declare that the financial statements set out on
pages 11 -47 are, to the best of my knowledge and beliet, correct and T make this solermn declaration
conscientiously believing the same te be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Stlutory
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly )
declared by the abovenamed at )
Kuala Lumpur, this )
30 May 2017 ) Loo Yong Hui

Before me:

NO. 102 & 144 1t FLOOR BANGUNAN
PERSATUAN YAF SELANGOR
JALAN TUN HS LEE
000 XUALA LUMPER

95



APPENDIX VI

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MCCL FOR THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MILS Cold Chain Logistics Sdn. Bhd., which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 of the Company, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out
on pages 11 to 47,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘By-Laws') and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (1ESBA Code'), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the By-Laws and the |IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements

of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’
Report and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (continued)

Information Other than the Financial 5tatements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
{continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility
is to read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of
the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
cperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN. BHD.
{(Incorporated in Malaysia) (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(@)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of
the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements
of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of
the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia) (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also
report that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by
the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the
requirements of the Act.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015

were audited by another firm of chartered accountants, whose report dated 22 February
2016 expressed an ungualified opinion on those statements.

o,

BDO Chan Wai Leng
AF @ 0206 289370817 ()
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
30 May 2017
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Non-current asset

Property, plant and equipmeni
Current asscts

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owner of the Company
Sharc capital
Share premium
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Non-currcnt liabilitics
Trade and other payables
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

o)

10
11

12

12

2016 2015
RM RM
32,075,119 34,590,602
3,535,103 4,538,985
955,938 2,366,083
4,491,041 6,903,068
36,566,160 41,495,670
3,280,000 3,280,000
27,720,000 27,720,000
(15,717,889) | | (15,638,063)
15,282,111 15,341,937
14,816,813 19,077,040
6,467,236 7,076,693
21,784,049 26,153,733
36,566,160 41,495,670

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT R LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015

Note EM RM
Revenue 13 9,170,366 12,640,271
Cost of sales (7,071,471 {8,459,641)
Giross profit 2,098,895 4,180,630
Other income 160,200 1,583
General and administrative cxpenscs (979,660) (1,096,901)
Finance costs 14 (1,315,503) (1,500,000)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation 15 (36,074) 1,585,312
Taxation 16 {23,752) 17,999
(Loss)/Profil for the financial vear (59,826) 1,603,311
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive {loss)/income (59,826) 1,603,311

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the financial statementis.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAT YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
Note RM RM
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss)/Profit before taxation (36,074) 1,585.312
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 2,062,632 2,240,227
Interest cxpensc 1,315,503 1,500,000
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (160,200) 147,780
Operating profit before changes in working capital 3,181,861 5,473,319
Decreased{Increase) in trade and other receivables 1,853,501 (1,826,906)
Increase in trade and other payables 163,260 323746
Cash generated from operations 5,198,622 3,970,159
Tax paid (25,364) ,
Tax refunded 2,112 31,556
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,174,870 4,001,715
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advances to immediate holding company (1,047,757) (900,260}
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 7 (221,755) (29,067}
Net cash used in investing activities {1,269.,512) (929,327)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (1,315,503} (1,500,000)
Repayments of loan to immediate holding company (4,000,000} -
Net cash used in financing aciivities (5,315,503) (1,500,000)
Nct (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ' (1,410,145} 1,572,388
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 2,366,083 793,695
Cash and cash equivalents at cnd of financial year 9 055,938 2,366,083

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMEER 2016

4.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

MILS Cold Chain Logistics Sdn. Bhd. {*thc Company™) is a private limited liability company,
incorperated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The registered office of the Company is located at Unit. 206, 2nd Floor, Wisma Mcthodist,
Lorong Hang Jebat, 50150 Kuala Lumpur.,

The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 88077, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/1,
Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42907 Pelabuhan Klang, Sclangor Darul Ehsan.

The Directors regard Swift Haulage Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia as the
ultimate holding company, while the immediate holding company is Swift Integrated Logistics
Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.), a company incorporated
in Malaysia,

The financial sialemenls are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM ™), which is also the finctional
currency ol the Company.

The financial statements were autherised for issue in accordance with a resoluiion by the Board
of Dircctors on 30 May 2017,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are to provide cold and chill storage services, cold
chain logistics solutions and related services to customers. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance wilh Malaysian

Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards
{*1IFRSs”} and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as otherwise stated in the financial statements and also on the basis of
accounting principles applicable to a going concern.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company incurred a net loss of
RMS59,826 and, as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by

RM1.976,195. These conditions indicate the existence of matcrial uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a geing concern.
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4.1

4.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

The ability of the Compaty 10 conlinue as going concern in the foreseeable futurc is therefore
dependent upon the ability of the Company to achicve future profitable cperations and to
reccive continucus financial support from immediate holding company, Swill Integrated
Logistics Sdn. Bhd. to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

The immediate holding company, Swift Integrated logistics Sdn. Bhd. has indicated that it
would provide continuous financial support to the Company up to the completion date of
disposal of the Company as stated in Note 23 to the financial statements so as to enable the
Company 1o meet its obligations as and when they fall duc and to operatc as a going concern in
the foresecable future.

In view of the foregoing, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis, and accordingly, the financial statcments
do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of rccorded asset
amounts, or to amounts and classification of liabilitics that may be necessary should the going
concern basis for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company be not appropriate.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with MFRSs and IFRSs requires the
Directors t0 make estimates and assumplions that allect the reported amounts of asscts,
liabilities, revenue, expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilitics. In
addition, the Directors are also required to exercise their judgement in the proccss of applying
the accounting policies. The areas invelving judgements, estimates and assumptions are
disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. Although these estimates and assumptions are
based on the Directors” best knowledge of evenis and actions, actual results could differ from
those estimates,

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amouni or recognised as 4 separatc assct,
as appropriate, only when the cosl is incurred and it is probable that the futurc cconomic
benefits associated with the subsequent costs would flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset could be measured rcliably, The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimale of dismantling
and removing the assel and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Company is
obligated to incur when the assct is acquired, if applicable.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in rclation to
the total cost of the assel and which has a different usefud life, is depreciated separately.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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4.2

4.3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to their residual valucs on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The principal depreciation rates are as follows:

Building 2%
Plant and machinery 5% - 10%
Turniturc and fittings 17% - 33%
Software 20% - 50%
Conlainers 12% - 15%
Consumables assets 100%

Work-in-progress representing machinery under installation is staled at cost. Work-in-progress
is not depreciated until such time when the asset 1s availabie for usc.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is assessed for impainment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrving amount may not bc rccoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount (see Note 4.3 to the financial statements on impairment of non-financial
assets).

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methed arc reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent
with previous estimates and the cxpected pattern of consumption of the [ulure economic
benelits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment. If expeciations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accouniing cstimate.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plani and equipment is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benetits are expecied from its use or disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount is included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets, except for [inancial assets, is rcvicwed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset is estimated for an individual asset. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the impairment test is carried out on
the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs,

The recoverable amount of an assct or CGU is the higher of its tair value less cost to sell and its
value in use.

In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash inflows and oulllows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markcet asscssments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when the carrying amount of the
asset or the CGU exceeds the recoverable amount of the assct or the CGU. The total impairment
loss is allocated o the assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount ol each
assct in the CGLL

The impairment loss 1s recognised in profit or loss immediately,
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4.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss on assets 15 reversed if) and only if, there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such reversals are recognised as
incomc immediatcly in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise (o a {inancial assel of one enlerprise and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, an cquity instrumcent of another enterprise, a
contractual right to receive cash or another financial! assct from another enterprise, or a
contractual right to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another enterprise
under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company.

A financial lability is any [iability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another enterprise, or a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to
the Company.

Financial instruments are recognised on the statements of financial position when the Company
has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, a
financial instrument is recognised at fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at
fair value through profit or loss, transactions costs are directly attributable to the acquisiiion or
issuance of the financial instrument.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if,
and only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative is not closcly
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, a scparatc instrument with
the same terms as the embedded derivative meets the definition of a derivative, and the hybrid
instrument is not measurcd at fair value through profit or loss.

{a) Financial assets

A financial asset is ¢lassified into the following four (4} calegories afler initial recognition
for the purpose of subsequent measurcment:

(i)  Tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise [inancial assets that are
held for trading (i.e. financial assets acquired principally for the purposc of resalc in
the near term), derivalives (both, freestanding and cmbedded) and financial assets
that were specifically designated into this classification upon initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss.

However, derivatives that arc linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted
cquity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are
recognised at cost,
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

Held-to-maturity investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity comprise non-derivative financial
asscts with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Company
has the positive intention and ability te hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial asscts classified as held-to-maturity are
measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method. Gains or losses on
financial asscts classified as held-to-maturity are recognised in profit or loss when
the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation
process.

Loans and reccivables
Financial assets classified as loans and receivables comprise non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable pavments that are not quoted in an active

market,

Subsequent to initial recognition, [inancial assets classified as loans and reccivables

- are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses

on finaneial asscts classified as held-to-maturity are recognised in profit or loss
when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets classificd as available-for-sale comprise non-derivative financial
assets that arc designated as available for sale or are not classifted as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, (inancial assets classified as available-for-sale are
measured at fair valuc. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the tair value
of financial assets classified as available-for-sale are recognised directly in other
comprchensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses, uniil the [inancial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised
in profit or loss. Howcver, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss whilst dividends on available-for-sale cquity instruments
are recoghised in profil or loss when the Company's right to receive payvment is
established.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and
highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with
original maturities of threc (3) months or less, and are used by the Company in the
management of its short term commitments. For the purpose of the statcment of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented nct of bank overdrafis and pledged
deposils.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 I'inancial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (conlinued)

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
financial asset has expired. On derecognition of a {mancial assel in its entirely, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of constderation received {including
any ncw assct obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income shall be recognised in
profit or loss.

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchasc or sale of a financia! asset under a contract
whosc terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by
regulation or marketplace convention.

Financial liabilities

Financial instruments arc classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substancc of the contractual arrangement. A financial liability is classified into the
following two (2) categories after initial recognition for the purpose of subsequent
measurement: '

(i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or [oss

Financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss comprise financial liabilities
that are held for trading, derivatives (both, freestanding and embedded) and
financial liabilities that were specifically designated into this classification upon
initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities classified as at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at {air value. Any gains or losses arsing from
changes in lhe [air value of financial habilitics classificd as at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised In profit or loss.

(ii) Other financial [iabilities

Financial ligbilities classified as other financial liabilities comprise non-derivative
[inancial liabilities that are neither held for trading nor initially designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to iitial recognition, other [{inancial liabilities are measured at
amortised cosl using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on other
financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss when the financial liabilities are
derecognised and through the amortisation process.

A [inancial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.c. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. An exchange
between an existing borrower and lender of debi instruments wiih substantially different
terms are accounted lor as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
rccognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms
of an existing financial liability is accounted lor as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recegnition of a new financial liability.

109



APPENDIX VII

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MCCL FOR THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

4.

4.4

4.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
{(b) Tinancial liabilitics {continued})

Any difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer lo make specified
payments to reimburse the holder {or a loss it Incurs because a specificd debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument,

(c)  Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary sharcs arc classificd as equity
instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value and proceeds in excess of the nominal
value of shares issued, iI'any, are accounted for as share premium. Both ordinary shares
and sharc premium arc classified as equity. Transaction costs of an equity transaclion are
accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.
Otherwise, they are charged to profit or loss.

Interim dividends to sharcholder are recognised in equity in the period in which they are
declared. Final dividends are recognised upon the approval of shareholder in a4 general
meeting.

The Company measures a liability to distribute non-cash assets as a dividend to the
owners of the Company at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. The carrying
amount of the dividend is remeasured at each reporting date and at the setilement date,
with any changes recognised directly in cquity as adjustments to the amount of the
distribution. On scttlement of the transaction, the Company recognises the difference, if
any, between the carrying amount of the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the
liability in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company asscsses whether there is any ohjective evidence that a financial assel is impaired
at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

The Company collectively considers [aclors such as the probability of bankruptey or significant
financial difficulties of the receivable, and default or significant delay in payments to determine
whether there is objective evidencc that an impairmeni loss on loans and receivables has
occurred. Other objective evidence of impairment include historical collection rates determined
on an individual basis and observable changes in national or local cconomic conditions that are
directly correlated with the historical default ratcs of receivables,

[f any such objeciive evidence exisls, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the [inancial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial assei’s original effective imtercst rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in profil or loss.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continucd)

.oang and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account,

I in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and it objectively relates
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carryving amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of impairment reversed is recogniscd in profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of
a past cvent, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benelils
would be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision would be
discounted to its present value at a pre-tax rate that rcflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability,

Provisions arc revicwed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best cstimatc. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefiis would be required to seltle the obligation, the provision would be reversed.

Provisions are not recognised lor future operating losscs. If the Company has a contract that is
onereus, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a
provision.

Contingent liabilities and contingent asscts

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain futurc events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not rccopnised hecause it is
not probable that an ouiflow ol resources would be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
rccogniscd because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statcments.

A contingent assct is a possibie asset that arises from past events whose existence would be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future cvents beyond
the control of the Company. The Company does not recognisc a contingent asset but discloses
its existence where the inflows of economic benefits are probable, but nol virtually certain.
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4,

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.9 Employee benefits

4,10

(a)

(b)

Short term employee benefits

Wages, salarics, social security contributions, paid annmual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses
and non-monetary benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are cxpensed when
employees rendered their services (o the Company.

Shert term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised
as an expense when employees render scrvices that increase their entitlement to future
compensated absences, Short term non-accumulaling compensaled absences such as sick
leave are recognised when the absences occur and they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full and do not cntitle employees to a cash pavment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Company.

Bonuses are recognised as an expense when there is a present, legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments, as a result of past events and wlhen a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Defined contribution plans
The Company incorporated in Malaysia makes contributions to a statulory provident fund.

The contributions are recognised as a liability after deducting any contributions alrcady
paid and as an expense in the period in which the employees render their services.

Income taxes

Income taxes include all laxes on taxable profit. Income taxes also include other taxes, such as
real property gains taxes payable on the disposal of properties.

Taxes in the statement of profit or foss and other comprehensive mcome comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

(a)

®

Current tax

Current tax expenses are determined according to the tax laws of the jurisdiction tn which
the Company operales and include all taxes based upon the taxable profit and real
property gains taxes payable on disposal of properiies.

Deferred tax

Decierred tax is recognised in full using the liability mcthod on temporary differences
arising between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial
position and its tax hase,

Deferred tax Is recogmised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax arises
Irom the initial rccognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business
combination and at the tine of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profil.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4,10 Income taxes (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax {continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits would be available againsl which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting peried. Il il s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits would be avatlable to allow the bencfit of part or all of that deferred tax
assel to be utilised, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset would be reduced
accordingly. When it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits would be available,
such reductions would be reversed to the extent of the taxablc profits.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set
off current tax assets against currenl tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxation authority on either:

(i)  The same taxable entity; or

(i) Different taxable cnfitics which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultancously,
in each future period in which significani amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Deferred tax would be recognised as income or expense and included in prefit or loss for
the period unless the tax relates o ilens that are credited or charged, in the same or a
different period, directly 1o equity, in which casc the deferred tax would be charged or
credited dircctly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply
in the year when the assct is rcalised or the liability is settled, based on the announcement
of tax rates and tax laws by the Government in the annual budgets which have the
substantial cffect of actual enactment by the end of the reporting period.

4.11 Revenuc and other income recognition

Revenuc is measured at the fair value of the netl consideration reccived or receivable net of
discounts and rebates

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of revenuc and the cost incurred or to
be incurred in respect of the transaction can be reliably measured and specific recognition
criteria have been mel {or cach of the Group’s activities as follows:

Revenue from services rendered

Revenue from services is recognised upon perlormance of services, net of discount.
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4.12

4.13

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Company arc mcasurcd using the currency of
the primary cconomic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’).
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Fair value measurements

The fair value of an asset or a liability is determined as the price thal would be received to sell
an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement method adopted assumes that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advanlageous market.

The Company measures the fair value of an asset or a liability by taking into account the
characteristics of the asscl or liability if market participants would take these characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability., The Company has considered the following
characteristics when determining fair value;

{a) the condition and location of the asset; and
(b) restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset.

The fair valuc measurement for a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of the market
participant to gcnerate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The fair value of a financial or non-financial liability or an cntity’s own equity instrument
assumes that:

{a) liabilily would remain outstanding and thc market participant transferee would be
required to fulfil the obligation. The liability would not be settled with the counterparty or
otherwise extinguished on the measurement date; and

(b)Y an entity’s own equity instrument would remain outstanding and the market participant
transferee would take on the rights and responsibilities associated with the instrument.
The instrument would nol be cancelled or otherwisc extinguished on the measurement
date.
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5.1

5.2

ADQOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs

New MFRSs adopted during the financial year

The Company adopted the following amendments of the MFRS Framework that were issued by

the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board {*MASB’) during the {inancial year,

Title

MERS 14 Regufatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MIRS 128 Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to MRS 11 dccounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

Amendments to MFRS 101 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to MFRS 116 and MTRS 138 Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to MERS 127 Eguiry Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to MEFRSs Annuel Improvements 2012 - 2014 Cycle

Effective Date
1 January 2016
I January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
| January 20146

‘There is no material impact upon the adopiion of these Standard and Amendments during the

financial vear.

New MFRSs that have becen issued, but only effective for annnal periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2017

The following are Standards of the MFRS Framework that have been issucd by the MASB but

have not been sarly adopted by the Company.
Title

Amendments to MERS 12 Annual Improvements o MFRS  Siandards 2014 -
2016 Cycle

Amendments to MERS 107 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments ¢ MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferved Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to MEFRS 1 drnual Improvements (o MFRS Standards 2014 -
2016 Cycle

MFERS S Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 as issued by 14SB in July 2014)

MFRS 15 Revenue from Comtracts with Customers

Clarification to MIRS 15

Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Amendments to MERS 128 dunual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 -
2016 Cycle

Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfer of Investment Property

[C Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to MERS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

MFERS 16 Leases
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sule or Contribution of Assets
betweern an Investor and its Assaciate or Joint Venture
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Effective Date

1 January 2017
1 January 2017

1 January 2017

I January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018
See MIRS 4
Paragraphs 46
and 48

1 January 2019

Delerred
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6.1

6.2

6.3

ADOFPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENT TO MFRSs (continned)

New MIRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 (continued)

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these Standards, since
the effects would only be observable for future financial years.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Changes in cstimates

Estimates are continually evalualed and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that arc bclieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Directors are of the opinion that there are no significant changes in estimates during the
reporting period and at the end of the reporting period.

Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

There are no critical judgements made by management in the process of applying the accounting
policics of the Company that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statcmcents.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

{a)  Decpreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Company. estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the time the
asscts arc acquired based on historical experience, the expecled usage, wear and tear of
thc assets, and technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or
scrvice output of the assets. The estimated useful lves of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
due to changes in the factors mentioned above. Changes in these factors could impact the
useful lives and the residual values of the assets, therefore future depreciation charges
could be revised.

(b) Impairment of receivables

The Company makes impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of receivables. Impairment is applied to receivables where events or
changes in cireumstances indicate that the carrving amounts may not be recoverable. The
Directors and management specifically analyses historical bad debts, customer
concentration, customer credilworthiness, current cconomic trends and changes in
customer paynient terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of
impairment of receivables. Where expectations differ from the original cstimates, the
differences would impact the carrving amount of reccivablcs.
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6.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

6.3  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c}

(d}

(e)

Fair values of borrowings

The fair values of borrowings arc cstimated by discounting future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rates available to the Company for similar financial
instruments. It is assumed that the effective interest rates approximate the current market
interest rates available 1o the Company based on its sizc and its business risk,

Income taxes

Significant judgement {s required in determining the capital allewances and deductibility
of certain expenses based on the interpretation of tax laws and legislations during the
estimation of the provision for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Company recognised liabilities for tax based on estimales of assessment of the tax
liability duc. Where the final tax outcome is ditferent from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences would impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions, where applicable, in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value measurement

The financial and non-financial assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value inputs are observable.

Level 1 fair value mcasurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or Jiabilities;

Level 2 fajr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 thal are observable for the assct or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value mcasurements are those derived from inputs for the asset or liability
that are net bascd on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

The c¢lassification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used in the fair value measurcment of the item, Transfers of items between levels

are recognised in the period they occur.

‘The Company measures financial insiruments at fair valuc as disclosed in Note 20 to the
financial statements.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
Note RM RM
Trade receivables
Third partics (a) 2,506,011 4,279,670
Amount owing by a related company () - 2,078
Amount owing by immediate holding company (b) - 7,950
2,506,011 4,289,608
Less: IImpairnment loss - third parties {7,066) {7,0606)
2,498,945 4,282,632
Other receivables
Amount owing hy immediate holding company {c) 849,619 -
Other receivables 186,197 249.078
Deposits 44,497 43.092
1,080,308 292,170
Less: Impairment loss (44,1350) (44,150)
1,036,158 248,020
Loans and receivables 3,535,103 4,530,652
Prepayments - 8,333
Total irade and olher receivables 3,535,103 4,538,985

(a} Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted by
the Company range from 7 to 90 days {2015: 7 to 90 days). They arc recognised at their
original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.

(b) Inthe previous financial year, amount owing by a relaled company and amount owing by
immediate holding company in trade receivables were subject to normal trade credit terms

granted by the Company ranging from 7 to 90 days from date of invoice.

{c) Amount owing by immediate holding company in other rcecivables represents advances,
which are unsecured, interest-frec and payable upon demand.

{d) Trade and other recetvables are denominated in Ringgit Malaysia (*RM”).

120



APPENDIX VII

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MCCL FOR THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

(e)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Company are as follows:

2016 2015
RM RM
Neither past due nor impaired 2,342 890 3,915,429
Past due not impaired
11030 days 136,798 165,348
31 1o 60 days 6,051 193,288
ol to 90 days 62 412
More than 90 days 13,144 8,155
156,055 367,203
Past due and impaired 7,066 7,066
2,506,011 4,289,698

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables of the Company that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy
deblors with good payment records with the Company. None of the trade receivables of
the Company that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the
financial year.

Receivables that are pasi due but not impaired

The Company has (rade receivables amounting to RM 156,055 (2015 RM367,203) that
are past duc but not impaired, Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired mainly
arosc from active corporate clients with healthy business relationship, in which the
management 15 of the view that the amounts are recoverable based on past payment
history. Trade receivables thal are past due but not impaired are unsecured in nature.

Receivables that are past due and impaired

Trade receivables of the Company that are past due and impaired at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Individually impaired

2016 2015

RM RM
Tradc reccivables - gross 7,066 7,066
Less: Impairment loss (7,066) (7,0606)
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10.

TRADE AND OTHER RECETVABLES (continucd)

{e) The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Company are as follows (continued):

The accumulated impairment losses during the year are as follows:

Trade receivables
As at 1 Januarv/As at 31 December

Other receivables
As at T January/As at 31Dccember

2016 2015

RM : RM
7,006 7,066
44,150 44,150
51,216 51,216

Trade reccivables that are individually determined to he impaired at the end of the
reporting period relate to those receivables that exhibit significant financial difficulties
and have defanlted on payments. These rcccivables arc not sceured by any collateral or

credit enhancements.

(f)  Information on financial risks of trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 21 to the

financial statements.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balanccs comprise the following as at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015

RM RM
Cash on hand 323 314
Cash at bank 955,615 2,365,769

455,938 2,366,083

(a) Cash and bank balances arc denominated in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’).

(b) Information on financial risks of cash and bank balances arc disclosed in Note 21 to the

financial statements.

2015
Number
of shares RM

4,000,000 4,000,000

SHARE CAPITAL
2016
Number
of shares RM
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
Authorised 4,000,000 4,000,000
Issued and tully paid 3,000,000 3,000,000

3,000,000 3,000,000
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10.

11.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The owner of the Company is entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company
and is entitled to one (1) vote per ordinary share at mectings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank pari passu with regard to the residual asscts of the Company.,

Redecmable convertible preference
shares ("RCPS™} of RMO0.10 each

Authorised

Issued and fully paid

2016 2015
Number Number
of shares RM of shares rM
5,200,000 520,000 5,200,000 520,000
2,500,000 280,000 2,800,000 280,000

The terms of the RCPS are as follows:

(i}  Dividend

(i)  Redemption

(iii) Redemption Notice

(ivy Conversion

SHARE PREMIUM

Non-cumulative at net 5% per annum. The dividend
payment will be at the option ol issuer.

Redeemable at the option of the issuer at the nominal value
of RM(.10 and premium of RM9.90 each at any time,

‘The Company shall give Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn.
Bhd. (formerly known as MISC Inlegraled Logistics Sdn.
Bhd.) one (1) month netice in writing of its intention to
redeem the same and fixing the time and place for the
redemption and surrender the RCPS to be redeemed.

Swift [ntegrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as
MISC Inteprated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.} shall give the
Company one (1) month notice i writing of its intention
to convert the RCPS into ordinary shares, The share
certificate(s) for the new ordinary shares shall be issuad
within two (2) weeks after the notice period.

The share premium is arrived at after accounting for the premium received less cxpenses over
the nominal valuc of shares issued to the shareholder.
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12.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABILES

Non-current

Other payables
Loan from immediate holding company

Cuarrent

Trade pavables
Third parties

Other payables

Amount owing to immediate holding company
Loan from immediate holding company
Accruals

Other payables

Note

(a)

(b)

(c)
(a)

2016 2015
RM RM
14,816,813 19,077,040

187,607 144,930
45,500 243,638
5,183,094 4,922,867
996,856 1,575,964
54,179 189,294
6,279,629 6,931,763
6,467,236 7,076,693
21,284,049 26,153,733

fa) Leoan [from immediate holding company in other payables represents inter-company
advances which arc unsecured, bear interest at 6.25% (2015: 6.25%) per annum and

repayable within the next [our (4) years.

(Y Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the
Company is 30 days (2013: 30 days) from date of invoice.

(c) Amount owing to immediate holding company in other payables represents advances,
which are unsecured, interest-free and payable upon demand.

(d) The currency exposure profile of trade and other payables are as follows:

Ringgit Malaysia
Linited States Dollar

2016 2015
RM RM
21,284,049 25,359,343

- 794,390
21,284,049 26,153,733

(e) Information on {inancial risks of tradc and other payables are disclosed in Note 21 to the

financial statements,
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14.

REVENUE

Revenue of the Company consists of the following:

Warehousc storage, handling and transportation

Treight forwarding

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense (Note 15)

- interest paid to immediate holding company

(LOSS)YPROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/Profit before taxation is arrived al after

charging:

Auditors” remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Interest cxpense

- intcrest paid to immediate holding company

Loss on foreign exchange
- realised
- unrealised

Management fee paid/payable to immediate holding

company
Rental of;
- land
- portable aircond
- reach trucks and forklifts
- warehouse cquipments

And crediting;

Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

125

Note

2016 2015
RM RM
8,088,764 11,770,496
181,602 869,775
9,170,366 12,640,271
2016 2015
RM RM
1,315,503 1,500,000
2016 2015
RM RM
12,000 15,400
2,062,632 2,240,227
1,315,503 1,500,000
2,551 1,871
- 147,780
45,500 ;
137,903 137,903
7,200 ;
279,385 254,081
213,760 249,092
(160,200) -




APPENDIX VII

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MCCL FOR THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2016 TOGETHER
WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

16.

TAXATION
2016 2015
RM RM
Under/(Over) - provision in prior vears 23,752 (17,999

There is no tax expense for the current and previous financial years as the Company is in a tax
loss position.

The numerical reconciliation between ihe lax expense and the product of accounting
(loss)/profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate of the Company is as follows;

2016 2015
RM RM
{Loss)/Profit before tax (36,074) 1,585,312
Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rale of 24% (2015: 25%) (8,638) 396,328
Tax effect in respect ol
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 17,270 82,407
Income not subject to tax (73,915 -
Deferred tax asscts not recognised 65,303 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets - (478,735}
Under/(OQver} - provision of tax expense in prior years 23,752 {17,099)
23,752 (17,999)

The amounts of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in
the statement of financial position are as fellows:

2016 2015
RM RM
Property, plant and equipment (10,581,496) (11,486,512)
Unused tax losses 1,306,376 1,306,376
Unabsorbed capital allowances 14,020,104 14,653,025
4,744 984 4,472 889

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of thesc items as it is not probable that
taxable profits of the Company would be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilised.

The deductible femporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation,
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17.

18,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Included in:
Cost of sales
Administrative cxpenses

Analysed as;

Salaries, wages, allowances, overtime and bonus
Defined contribution plan

Social security contribution

Other employee benefits

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a} Identities of related parties

2016 2015

RM RM
842 328 887,091
770,662 729,581
1,612,990 1,616,672
1,252,436 1,259,635
186,099 186,702
12,202 11,612
162,253 158,723
1,612,990 1,616,672

Parties are considered o be related to the Company if the Company has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to conirol the party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the
party are subjcct to common control or common significani influence. Related parties

could be individuals or other entities.

The Company has controlling related party relationship with its immediate and ultimate
holding companies and he direct and indircet subsidiaries of the ultimate holding

company.

Related partics of the Company include:

{i) Immediate and ultimate holding companies;

(1)  Dircct and indirect subsidiaries of the holding companies;

(ii) Companies in which the Directors have financial interests; and

(iv) Key management personnel who are defined as those persens having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company
either directly or indirectly. The key managcment personnel include all the
Directors of the Company, and certain members of the senior management of the

Company.
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18.

19.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b

(c)

In addition to the transactions dctailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company
had the following transactions with related parties during the financial year:

2016 2015
RM RM
With immediate holding company,
Swifl Iniegrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known
as MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.)
- Interest payablc 1,315,503 1,500,000
- Management fee paid/payable 45,500 -
- Purchases of services 761,634 5617612
- Rental of land paid/payable 137,903 137,903
- Salc of scrvices - 46,602
- Service charges paid/payable 120,000 120,000
- Scrvice fees paidipayable 410,663 410,663
With related company,
Swift Logistics TA Sdn. Bhd.
- Purchase of services 900 -

The related party transactions described above were carried out based on negotiated terms
and conditions and mutually agreed with the respective related parties,

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at
31 December 2016 are disclosed in Notes 8 and 12 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for
planning, direcling and controlling the activities of the entity, directly and indirectly,

including any Director (whether cxccutive or otherwise) of the Company.

There is ne compensation of key management personnel during the financial year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2016 2015

RM RM
Capital expendilure in respect of purchasc of
property, plant and equipment:
- contracted but not provided for 61,412 -
- approved but not contracted lor - 26,860
Analysed as follows:
- plant and machincry 6l,412 26,860
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Capital management

The primary objective of capital management of the Company is to ensure that the
Company would be able to continue as & going concern whilst maximising return to the
shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity ratios. The overall strategy of
the Company remains unchanged [rom that in the previcus financial vear.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 respectively.

{b) Financial instruments

(i) Categories of [inancial instruments

Loans and receivables

2016 2015
RM RM
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables, exclude
prepayments 3,535,103 4,530,652
Cash and bank balances 055,938 2,366,083
4,491,041 6,896,735

Other financial liabilities

2016 2015
RM RM
Financial liabilities
Tradc and other payables 21,284,049 26,153,733

{c) Methods and assumptions used te cstimate fair value
The fair values of financial asscts and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

{i)  Financial instruments thal are not carried at fair valuc and whosc carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of fair valuc

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities, such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables are reasonablc approximation of fair value,
due (o their short-lerm nature.

(ii) Non-current amount owing to immediale holding company

The fair values of these financial instruments are estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows at market incremental lending rates for similar types of
lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the cnd of the reporting period. At
the end of the reporting period, these amounts are carried at amortised cost and the
carrying amounts approximate fair value.
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20. FINANCILIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 fair valuc mcasurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements arc thosc derived from inputs other than guoted prices
included within Leve] | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Non-derivative [inancial liabilities

Fair valne of non-derivative financial liabilities, which is delermined for disclosure
purposes, is calculated based on the present value of [ulure principal and interest cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period. For other
borrowings, the market rafe of intcrest is determined by reference to similar borrowing
arrangements.

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The significant unobservable Inputs used in determining the fair value measurement of
Level 3 financial instruments as well as the relationship between key unobservable inputs
and fair value, is detailed in the table helow;

Valuation Significant Inter-relationship
technique unobservable between key unobservable
Financial instroment used input inputs and fair value
Financial liabilities
Loan from immediate Discounted Discount rate  The higher the discount rate,
holding company cash flows {6.25%) the lower the fair valuc of
method the liabilities would be.
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21.

FINANCIAL RESK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial risk management objective of the Company is to optimise valuc crcation for the
shareholder whilst minimising the potenlial adverse impact arising from fluctuations in interest
rates and the unpredictabilily of the financial markets.

The Company does not trade in any derivative [Inancial instruments and is cxposced mainly to
credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk, foreign exchange risk and intcrest rate risk, [nformation
on the management of the related exposures is detailed below,

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Cash deposits and trade receivables may give rise to credit risk which requires the loss 1o
be recognised if a counter party fails to perform as contracted. The counter parlies are
major licensed financial institutions and reputable muliinational organisations. It is the
policy of the Company to monitor the financial standing of these counter parties on an
ongoing basis to ensure thal the Company is exposed to minimal credit risk.

The primary cxposure of the Company to credit risk arises through its trade and other
receivables. The trading terms of the Company with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for now customers, where deposits in advance are normally required. The credit
period is generally for a period of seven (7) days, exlending up to three (3) months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit and the Company seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding reccivables via a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are revicwed regularly by senior management.

Exposure to credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, other than the amounts owing from immediate
holding company and two (2) major customers (2015 four (4) customers} constituting
approximately 24% and 53% (2015: Nil and 85%) of the total receivables of the Company,
the Company does not has any significant concentration of credit risk related to any
individual customer or counterparty. The maximum exposure of the Company to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of {inancial assets recognised in
the statement of financial position.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is discloscd
in Note & to the financial statements.

Financial asseis that are either past duc or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is discloscd in
Note 8 to the financial statements.

Liguidily and cash flow risk

The Company actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the
availability of [unding so as to cnsure that all operating, investing and financing needs are
mel. In liquidity risk management strategy, the Company measures and forecasts its cash
commitments and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed adequate to finance
the activities of the Company.
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21. FINANCTAL RESK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

[ignidity and cash flow risk {continued)

The Company is actively managing its operating cash flows to ensure all commitments
and funding necds arc met. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability ol {unding through an adcguate amount of committed
credit facilities. Due 1o the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Analysis of financial instriments by remaining contractual maturitics

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the liabililies of the Company at the
end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

On
demand or
within one One to Over five
year five years years Total
RM RM RM RM
As at 31 December 2016
Financial liahilities
Trade and other payables 7,596,477 16,142,300 - 23,738,777
As at 31 December 2015
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 8,466,160 20,450,429 - 28,922,589

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a {inancial
instrument will fluctuate beecause of changes in foreign exchange rates.

‘The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk as a rcsult of the foreign currency
denominated transactions entered into by the Company during the course of business. The
foreign currency primarily involved is the US Dollar. Transactions in all other foreign
currencies arc minimal. In addition, the Company does nol use foreign exchange
derivative instruments to hedge its transaction risk.

Sensitivity analvysis for foreien currcncy risk

The following table demeonstrates the sensitivity analysis of the Company fo a rcasonably
possible change in the USD exchange rate against the functional currency of the Company,
with all other variables held constant.

2016 2015
RM RM
Loss after Profit after
tax tax
USD/RM -strengthen by 10% 68 (47,652)
-weaken by 10% {68) 47,652
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21.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuned)

()

(d)

Foreign currency risk {continued)

Sensitivities of other foreign currencies are not disclosed as they are not material to the
Company.

[nterest rate risk

Intcrest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fuiure cash flows of the financiat
instruments of the Company will fluciuaie because of changes in market interest ratcs.

The income and operating cash flows of the Company are substantially independent of
changes in market intcrest rates, Interest rate exposure arises mainly from the interest
charged by its immediate holding company from the loan given (o the Coinpany. The
Company does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge this risk.

The [bllowing table demonstratcs the scnsitivity of the (loss)/profit after tax of the
Company to a rcasonably possible change in 100 basis points against interest rates of
instruments, with all other variables held constant:

2016 2015
RM RM
Nofe Loss after Profit after
tax tax
Fixcd rate
Loan from immediate 12 - 100 basis points higher 151,999 (179,999)
holding company - 100 basis points lower (151,999) 179,599
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WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

22,

23

COMPANIES ACT 2016

The Companies Act 2016 (New Act} was cnacted to replace the Companies Act, 1965 and was
passed by Parliament on 4 April 2016, The New Act was subsequently gazetted on 15
September 2016, On 26 January 2017, the Minister of Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and
Consumerism announced that the effective date of the New Act, except for Section 241 and
Division 8 of Part III of the New Act, to be 31 January 2017,

Amongst the key changes introduced in the New Act, which will atfect the [inancial statements
of the Company, are the removal of the authorised sharc capital, introduction of no par value
shares in place of par or nominal value sharcs, and the treatment of share premium and capital
redemplion reserves.

The adoption of the New Act does not have any financial impact on the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 as any accounting implications will only be applied
prospectively, if applicable, and the effect of adoption mainly will be on the disclosures to the
Directors’ Report and financial statements of the Company for the financial year ending 31
December 2017,

SIGNIFICANT EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 January 2017, the immediate holding company, Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.
{formerly known as MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn. Bhd.) had commilled to dispose off its
entirc cquity intcrest comprising 3,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and 2,800,000
redeemable convertible preference shares of RM(.10 each in the Company to a third party for a
total cash consideration of RM9,925,100. The abovementioncd disposal of the Company is not
completed as at the date of this reporl.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON GCT

] A v
s

7 Lo '
LB GOLD C

{A64664-M)

Date: 5 June 2017
To: The Board of Directors of TASCO Berhad

802, 8" Floor

Block C, Kelana Square
17 Jalan S$57/26

47301 Petaling Jaya
Sefangor

Dear Sir { Madam,

On behalf of the Beard of Directors (“Board™} of Gold Cold Trangport Sdn Bhd ("Company™), |
wish to report that after making due enguiries on the Company and its subsidiary ("Group”) in
relation to the period between 30 Novemiber 2016, being the date on which the last audited
consolidated financial statements of our Group have been made up, and up to the date of this
letter, being a date not earlier than 14 days before the issuance of the circular to the
shareholders of TASCO Berhad, that:-

{a) the business of our Group has, in the opinion of cur Board, heen satisfactorily
maintained;
(b} in the opinion of our Board, no circumstances have arisen since the last audited

consalidated financial statements of our Group, which have adversely affected the
trading or the value of the assets of our Group;

{c) the current assets of our Greup appear in the books at values which are beliaved to
be realisable in the ordinary course of business;

(d) there are no material contingent liabilities which have arisen by reason of any
guarantees or indemnities giver by our Group;

{e) there have been no default or any known event that could give rise to a defauit
situation, in respect of payments of either interest andfor principal sums in relation to
any borrowings in our Group since the last audited consolidated financia! statements
of our Group; and

(f) there have been no material changes in the published reserves or any unusual
factors affecting the profits of our Group since the last audited consolidated financial
statements of our Group.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board
GOLD COLD TRANSPQORT SDN BHD

- -

Chéng Kok Fai
Managing Directer
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APPENDIX IX

CONSOLIDATED VALUATION CERTIFICATE

VPC Alliance (KL) Sdn Bhd 937

ffarmerly known a3 Wgers (KL) Scin Bhd)
Ecard Reglstration:v{1) 0008
Intetnational Property Consultants, Valuers & Estate Agents

Sthte 1201 17th Floar Cerviral Plaza V P ‘

34, tdan Suttan lsmafl,

50250 Kuala Lumpur, ASIA PACIFIC
Malaysia. In associstion with
Tel ; G0E-2148 59658

Fan 1 E03-2141 2933, 2148 7968

Ernail . wpcaki@vpc.com.my

Website © wii.vpe com.my

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

19 January 2017

TASCO BERHAD

Lot No. 1A, Persiaran Jubli Perak
Jalan 2211, Section 22

40300 Shah Alam

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Dear Sirs,

CERTIFICATE OF VALUATION OF:-

() HS(D} 152663 LOT NO. PT 145872 AND HS$(D) §7952 L.OT NO. PT 57360, ALL
IN MUKIM AND DISTRICT OF KLANG AND STATE OF SELANGOR DARUL
EHSAN {NO. 1, JALAN SUNGAI KAYU ARA 32/37, NO. 3, JALAN SUNGAI
KAYU ARA 32/40, NO. 4, JALAN SUNGAI KAYU ARA 32/39 AND NO. 5,
JALAN SUNGA] KAYU ARA 32/40, BERJAYA INDUSTRIAL PARK, SECTION
32, 40460 SHAH ALAM, SELANGDR DARUL EHSAN) (“SUBJECT PROPERTY

’l,,

() LOT PT NOS. 128571, 128572, 128573, 128574, 128575 AND 128576, ALL IN
MUKIM AND DISTRICT OF KLANG, STATE OF SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN
(LOT 36, JALAN PERIGI NENAS 7/2, TAMAN PERINDUSTRIAN PULAU
INDAH, 42920 PELABUHAN KLANG, SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN) (“SUBJECT
PROPERTY 2”); AND

() PLANT AND MACHINERY ASSETS LOCATED AT LOT PT NO. 128574, MUKIM  Pirecors

Karnes YWomg s ieu sits

AND DISTRICT OF KLANG, STATE OF SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN {LOT  Tan Beng Sooi warismmcs

Kehyin Tan mswucs

128574, JALAN PERIG) NENAS 7/2, TAMAN PERINDUSTRIAN PULAU INDAH,  franck tohrr
42920 PELABUHAN KLANG, SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN) (“FIXED ASSETS") mﬁ;’;ﬂgﬁ:‘ el

Chevr Kwong Cheang # s v
Tan Lee Kang o s weiccs

This Valuation Certificate has been prepared for submission to Bursa Malaysia 1Wonmcmmnne

Zoiniea Zalnudding s wenew sdmm

Securities Berhad and for inclusion in the circular to shareholders of TASCO Berhad  Pee” Mani Usieppon mssuncy

(“TASCQ") in relation to the:- Matayela

Kualy Lumpur
Johar Bahru

()  proposed acquisition by TASCO of 2,000,000 ordinary shares in Gold Cald ",
Transport Sdn Bhd (‘GCT'), representing the entire equity interest in GCT from [oavaias
Chang Kok Fai and Chan Sun Cheong, for an indicative cash consideration of ~Snétien

RM186,086,428; and Mentakab

Kajang
Other Offices
(N)  proposed acquisitions from Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd (formerly known as ﬁ:g:'n‘:"se
MISC Logistics Sdrn Bhd) (*SILS") of the following:- Bargek
Srontben”
(A) € parcels of leasehold lands all located in Pulau Indah for a cash m“"‘il
consideration of RM113,827,400; and b

Vietnam
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In association with
CLUTTONS

{8) The entire equity interest in MILS Cold Chain Logistics Sdn Bhd {("MICEL") for a
cash consideration of RM9,925,100 as well as the assumption of loans received by
MCCL from SILS with an ouistanding balance of RM20,000,000, for a total cash
consideration of RM28,925,100.

In accordance with the instruction from TASCO to value the Subject Property 1, wa had
undertaken an inspection on 8 December 2018 and the material date of valuation is 9
January 2017. For the Subject Property 2 and the Fixed Assets, in accordance with the
instruction from TASCO to value these assets, we had undertaken an inspection on 1
December 2016 and the material date of valuation is 19 January 2017.

This Valuation Certificate is to be read in conjunction with our valuation reports bearing
Reference Nos, VPC/VIT96/16 dated 9 January 2017 together with VPCA/769/16 and
VPC/P&MT70/16 both dated 19th January 2017,

The valuations have been carried out in accordance with the Asset Valuation Guidelines
issued by the Securiies Commission Malaysia and also comply with the Malaysian
Valuation Standards issued by the Board of Valuers, Appraisers and Estate Agents,
Malaysia, and with the necessary professional responsibility and due diligence.

The basis of valustion adopted in the valuation of the Subject Property 1 and Subject
Froperly 2 is the "Market Value” and for the Fixed Assets valuation is the “Market Value (In
Continued Use)”.

Market Value is defined as the estimated amount for which an asset or liability should
exchange on the valuation date between a wiling buyer and & willing seller in an arm's
length transaction after proper marketing where the parties had each acted knowiedgeably,
prudently and without compulsion,

Market Value {In Continued Use) is defined as the estimated amount at which the Fixed
Assets in their continued use might be expected to be sold and purchased batween a willing
seller and a willing buyer, neither being under compulsion, each having a reasonable
knowledge of all relevant facts and with equity to both, and contemplating the retention of
the asseis in their present existing use and location for the purpose they were designed,
built and installed as part of an ongoing business, but without specific reference to earnings,
and is expressed as subject to adequate potential profitability of the undartaking.

We have adopted ONLY the Cost Msthad of Valuation to ascertain the current market value
of the Subject Froperty 1 and Subject Property 2, The Cost Method of Valuation entails
determining the value of land and building separately with the value of the land as an
improved site is added to the depreciated replacement cost of the buildings and other
improvements to arrive at the market value of the Subject Properly 1 and Subject Property
2.

For the valuation of the Fixed Assets, we have adopted the Cost Approach {or Depreciated
Replacement Cost) as most of the subject assets are rarely transacted and no closed
market comparables were found. The assets were valued as a whole for the continuance of
their existing use in its present (ocation.
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It is our considered opinion that the Market Values of the Subjest Property 1 and Subjsct
Property 2 in its physical condition and with the benefit of vacant possession and free from
any encumbrances and the Market Value (In Continued Use) of the Fixed Assels are as

follows:-
Subject Praperty 1 111,060,000
Subject Property 2 ' 140,390,000 |
LFixed Assets 10,153,000 |

Brief details of the Subject Property 1, Subject Property 2, and the Fixed Assets are
atteched in the Schedule 1 with this letter.

Yours faithfully,

VPC ALLIANCE (KL} SDN BHD
&
o it
x T
OINITA ZAINUDDIN MARIO ROBERTO P. MENDOZA, 8.8.M.E,
BSc Urban Land Administration Valuation Consultant - Plant & Machinery
Registered Valuer {\/-533)
Malaysia
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SCHEDULE 1 Page 1

[{)] SUBJECT PROPERTY 1

Property Identification

Title Particulars
HS (D) 152663 Lot No. PT 145872 and HS (D) 57952 Lot No. PT 57360, all in Mukim and
District of Klang and State of Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Postal Address

No. 1, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/37, No. 3, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, No. 4, Jalan Sungai
Kayu Ara 32/39 and No. 5, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40, Berjaya Indusfrial Park, Section 32,
40460 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Tenure
Freehold

Surveyed Land Area

Lot Nos. Surveyed Land Areas

(Square Metres) | (Square Feet) (Acres)
PT 145872 23,561 253,611 5.822
PT 57360 7,518 80,924 1.858

Registered Proprietor
Gold Cold Transport Sdn Bhd

Category of Land Use
Industry

Goneral Description of Subject Property 1

Location

The Subject Property 1 is located within the established industrial area of Berjaya Industrial
Park in Section 32, Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, about 10 kilometres due south west of
the Shah Alam City Centre and about 30 kilomstres due south west of the Kuala Lumpur City
Centre.

Site
The Subject Property 1 consists of 2 adjoining plots of industrial land identified as Lot No. PT
145872 and PT 7360,

Lot No. PT 145872 is an L-shaped industrial lot with a titled land area of 23,561 square
metres (253,611 square fest or 5.822 acres).

Lot No. PT 57380 is a corner and nearly square shape industrial lot with a titled land area of
7,518 square metres (80,924 square feet or 1.858 acres).
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SCHEDULE 1 Page 2
Bullding

The buildings are further described as follows:-

Lot No. | Address | Property Details Gross Floor Area
An individual designed 2 storey cold | Cold Storage Warehouse: 75,932
storage warehouse annexed with 3 | square feet (7,333 square metres)
storey office building together with 2
No. 1, guardhouses, a locker room and 3 | Office Bullding: 19,289 square feet
Jalan common toilet/wes. {1,792 square metres)
Sungai
Kayu Completed on 2014 Anciflary Areas & Buildings; 15,510
Ara square feet {1,441 square metres)
32037 Certificate of Completion and
Compliance Ref. No. LAM/S/No.
12514 dated 1712/2014
An individual designed 1 storey cold | Cold Storage Warehouse: 38,905
stoerage warehouse annexed with a 2 | square feet (3,614 square metres)
No. 3, storey office building together with 1
PT Jalan TNB Substation. Office Building: 11,759 square feet
145872 Sungai {1,092.47 square mefres)
Kayu Completed on 2003
Ara Ancillary Areas: 3,976 square feet
32/40 Certificate of Fitness Ref. No. MBSA: | {369.41 square metras)
CF 00354 dated 24/12/2003
An individual designed 1 storey cold | Cold Storage Warehouse; 44,926
storage warehouse annexed with 3 | square fest (4,173.73 square
No. 4 storay office building together with 1 | metres)
J alén' guardhouse, a carnteen, & locker room o
Sungai and 2 commaon toiletiwes, Office Building: 5,222 square feet
Kayu {485.14 square metres}
Ara Completed on 2006 o
32/39 Ancillary Argas & Buildings: 3,120
Certificate of Fitness Ref. No. MBSA: | square feet (289.85 square metres)
CF 00854 dated (7/09/2006
An individual designed 2 storey cold | Ceold Storage Warehouse: 68,402
storage warehouse annexed with 2 | square feet (6,354.7 square metres)
storey office building with 1 basement
No. 5, level together with 1 guardhouse, a | Office Building: 6,684 square feet
Jalan waiting area, a locker room and 3 | (620.99 square metres)
PT Sungai common toiletwes.
57360 Kayu Basement Level: 27,699 square
Ara Completed on 2009 feet (2,573.34 square metras)
32/40
Certificate  of Completion and | Ancillary Areas & Buildings: 9,560
Compliance Ref. No. LAM/S/Na. 0731 | square feet (888.19 square metres)
| dated 30/11/2008

(Sotrce: Approved Building Flans)
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SCHEDULE 1 Page 3

The warehouse buildings have bean built and designed specifically for cold room facilities and
constructed basically of reinforced concrete and steel portal frameworks with brickwalls infill
and metal gladding sheets, reinforced concrete slab with kerb, reinforced concrets floor with
load bearing capacity of 5 ton/m? and coverad with metal deck roofing with thermal insulation.

The office buildings are constructed basically of reinforced concrete and steel portal
frameworks with brickwalls infill and metal cladding sheets, concreta floor and covered with
metal roof dack.

The Ancillary Areas include the circulation, facility & service areas are constructed basically of
reinforced concrete and steel portal frameworks, concrate floor and covered with metal roof
deck. Most of these areas are brickwalls infill, except for the open air staircases and service
yards which are enclosed with mild steel railing.

The Ancillary Buildings include guardhouses, canteen, locker rooms, waiting areas and
common toiletiwcs which are constructed basically of reinforced concrete framework with
plastered brickwalls, concrete floors and covered with reinforced concrete flat roof or metal
deck roof on metal roof trusses.

Occupancy Details

The Subject Property 1 is currenly owner-occupied except for the 1 storey Cold Storage
Warehouse (excluding the lce Cream Room which is owner occupied) with the annexed 3
storey office building and other Ancillary Area and Ancillary Building located at No. 4, Jalan
Sungai Kayu Ara 32/37, Berjaya Industrial Park, Section 32, 40460 Shah Alam, Selangor
Darul Ehsan ("Property No. 4").

For information purposes, Property No. 4 (save for the lce Cream Room) is presenily rented
to Martin-Brower Malaysia Co. Sdn Bhd based on 4,700 pallets located in the Cold Room
Warehouse at a monthly rental of RM315,500/- or RM2.20 per pallet per day and an overspiil
rate of RM2.50 per pallet per day.

Planning Details

The Subject Property 1 is designed for industrial use as expressly stated in the title
dosuments. The buildings are cumrently used as for cold room warehouse facilities.

Method of Valuation

Cost Method of Valuation

We have adopted the Cost Method of Valuation as the only method of valuation. We were
unable to adopt the Comparison Method of Valuation to derive at the Market Value of the
Subject Property 1 as the subject buildings are specialised and purpose built warehouses for
cold room facilities and there are no warehouses with cold room facilities in the vicinity to
compare with the Subject Property 1. In addition, Investment method is also not possible as
the majority of the buildings are owner occupied. Hence, there are lack of rental evidences to
adopt to derive the total Markst Rental of the properties.
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SCHEDULE 1 Page 4

{a} Value of Land (Comparison Method}

In arriving at the land value, we have adopted the relevant sales evidences located in the
vicinity with adjustments made in terms of location, land area, ienure, time and site
improvement factors, which are tabulated as follows:-

Comparables 1 2 3 4
Address Lot 61807, Jalan PT 328, Sec 23, | Lot 64410, Perslaran | PT 34342 Jalan
Pemaju U115, Shah Alam, Gerbang Utama, Bukit Kemuning,
Glenmarie !ndustrial Selangor Bukit Jelutong, Shah Shah Alam,
Park, Shah Alam, Alam, Selangor Selangor
Selangor
Type Industrial Land Industrial Land Industrial Land Industrial Land
Status of Land Vacant Vacant Vacant Vacant
Land Area in Sq. Ft. 60,268 365,976 232 545 96,312
Vendor Hicom United Greenway Link | Natco Industrial Park | Ong Kam Soon
Leasing Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd +3
Purchaser Edaran Otomobil Pacific Emerald Hansam Properties | MTL Engineering
Nasional Berhad Properties Sdn Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd
Bhd
Tenure Freshold 99 years Freehold Freshold
leasehold expiring
on 3/05/2098
Date of Transaction 29/04/2015 20/04/2015 16/0:3/201% 20/06/2016
Transacted Price RM12,100,000 RM56,715,000 RM48,508,704 RM12,000,000
Land Value psf RM201 RM155 RM200 RM125
Adjusimant
Some necessary adjustments are made for location, land area, tenure, time and site improvement factors
Adjusted Value | RM139 and RM155 | RM{142 and RM158 | RM150 and RM162 RM442 and
psf RM150

(Source: Jabatan Penilaian Dan Perkhidmatan Harfa, Monthly Safes Transaction)

We have adopted Comparable 2 as the best comparable as it is also located within
established industrial area and nearer to the Subject Property 1. We have adopted RM145 per
square foot for Lot No. PT 145872 and RM150 per square foot for Lot No. PT 57360.

{b} Value of Building (Depreciated Replacement Cost Method)

For the Building Cost, based on the Construction Cost Handbook Malaysia 1st Quarter 2016
published by Juruukur Bahan Malaysia and Langdon Seah, the building construction cost for
(i} heavy duty flatted factory/warehouse ranges between RM164 to RM184 per square foot
and (ii} low rise, light weight factory/warehouse with small office is ranging from RM166 to 187
per square foot,

We have made adjustments on the building heights, load bearing capacity of floor, building
finishes and other dissimilarities on building structure o arrive at the building value. Therefore,
we have adopted the building construction cost of RM185 to RM225 per square foot for cold
storage warshouses, RM145 to RM160 per square foot for office areas and RM130 per
square foot for ancillary areas and ancillary buildings.

For depreciation, we have adopted the depreciation rate to the buildings ranging from 2% to
11% based on the estimated building life-span of 80 vears and taking into consideration of the
good state of repairs and regular maintenance by the owner on all the buildings.
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Market Value

The Market Value of Subject Property 1 in its physical condition and with the benefit of vacant
possession and free from any encumbrances, is RM111,060,000/- (Ringgit Malaysia: One
Hundred Eleven Million And Sixty Thousand Only.}

The breakdown of the above market value is further expressed as follows:-

Lot Address Land Value | Building Value Market Value
No. {RM) {RM) (RM}
PT No. 1, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/37 36,770,000 22,400,000 77,030,000
145872 | No. 3, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40 8,830,000

No. 4, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/39 9,030,000
PTSBO No. 5, Jalan Sungai Kayu Ara 32/40 12,140,000 21,890,000 34,030,000
57
Total 48,910,000 62,150,000 111,060,000
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() SUBJECT PROPERTY 2

Property ldentification

Particulars of the Subject Property

TITLE NO. LOT NO, | LAND AREA BUILDING(S) ERECTED THEREON
PT
HS(D) 134803 | 128571 54,807 sq metres | 4 storey office, 1 storey warshouse
building and ancillary buildings

HS(D) 134804 | 128572 | 35,838 sq metres | Vacant

HS(D) 134805 | 128573 | 17,481 sq metres | Vacant

HS(D) 134806 | 128574 | 20,149 sq mefres | 1 storey cold storage warehouss building
HS(D) 134807 | 128575 13,038 sq metres | 2 storey security control building

HS(D) 134808 | 128576 | 18,622 sq metres | Vacant

Postal Address
Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Tenure
Leasehold for 98 years expiring an 24" February 2097 {unexpired tarm of about 80 years)

Reglstered Proprietor
MISC Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd (now known as Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd),

Category of Land Use
Industry

General Description of Subject Property 2

Location

The Subject Property 2 is situated within the established industrial area of Taman
Perindustrian Pulau Indah, in Pulau Indah, Selangor Darul Ehsan, about 20 kiometres due
south west of Klang Town and about 70 kilometres due south west of Kuala Lumpur City
Centre,

Site
The Subject Property 2 comprise of 6 contiguous industrial lands with a total provisional land
area of 159,935 square metres (39.52 acres).

The combined lots have a frontage of about 2,182 feet {664.95 metres) to the frontage road of
Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2 whilst Lot PT 128571 enjoys a frontage to Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/1 of
about 717 feet {218.4 metres)
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Buildings
The construction and gross floor area (*GFA”) of the Buildings are set out below:-
1. LOT PT 128571
Building Type of Construction GFA
4 Storey Divided into 2 sections, front and rear portion. The front | 60,843 aq ft
Office Building | portion consist of a 4 storey office block, constructed with | {5,652.50 sq
reinforced concrete framework and partly of metal portal for | metres)
the front fagade, reinforced concrete floorings, plastered
brickwalls and partly of aluminium wall cladding for the front
fagade and covered with metal deck roof with alcubond
fascia.
The rear portion consist of a 3 siorey faciities block
constructed with reinforcad concrete framework, plastered
brickwall and covered with metal deck roof. Floorings are of
marble slabs, porcelain tiles, ceramic tiles, wall to wall carpet
and epoxy finishas.
1 storay Constructed of steel portal framework, concrete floors, metal | 268,531 sq ft
warehouse cladding wall with aluminium louvres ventilation sheet panels | {25,040.24
building and metal and coverad with metal deck roofing incorporated | sq metres)
with skylight roofing panels.
Anciltary Constructed of reinforced concrete framework, plastered | 1,857 sq ft
Buildings brickwall and covered with reinforced concrete flat roof. {172.52 59
THB metres)
Substations
and switch
rooms
Refuse Constructed of reinforced concrete framework, plastered | 258 sq ft
chamber brickwall further laid with ceramic tiles and covered with | (23.97 s
reinforced concrete flat roof. metres)
Guard House | Constructed of reinforced concrete framework, plastered | 194 sq ft {18
brickwall and covered with reinforced concrete flat roof, sq metres)
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2. LOTPT 128574

Building Type of Construction GFA
1 storey cold Constructed in accordance with a cold storage building | Cold storage Area
storage specifications i.e. steel portal framework, insulated raised | 62,835 sq ft
warehouse concrete floors, metal cladding wall, insulation panels | {5,837.56 sq
building and covered with metal deck roofing incorporated with | metres)
insulation materials.
Office and other
areas
10,044 sq ft

(933.12 5q metres)

3. LOT PT 128575

Building Type of Construction GFA

2 storey Constructed of reinforced concrete framework, plastered | 5,723 sq ft (531.68
security brickwall and covered with metal deck roof. Floorings are | sq metres)
control of ceramig tiles.

building

The 2 warehouse buildings on Lot PT 128571 and PT 128574 enjoy Free Commerciafl Zone
(FCZ) status. The buildings were issued with Certificate of Fitness for Occupation in 2007 and
2008.

{Source: Approved Building Plans)

Occupancy Details

Owner occupied.

Planning Details

The Subject Property 2 is desighed for industrial use as expressly stated in the title
documents. The buildings are currently used as warehouses and office.

ﬂetllog oﬂlaluation

|

|

|
We have adopted the Cost Method of Valuation as the only method of valuation to value the
individual designed 4 storey office, 1 slcrey warehouse building and 1 storey cold room |
storage building. We were unable to adopt the Comparison Method of Valuation to derive at

| the Market Value of the Subject Property 2 as the Subject Property 2 comprises of 6 plots of
industrial lands where only 3 plots are erected with buildings.

Cost Method of Valuation
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In addition, one of the buildings erected on the Iot is a specialised and purpose built
warshouse for cold room facilities and there are no warehouses with cold room facilities in the
vicinity to compare with the Subject Property 2. In addition, Investment methed is also not
possible as the buildings are occupied by the owners while the other 3 plots are still vacant.

(a} Value of Land {Comparison Method)

For the land value, we have adopted RM40 per square foet based on the Comparison !
Method. In arriving at the land value, we have adopted 3 relevant sales evidences located in |
the vicinity with adjustments are made in terms of time and land size factor, which are |
tabulated as follows:-

Comparables 1 2 3
Property A plot of vacant industrial 8 plots of vacant industrial | 4 plots of vacant industrial
land land land
Lot Nos, PT 87980 & 87981, Lot PT Nos. 129325 — Lot Nas. 19, 20, 26 & 27
Jalan Perigi Nenas 87, 129330, 129334 & 129335, | {PT Nos. 121646 — 121648
Taman Perindustrian Pulau | Jalan Sg Pinang 4/2, Halal & 121653}, Section 4,
| Indah Hub, Taman Perindustrian Phase 2B, Halal Hub,
Pulauv Indah Taman Perindustrian Pulau
| Indah
Tenure Leasehold for 99 years Leasehold for 99 years Leasshold for 99 years
explring on 30" March 2097 | expiring on 24™ February expifing on 24" February
2097 2097
Vendar AS Transit Warehouse Sdn | Cantral Spectrum (M)} Sdn Ecolex Sdn Bhd |
Bhd Bhd ,
Purchaser Tanjong Exprass Lagistic Polygald Beverages Sdn Ultra Trinity Sdn Bhd & |
{M) Sdn Bhd Bhd Guper Resources Sdn Bhd
Land Area 118,769 sq fest 1,550,830 sq feet 455,981 sq feet ‘
{2.727 acres) {35.602 acres) {10468 acres)
Drate of Transaction 2 February 2016 170 April 2015 1% December 2014
Consideration RM7 957 456/ RMS57,571,074/- RM22,798,759
Analysed Rate RMET RM37 RM50
RM psf
Adjustment Some necessary adjustments are made considering facters such as iand ares, ime and
land improvement [
|
| | Adjusted Value RM40 RM38 RM45

{Source: Jabatsn Penilaian Dan Perkhivrnatan Harta, Monthly Sales Transaction}

We have adopled Comparable 2 as the best comparable due to its similarity in terms of land
area as compared to the Subject Property 2. The value adopted is at RM40 per square foot.

For site improvement for Lot PT Nos. 128571, 128574 and 128575, we have adopted RM15
per squara foot for improvement cost such as internal tarmac roads, fencings and drains,
| taking into consideration, amongst others, the following:-

(M

and soggy and requires extra piling and foundation; and

(ii)

fand.
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{b} Value of Building {Depreciated Replacemeant Cost Method)

For the building cost, based on the 1% Quarter 2018 Data provided by Juruukur Bahan
Malaysia & Davis Langdcn & Seah, the construction cost of a heavy duty flatted factories and
warehouses is estimated at RM167 tc RM187 per square foot (reflecting reinforced concrete
structure, roof and mechanical & electrical to main distribution).

For Lot PT 128571, we have adopted RM17Q per square foot for the 4 storey office, taking
into consideration, the office building is of 4 storey, centralised air-conditioned, partly of
aluminiurm cladding wall and marble and porcelain tiles floorings.

For the 1 storey warehouse, we have adopted RM160 per square foot as the eaves height is
48 feet and metal cladding wall up to ceiling height incorperated with aluminium louvres
ventilation sheet panels.

For the 1 starey cold storage warehouse building on Lot PT 128574, we have adopted RM230
per square foot for the cold room area as it is purpose built for cold storage with design and
construction details from one of the international logistic company specialist in cold reom i.e.
ETB Seafrigo, with suspended floor slabs, insulation panels for the floor, wall and roof whilst
RM170 per square foot for the remaining office and mechanical areas.

For depreciation, we have adopted a straight line depreciation at a rate of 1% per annum
taking into consideration the estimated life span of the building of 60 years as per the common
practise in the industry. In addition, the buildings are fairly well maintained.

Market Yalue

The Market Value of Subject Property 2 in its physical condition and with the banefit of vacant
possession and free from any encumbrances, is RM140,390,000/- (Ringgit Malaysia: One
Hundred Forty Million And Three Hundred Ninety Thousand Only.) ‘

The breakdown of the above market value is further expressed as follows:-

|

| Market Value (RM) ‘
Total fand value for the 6 lots 68,700,000

Total building value with site improvement on Lot PT 128571 and 128575 55,190,000 ‘
Total building value with site improvement en Lot PT 128574 16,500,000

Total 140,390,000 ‘
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()  FIXED ASSETS

Introduction

The Fixed Assets subject of this appraisal comprises various machinery and equipment,
which are installed and used in the 1 storey cold storage warehouse building such as ceiling
and wall panelling, refrigerated chillers, evaporative coolers, palet racking system,
loading/unloading bay machinery and equipment, electrical distribution system and safety
equipment,

The Fixed Assets were inspected at Lot PT No. 128574, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman
Perindustrian Pulau Indah, 42940, Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

Further details on the Fixed Assets and its respective market value are set out in Appendix |.

Basis of Valuation

Market Value {In Continued Use) is defined.as the estimated amount at which the Fixed
Assets in their continued use might be expected to be sold and purchased between a willing
seller and a wiling buyer, neither being under compulsion, each having a reasonable
knowledge of all relevant facts and with equity to both, and contemplating the retention of the
assets in their present existing use and location for the purpase they were designed, built and
installed as part of an ongoing business, but without spscific reference to earnings, and is
expressed as subject fo adequate potential profitability of the undertaking.

This definition assumes that any transaction that may occur will be for cash or its equivalent
consideration. It is further assumed that title to the assets is good and marketable, and that it
would be transferable without unreasonable restriction.

Valuation Methodology

In forming our opinion of market value of the subject Fixed Assets, the following consiklerations
were made:

= We have primarily used the Cost Approach (or Depreciated Replacement Cost) as most of
the Fixed Assets are rarely transacied and no closed market comparables were found. We
have sourced the costs of replacing the Fixed Assets based on the prices published on
various online websites and the Plant & Machinery Assets Cost Data published by the
American Society of Appraisers.

This approach considers first to establish the Cost of Replacement, New, or the cost to
reproduce or replace the Fixed Assets in brand new condition, with the same or of equivalent
utility, considering current prices for materials, labor, manufactured machinery & egquipment,
freight, instaliation (if any), and other attendant costs & related charges, as at the date of
valuation.
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The ohjective figure arrived at after deducting from this value (Cost of Replacement, New)
the depreciation ariging from ulility, age, wear & tear would be the Market Value {In
Continued Use). Wherever deemed appropriate or applicable, this value is further adjusted
either upward or downward as to the appraiser’s judgement of his or her observed condition
of the assetfs, obsolescence (physical, functional & economic) if any, and if there was any
upgrading done, good & proper maintenance observed, neglect, or found to be idle.

« The Fixed Assets were valued as a whole for the continuance of their existing use in its
present location.

« Building services such as building electrical installation, gas pipe, water supply system, air
conditioning & ventilation, fire and security, drainage, lift and gantries, structures & fixtures
and any other items deemed as building services, were not included in this valuation and
were valued as part of the property vaiuation.

+ The Estimated Remaining Useful Life is the estimated period of time expressed in years that
the Fixed Assets will continue to perform in a satisfactory manner the functions for which it
was designed, buill and installed, assuming nomnal and reasonable maihtenance. It is
determined as net of the Fixed Assets’ normal useful lifespan (Economic Useful Life) and its
length of usage {Used Life), considering its date/vear of manufacture, andfor from the time of
its installationfcommissioning, or when it was initially put in operation, up to the time of
valuation.

The estimated remaining useful life of the Fixed Assets ranges from about 10-15 years,
based on a reference useful life of 25 years for cold storage facilities.

State of Repair, Depreciation Rate and Total Economic Life

At the time of our inspection, the facility was found in operation. The machinery and
aquipment were observed to be generally in good to fair working condition. [t is our opinion
that they are capable of being operated efficiently for the purpose they were designed, built
and installed.

Based on a reference useful life of 25 years for cold storage facilities and the estimated
remaining useful life of the Fixed Assets which ranges from about 10-15 years, we have adopted
the depreciation rate of 45% to 80% for the Fixed Assets in deriving the market value.

Market Value (In Continued Use)

The Market Value (In Continued Use) of the Fixed Assets, appraised as of 19" January 2017,
subject to the service conditions and limiting conditions is RM10,153,000/- {Ringgit Malaysia:
Ten Million One Hundred And Fifty Three Thousand Only).
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APPENDIX IX

CONSOLIDATED VALUATION CERTIFICATE (Cont’d)
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APPENDIX X

FURTHER INFORMATION

1. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This Circular has been seen and approved by our Board, and our Directors individually and
collectively accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
Circular and confirm that, after making all reasonable enquiries and to the best of their
knowledge and belief, there are no false or misleading statements contained in this Circular or
other facts, the omission of which would make any statements or information herein false or
misleading.

All information relating to GCT Group (including Subject Property 1), GCT Vendors, SILS,
Subject Property 2 and MCCL have been obtained from publicly available documents (where
available) and other information/documents provided by the directors/management of the
respective parties. Therefore, the sole responsibility of our Board is restricted to ensure that
such information is accurately reproduced in this Circular.

2. CONSENTS

RHB Investment Bank, being the Principal Adviser for the Proposals, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name and all
references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this Circular.

Messrs Jeff Leong, Poon & Wong, being the due diligence solicitors for the Proposed GCT
Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition, has given and has not subsequently withdrawn
its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name and all references thereto in the
form and context in which they appear in this Circular.

VPC, being the Independent Valuer for the Proposals, has given and has not subsequently
withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name and its consolidated
valuation certificate and all references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in
this Circular.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RHB Investment Bank has given its written confirmation that there is no situation of conflict of
interest that exists or is likely to exist in relation to its role as the Principal Adviser to our
Company for the Proposals.

Messrs Jeff Leong, Poon & Wong has given its written confirmation that there is no situation of
conflict of interest that exists or is likely to exist in relation to its role as the due diligence
solicitors to our Company for the Proposed GCT Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition.

VPC has given its written confirmation that there is no situation of conflict of interest that exists
or is likely to exist in relation to its role as the Independent Valuer to our Company for the
Proposals.

4. MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, neither our Company nor our subsidiary companies are engaged in any other
material litigation, claims and arbitration, either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board do not
have any knowledge nor aware of any proceedings pending or threatened against our
Company and/or our subsidiary companies or of any facts likely to give rise to any
proceedings which may materially or adversely affect the financial position or business or
possession of our Group.

As at the LPD, our Board is not aware of any material litigation, claims, arbitration or
proceedings involving the Subject Property 2.
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5. MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, our Board is not aware of any material commitments
incurred or known to be incurred by our Group which, upon becoming enforceable, may have
a material impact on the financial results or position of our Group:-

As at the LPD
(RM'000)

Authorised and contracted for
- Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 1,814
- Acquisition of new subsidiary companies 298,385
Total 300,199

6. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, our Board is not aware of any other contingent liabilities incurred or known to
be incurred by our Group which, upon becoming enforceable, may have a material impact on
the financial results or position of our Group.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, neither our Company nor our subsidiaries have entered into any
material contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) within 2
years preceding the LPD:

(i) the GCT SPA, the Pulau Indah SPA and the MCCL SPA (which are the subject
matters of this Circular); and

(ii) On 30 October 2015, our Company has entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
with Crimson Horse Sdn Bhd for the disposal of the property held under H.S.(D)
79351, PT 4980, Mukim Damansara and District of Petaling, Selangor together with a
factory erected thereon for a cash consideration of RM10,940,000. This agreement
was completed on 15 March 2016.

8. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of our
Company at 802, gt Floor, Block C, Kelana Square, 17 Jalan SS7/26, 47301 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor, during normal business hours between Mondays and Fridays (except public
holidays) from the date of this Circular up to and including the date of the forthcoming EGM:-

(i) the Constitution of our Company, GCT and MCCL;

(i) the letters of consent and declarations of conflict of interest referred to in Section 2
and Section 3 of this Appendix X;

(iii) the material contracts referred to in Section 7 of this Appendix X;

(iv) the GCT Valuation Report and Westport Valuation Reports by VPC together with the
consolidated valuation certificate;

(v) the audited consolidated financial statements of our Company for the past 2 financial
years up to and including the FYE 31 March 2017;

160



APPENDIX X

FURTHER INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(vi) the audited consolidated financial statements of GCT for the past 2 financial years up
to and including the FYE 30 November 2016; and

(vii) the audited consolidated financial statements of MCCL for the past 2 financial years
up to and including the FYE 31 December 2016.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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NYK GROUP COMPANY

TASCO BERHAD
(Company No. 20218-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Extraordinary General Meeting of TASCO Berhad (“TASCO”
or the “Company”) will be held at TASCO Berhad, Lot No.1A, Persiaran Jubli Perak, Jalan 22/1,
Seksyen 22, 40300 Shah Alam, Selangor on Thursday, 29 June 2017 at 3.00 p.m., or at any
adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, passing with or without
modifications, the following resolutions:-

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 1

PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY TASCO OF 2,000,000 ORDINARY SHARES IN GOLD COLD
TRANSPORT SDN BHD (“GCT”), REPRESENTING THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN GCT FROM
CHANG KOK FAI AND CHAN SUN CHEONG, FOR A CASH CONSIDERATION OF RM185,616,671

“THAT, subject to approval of all relevant authorities or parties being obtained, approval be and is
hereby given for TASCO to acquire 2,000,000 ordinary shares in Gold Cold Transport Sdn Bhd
(“GCT"), representing the entire equity interest in GCT from Chang Kok Fai and Chan Sun Cheong, for
a cash consideration of RM185,616,671 as set out in the sale and purchase agreement dated 9
January 2017 (“Proposed GCT Acquisition”) and such other terms and conditions as the parties
thereto may mutually agree upon in writing or which are imposed by the relevant authorities;

AND THAT, approval be and is hereby given to the board of directors of the Company (“Board”) to
give effect to the Proposed GCT Acquisition with full powers and authority to:

(a) enter into any arrangements, transactions, agreements and/or undertakings and to execute,
sign and deliver on behalf of the Company, all such agreements, instruments, documents
and/or deeds as the Board may from time to time deem necessary, expedient or appropriate
for or in connection with the Proposed GCT Acquisition;

(b) assent and/or give effect to any condition, variation, modification, addition and/or amendment
in respect of the Proposed GCT Acquisition and/or any provision, term and condition thereof
as may be required and/or as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem necessary,
expedient or appropriate and/or as may be imposed or permitted by any relevant regulatory
authorities; and

(c) take all such steps and do all such acts, deeds and things including giving undertakings as the
Board may from time to time deem necessary, expedient or appropriate to implement, finalise
and give full effect to and complete all transactions contemplated under the Proposed GCT
Acquisition.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2

PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS BY TASCO FROM SWIFT INTEGRATED LOGISTICS SDN BHD
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MISC INTEGRATED LOGISTICS SDN BHD) (“SILS”) OF THE
FOLLOWING:-

(A) 6 PARCELS OF LEASEHOLD LANDS ALL LOCATED IN PULAU INDAH MEASURING
APPROXIMATELY 159,935 SQUARE METERS (APPROXIMATELY 39.52 ACRES) IN TOTAL,
TOGETHER WITH THE FURNITURE, FIXTURES, FITTINGS AND BUILDING(S) ERECTED
THEREON (SAVE FOR THE FIXTURES, FITTINGS AND BUILDING ERECTED ON PT 128574)
AND BEARING POSTAL ADDRESS AT LOT 36, JALAN PERIGI NENAS 7/2, TAMAN
PERINDUSTRIAN PULAU INDAH, 42920 PELABUHAN KLANG, SELANGOR FOR A CASH
CONSIDERATION OF RM113,827,400; AND



(B)

3,000,000 ORDINARY SHARES AND 2,800,000 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES IN MILS COLD CHAIN LOGISTICS SDN BHD (“MCCL”), REPRESENTING THE
ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN MCCL FOR A CASH CONSIDERATION OF RM9,925,100 AS
WELL AS THE ASSUMPTION OF LOANS RECEIVED BY MCCL FROM SILS WITH AN
OUTSTANDING BALANCE OF RM20,000,000 FOR A TOTAL CASH CONSIDERATION OF
RM29,925,100

“THAT, subject to approval of all relevant authorities or parties being obtained, approval be and is
hereby given for TASCO to acquire from Swift Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd (formerly known as MISC
Integrated Logistics Sdn Bhd) (“SILS”):-

(@)

6 parcels of leasehold lands all located in Pulau Indah measuring approximately 159,935
square meters (approximately 39.52 acres) in total, together with the furniture, fixtures, fittings
and building(s) erected thereon (save for the fixtures, fittings and building erected on PT
128574) and bearing postal address at Lot 36, Jalan Perigi Nenas 7/2, Taman Perindustrian
Pulau Indah, 42920 Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor for a cash consideration of RM113,827,400
as set out in the sale and purchase agreement dated 23 January 2017 (“Proposed Pulau
Indah Acquisition”) and such other terms and conditions as the parties thereto may mutually
agree upon in writing or which are imposed by the relevant authorities; and

3,000,000 ordinary shares and 2,800,000 redeemable convertible preference shares in MILS
Cold Chain Logistics Sdn Bhd (“MCCL”), representing the entire equity interest in MCCL for a
cash consideration of RM9,925,100 as well as the assumption of loans received by MCCL
from SILS with an outstanding balance of RM20,000,000 for a total cash consideration of
RM29,925,100 as set out in the sale and purchase agreement dated 23 January 2017
(“Proposed MCCL Acquisition”) and such other terms and conditions as the parties thereto
may mutually agree upon in writing or which are imposed by the relevant authorities;

(Collectively, the Proposed Pulau Indah Acquisition and Proposed MCCL Acquisition are referred to as the
“Proposed Westport Acquisition”)

AND THAT, approval be and is hereby given to the board of directors of the Company (“Board”) to
give effect to the Proposed Westport Acquisition with full powers to:

(@)

enter into any arrangements, transactions, agreements and/or undertakings and to execute,
sign and deliver on behalf of the Company, all such agreements, instruments, documents
and/or deeds as the Board may from time to time deem necessary, expedient or appropriate
for or in connection with the Proposed Westport Acquisition;

assent and/or give effect to any condition, variation, modification, addition and/or amendment
in respect of the Proposed Westport Acquisition and/or any provision, term and condition
thereof as may be required and/or as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, expedient or appropriate and/or as may be imposed or permitted by any relevant
regulatory authorities; and

take all such steps and do all such acts, deeds and things including giving undertakings as the
Board may from time to time deem necessary, expedient or appropriate to implement, finalise
and give full effect to and complete all transactions contemplated under the Proposed
Westport Acquisition.”

By Order of our Board,
TASCO BERHAD

KANG SHEW MENG
SEOW FEI SAN
LOH LAI LING
Secretaries

Petaling Jaya
7 June 2017



Notes:

Only depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 22 June 2017 shall be regarded as
members and entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A
proxy need not be a Member of the Company and a Member may appoint any persons to be his proxy.

A Member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the Extraordinary General
Meeting. Where a Member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless the Member specifies
the proportions of his holding to be represented by each proxy. Where a Member of the Company is an authorised
nominee as defined under the Central Depositors Act, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2)
proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of
the said Securities Account. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (omnibus account), there is
no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account it holds.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised
in writing, or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the hand of its officer or
attorney duly authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the registered address of the Company at 802, 8th Floor, Block
C, Kelana Square, 17 Jalan SS7/26, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time for holding the Extraordinary General Meeting or any adjournment thereof.












NYK GROUP COMPANY

TASCO Berhad
(Company No. 20218-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Form of Proxy

I/We NRIC/Co. No.
(Please use Block Capitals)

of

(Full Address)
being a member/members of TASCO Berhad hereby appoint

(Full Name)
of
(Full Address)
or failing him/her,
(Full Name)
of
(Full Address)

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Extraordinary General Meeting to be held at TASCO Berhad,
Lot No.1A, Persiaran Jubli Perak, Jalan 22/1, Seksyen 22, 40300 Shah Alam, Selangor on Thursday, 29 June 2017 at 3.00
p.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

The proxy is to vote on the resolutions set out in the Notice of the Meeting as indicated with an “X” in the appropriate
places. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion, as he will
on any other matter arising at the meeting.

NO. | ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
1 Proposed GCT Acquisition
2 Proposed Westport Acquisition

Dated:

Number of shares held :

Signature of Shareholder(s) or Common Seal

Notes:

1. Only depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 22 June 2017 shall be regarded as members
and entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A
proxy need not be a Member of the Company and a Member may appoint any persons to be his proxy.

3. A Member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the Extraordinary General
Meeting. Where a Member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless the Member specifies
the proportions of his holding to be represented by each proxy. Where a Member of the Company is an authorised
nominee as defined under the Central Depositors Act, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2)
proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of
the said Securities Account. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (omnibus account), there is
no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account it holds.

4, The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised
in writing, or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the hand of its officer or
attorney duly authorised.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the registered address of the Company at 802, 8th Floor, Block
C, Kelana Square, 17 Jalan SS7/26, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time for holding the Extraordinary General Meeting or any adjournment thereof.



Please fold here

The Company Secretary
TASCO BERHAD (20218-T)

802, 8" Floor, Block C,
Kelana Square,

17 Jalan SS7/26,
47301 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor

Stamp
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